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Leoch International Technology Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are pleased to
announce the following financial highlights:

Financial Highlights i3
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BE+t=-RA=+—-HLHTFE

2017 2016 Change
—E—+tF ZE—RF 25
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREFT
Revenue U #5 9,465,444 6,262,870 +51.1%
Gross profit EA 1,162,540 1,025,584 +13.4%
Profit for the year INF i F 271,480 231,787 +17.1%
Profit attributable to BRREAR A 242,885 241,898 +0.4%
owners of the parent FEAG & T
Basic earnings per share, G EAZF| 0.18 0.18
in RMB (AR®T)
Profit attributable to
Revenue Gross profit Profit for the year owners of the parent
s S ANE T ISYNCIE ZS PNy o]
AR AR AR ARRTR
10,000,000 9/466,444 1,500,000 300,000 300,000
271,480
250,000 250,000 241,898 242,885
8,000,000 1,200,000 1,162,540 231,787
1,025,584
6,262,870 200,000 200,000
6,000,000 900,000
150,000 150,000
4,000,000 600,000
100,000 100,000
2,000,000 300,000
50,000 50,000
0 0 0 0
2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017



Financial Highlights B1 &=

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Period”), the
Group’s audited profit attributable to owners of the parent
amounted to approximately RMB242.9 million.

Basic earnings per share was RMBO0.18 (2016: RMB0.18),
the calculation of such basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,355,932,999 (2016: 1,353,330,795) in
issue during the year.

To reserve fund of acceleration of production capacity
expansion, the board of directors (the “Board”) of the
Company does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: 5.5
HK cents). The Company had not declared and paid any
interim dividend or special dividend during the year ended 31
December 2017.

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 15 May 2018 to Friday, 18 May 2018 (both
days inclusive) for the purpose of determining shareholders’
entitlement to attend the annual general meeting (the
“AGM”), during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending
the AGM, shareholders should ensure that all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
are lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar (see
below) for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday,
14 May 2018.

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Address: Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Leoch
International Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”), | am pleased to present
the Group’s report on its annual results for the year ended 31
December 2017 (the “Period”) for shareholders’ review.

Review

During the Period, benefited from the rapid growth in SLI
batteries, motive power batteries and recycled lead business,
our sales rocketed 51.1% to RMB9,465.4 million. In
response to our rapid expansion, we put in a lot of resources
to build and enhance our distribution networks in the PRC,
especially for application areas of UPS and auto battery
aftermarket.

Although the PRC market was the major growth contributor
which accounted for 58.1% of the battery revenue increment,
all overseas regional markets restored growth momentum.
The Group believes that the European market business
should be strengthened to capture future potential growth.
Accordingly, we acquired 60% equity stake in a United
Kingdom battery distributor and established our wholly
owned trading company in France with Italy and Germany in
process.

Export and overseas sales centers are always under fierce
competition and the higher raw material and production cost
in the PRC together with the appreciation of RMB against
other currencies are the adverse factors to our growth.
To cope with the potential trade barriers and maintain our
overseas competitiveness, the Group has determined to
expand our production arms overseas. We plan to set up
two Vietnamese manufacturing companies for both network
power and automotive battery factories which will improve
our manufacturing competitiveness and reduce our foreign
currency exchange risk. The pilot production will start
as earliest as first quarter of 2019 according to the plan.
Meanwhile, the domestic expansion was also in process for
our battery production and recycling lead refining expansion
purposes.
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Chairman’s Statement EEHRE

Outlook

In the short to medium term, the continuous rapid
development of international data corporation (IDC”), clean
energy storage and the kick-start of 5G network will provide
strong support to the growth of reserve power batteries. The
robust demand of SLI batteries due to aging vehicles and
high growth of vehicle fleet in China will sustain the growth
and make China account for about 50% of global SLI sales
by 2020. The development of new energy vehicles that led
to the growth of low-speed electric vehicles and the rapid
development of e-commerce logistics that continue boosting
the local and export demand of electric forklift will provide
strong demand for motive power battery in these application
areas.

The Group anticipated that the global demand for lead-acid
batteries will continue to grow and the PRC annual growth
rate of 10% is possible to sustain in next few years. With
dedicated sales centers established in the PRC, USA, Asia
and the expanding European centers, we are confident and
well equipped with professional and devoted sales teams to
seize all the positive opportunities in 2018 and near future.

In response to the rapid development, we will expand our
battery product categories and one lithium battery factory
will be built for production diversification. It will be a good
supplement and support to network power battery category.
To support the fast growing SLI battery market in the PRC,
establishment of a plant equipped with advanced automatic
machineries is planned to meet the market demand.

With more production quota being granted, the Group will
expand the production capacity in our joint venture lead
recycling enterprise. A new recycling plant is also under
planning process for future expansion.

m Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2017
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Chairman’s Statement EEHRE

The rectification of the PRC recycled lead industry
has created a good opportunity for lead-acid battery
manufacturing enterprises to enter upstream resource
processing. The Group has secured two times of current
production quota from the PRC Government and will expand
the business prudently step by step.

On the other hand, unstable raw material price and
strengthening RMB exchange rate might bring a lot of
challenges to the Group’s profitability and export business.
The recent array of tariffs against numerous countries raised
by the US government and the tariff plans for up to USD 50
billion on Chinese imports has put the world on the verge of
trade war. The Group is closely monitoring the development
and will take necessary actions to mitigate any adverse
effects. Moreover, price competition amongst major players
in the PRC and overseas market remain ferocious. The
Group will keep strict control over its production costs and
continue enhancing production efficiency to match these
challenges.

The Group will continue providing sufficient resources in
research and development, production and quality control in
order to maintain our leading position in technology knowhow
and product reliability. The Group will constantly review our
strategies and developments and perform timely adjustments
when required.

The management is fully confident in implementing the
Group’s production and marketing strategies and intends to
seize every growth opportunity in the PRC and around the
world. We are fully devoted and will work hard to achieve our
vision and goal and in return create value for shareholders
and the society.
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Acknowledgement ESE )

The continuous development and growth of the Group is AEEMAFHEZELKE RN —HtALE
attributable to our loyal and hardworking employees with  ZEEZ ARG HAEHE T - KAAERKRES
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the contributions of all the Group’s employees and to the AT REBERZHEEMIFE AR At
long-term support and trust by shareholders and business H &#ke

partners. The Group is fully confident that it can make

continuous contributions to shareholders and the society.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

The Group is a vertically integrated enterprise primarily
engaged in the development, sale and manufacture of
lead-acid batteries and other related items. It is one of the
leading manufacturers and exporters of lead-acid batteries
in the PRC. The Group sells over 2,000 models of lead-acid
battery products, with a capacity ranging from 0.251 Ah
to 4,055 Ah. Among the battery manufacturers in the
PRC, the Group offers one of the broadest lines of lead-
acid battery products. It further expanded to lead recycling
and remanufacturing business upon the completion of the
acquisition 60% of the registered capital of Taihe Dahua
Energy Technology Co., Ltd on 9 January 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Period”),
the Group’s revenue amounted to RMB9,465.4 million,
representing an increase of 51.1% from RMB6,262.9 million
for the corresponding period in 2016.

During the Period, revenue from recycled lead products
amounted to RMB1,754.8 million (2016: Nil) while revenue
from batteries and related items amounted to RMB7,661.3
million, representing an increase of 22.3% from RMB6,262.9
million for the corresponding period in 2016. Since the price
linkage mechanism will pass raw material price fluctuation
to customers, the growth in revenue was driven partly by
the increase in average lead price as compared with the
corresponding period in 2016. The growth rate of volume
delivered in terms of ton was above 10% as compared to the
corresponding period last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Lead-acid batteries are generally classified into three major
market categories, namely reserve power batteries, SLI
batteries and motive power batteries. Details of business
operations of the Group in these three categories are as
follows:

Reserve power batteries

Reserve power batteries category is one of the major revenue
contributors of the Group. The Group’s sales of reserve
power batteries during the Period amounted to RMB4,674.2
million, representing an increase of 8.2% from 2016.

The increment in sales revenue of reserve power batteries
amounted to RMB354.6 million (2016: RMB1,159.2 million)
during the Period as compared to last year. Reserve power
batteries accounted for approximately 61.0% of batteries
revenue as compared to 69.0% in the corresponding period
of 2016. Turnover has increased approximately 0.5 time
since 2015 from RMB3,160.4 million to RMB4,674.2 million.

After rapid growth in sale of telecommunication application
batteries in 2016, a decline in volume delivered in terms
of ton was anticipated after the strategic restructuring of
the major telecommunication providers was completed
in the PRC. The significant drop in volume delivered in
telecommunication application batteries in China was partially
overcome by increased export business and further mitigated
by the increased revenue and volume delivered in all other
application areas, namely UPS, other customer products
and renewable energy. This was contributed by our sales
and marketing efforts to expand our market share in these
application areas. Volume delivered in terms of ton decreased
by less than 5.0% during the Period as compared to the
corresponding period in 2016.

SLI batteries

SLI batteries are used mainly in starting up automobiles and
motorcycles. The Group’s sales of SLI batteries during the
Period amounted to RMB2,164.7 million, representing an
increase of 50.0% from 2016.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis EEE 1w & 0T

The increment in sales revenue of SLI batteries amounted
to RMB721.8 million (2016: RMB591.1 million) during the
Period as compared to last year. Volume delivered in terms of
ton increased by approximately 37.0% during the Period as
compared to the corresponding period in 2016. SLI batteries
accounted for approximately 28.3% of batteries revenue as
compared to 23.0% in the corresponding period of 2016.
Turnover has increased approximately 1.5 times since 2015
from RMB851.7 million to RMB2,164.7 million. SLI batteries
category became one of the major revenue contributors of
the Group. This was contributed by our sales and marketing
efforts in enlarging customer bases and building solid
distribution networks.

Motive power batteries

Motive power batteries revenue are mainly generated from
batteries used to provide power for electric vehicles and
electric forklifts. During the Period, the Group recorded sales
revenue of RMB497.0 million, representing an increase of
76.4% from 2016.

The increment in sales revenue of motive power batteries
amounted to RMB215.2 million (2016: RMB145.0 million)
during the Period as compared to last year. Volume delivered
in terms of ton increased by approximately 48.0% during the
Period as compared to the corresponding period in 2016.
Motive power batteries accounted for approximately 6.5% of
batteries revenue as compared to 4.5% in the corresponding
period of 2016. Turnover has increased approximately 2.6
times since 2015 from RMB136.8 million to RMB497.0
million. With continuing investment in areas like research
and development, production, product quality, sales and
marketing including distribution networks, motive power
batteries category has become a major business of the
Group.
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Recycled lead

In November 2016, Leoch acquired a 60% stake in Taihe
Dahua Energy Technology Co. Ltd., a company in the PRC
principally engaged in the recycling and remanufacturing
of lead from disposed batteries. Revenue from the sale
of recycled lead products was consolidated to the Group
upon the completion of the acquisition and amounted
to RMB1,754.8 million (2016: Nil) during the Period. The
synergy effect created allow battery factories to act as a
constant source of supply of disposed batteries to the
refining plant and the refining plant can effectively utilise its
product capacity and maintain a relatively high level sales
during the year with battery factories in support by absorbing
more recycled products especially during low seasons. The
Group believes the payback period of the acquisition cost will
be less than two years.

Sales network

The Group distributes its products to more than 100
countries and regions across the world. The Group’s regional
sales centres are located in Beijing, Shenzhen, Zhaoging,
Nanjing, the United States, the European Union, Hong
Kong, Singapore, India, Sri Lanka, Malaysia and Australia,
together with 39 domestic sales centres across the PRC. As
at the date of this report, the Group has over 730 dedicated
sales and after-sales employees. The Group will continue
expanding its sales teams and marketing network in the PRC
and overseas to support the sales, distribution, and after-
sales services for all categories of battery products of the
Group. In view of accelerating the business development in
Europe, on 22 December 2017, the Group has entered into
an agreement to acquire 60% stake in DBS Energy Limited,
a UK batteries distributor and on 23 November 2017,
Leoch France SAS, a wholly owned trading company of the
Company, was established in France.
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Research and development of new products

The Group is a leader in research and development (‘R&D”)
and application of lead-acid battery technologies in the PRC.
The Group’s battery R&D team consists of more than 400
researchers and technicians. To support its R&D efforts,
the Group works closely with international and domestic
battery experts and research institutions to develop new
technologies. The Group has obtained 287 patents and there
are 68 proprietary technologies in the process of patent
applications as at the date of this report.

The Group has grasped and applied most of the lead-acid
battery technologies in the world, including technologies
used in the first generation open-type fluid infusion battery,
the second generation Absorbent Glass Mat battery and
new energy battery, the third generation pure lead battery,
and the fourth generation Stop-Start battery. The Group is
among the few enterprises in the world possessing the third
and the fourth generations of technologies. The Group’s
strong R&D capabilities enable it to produce a broad
range of battery products deploying most of the key lead-
acid battery technologies. As at the date of this report, the
Group has developed more than 2,000 different types of
battery products employing various application technologies,
making the Group one of the battery enterprises with the
broadest range of lead-acid batteries. During the Period, the
Group continued to provide sufficient resource in R&D on all
categories of product in order to secure growth in the future.

To sustain business growth and development, the Group
continues to explore advanced battery technologies. After
completion of the investment in series B preferred stock of
Gridtential Energy, Inc. (“Gridtential”) on 12 January 2017,
additional shares of the same class has been subscripted
for a consideration of US$499,999.54 on 31 August 2017 at
price per share same as the original investment.
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Gridtential’s Alpha program has been started and in 2017
the Group was involved in testing the prototype and
providing feedback for refining. Moving forward, the Group
will continue to participate in different phases until products
can be commercialized which is targeted as early as 2020.
The Group will work closely with Gridtential to apply the
technology from lab to commercial production.

Production bases

During the Period, the Group operated eight well-built battery
production bases, including four wholly-owned production
bases in the PRC, a wholly-owned production base in Sri
Lanka, two joint venture production bases in Malaysia and
a joint venture production base in India, and one recycling
lead factory in the PRC with a total site area of approximately
968,000 square meters (“sq.m.”) As at the end of 2017, the
Group had battery capacity of 21.6 milion KVAh (2016: 20.7
million KVAh). To cope with potential business expansion,
the Group is going to further expand its production and
manufacturing capacities in the PRC and overseas.

In May 2017, principle lease agreements for a total land area
of approximately 69,000 sg.m. in Vietnam with lease period
until August 2065 were signed. The Group will establish
two factories in Vietnam, one is for reserve power batteries
and the other is for automotive batteries (SLI batteries).
Both factories will start construction in April 2018 after the
environment permits are granted by the local government.
The Group has acquired land area of approximately 623,000
sg.m. in Guizhou and Jiangsu in the PRC and is going
to acquire more land in Chongging for our future battery
production and recycling lead refining expansion purposes in
the PRC.
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Trend of lead price

Lead is the main raw material of lead-acid batteries and
accounts for a major product cost for the Group’s battery
production. According to Shanghai Metals Market (‘SMM”),
an information service provider of the non-ferrous metal
market, the monthly average lead price per ton was moving
between the range of RMB15,931 to RMB20,354 during
the Period, changed within the range of -18.6% to 4.0% as
compared with December 2016 monthly average (‘Dec 2016
average”) of RMB19,563 per ton.

As compared to December 2016 SMM monthly average,
lead price dropped 7.7% in Q1 2017 then dropped heavily
by 15.5% and 18.6% in April and May before rebounding
in June during the Period and the last six month was
changed by -9.2%, -1.9%, 4.1%, 3.8%, -4.6% and -3.0%
respectively. Lead price fluctuated up and down during the
Period.

To cope with potential fluctuation risks in lead price, the
Group adopts a price linkage mechanism, passing raw
materials price fluctuations to customers to hedge relevant
risks. The Group’s centralized procurement of raw materials
enables it to trim down costs of raw materials through
favorable negotiations on bulk purchase contracts.

Future Prospects

In 2017, the Group continues to drive business growth in
the PRC and overseas. Among the RMB1,398.5 million
(2016: RMB1,932.0 million) increment in sales revenue of
batteries, 58.1% (2016: 84.3%) was contributed from the
PRC. Together with the revenue contributed from recycled
lead amounted to RMB1,754.8 million (2016: nil), the PRC
share of the Group’s 2017 annual turnover increased to
67.5% (2016: 60.2%). The Group believes that the turnover
will continue to be grown faster in the PRC than overseas in
next few years.
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Although selling and distribution expenses and R&D costs
were higher during the Period, the costs invested in building
distribution networks and new products development
including lithium batteries for telecommunication application
would be beneficial to our growth in coming years.

The Group anticipates that business will sustain the growth
momentum in most of the application areas of battery in the
PRC and overseas market as well as recycled lead business.
Below is our view and strategic plans:

Reserve power batteries

In 2017, reserve power batteries contributed 25.4% of total
growth in revenue of batteries. In the PRC, volume delivered
to UPS market increased by more than 20%, of which sales
through distribution channel increased by more than 80%.

The continuing rapid development of IT technologies such
as cloud computing, mass data, e-commerce and various
types of data centers and servers will be one of the major
growth drivers for the UPS market. The Group as a major
supplier of UPS batteries in the market has well prepared and
determined to grasp this opportunity and expand our market
shares in the PRC in 2018.

According to IDC Association prediction, the compound
average growth rate (“CAGR”) of global data centers will be
17% from 2012 to 2017, while the PRC will achieve CAGR
of 40% in the same periods, much higher than the global
average. Moreover, other research indicated that the IDC
market size of the PRC will reach RMB139 billion in 2018 as
compared to 100 billion in 2017, a year-on-year growth of
39%. The growth in overall size of the IDC market will push
the demand for UPS batteries in a high growth rate direction.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2017
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Although the other consumer product application only
provided a high single digit volume growth in 2017, the
Group always has a solid and strong position in this area and
we are confident that the growth momentum will continue.
The renewable energy application is another application area
that the Group estimated that could obtain an above average
growth rate in 2018.

In the medium term, further upgrade and development
of the 5G network will provide additional boost to the
demand for telecommunications batteries. The Group will
continue solidifying our leading position in this area aiming
to benefit from the growth in telecommunication application
area in the PRC. To cope with product diversification, the
Group had put in large amount of resources in the last few
years on the development of lithium batteries to cover all
application areas in reserve and motive power with priority
on telecommunication area. In fact, construction of the first
phase of lithium batteries factory will start as early as in April
2018 and be targeted to have pilot production at the end
of 2018. The total site area is 150 mu (equivalent to around
100,000 square meters) with designed maximum production
capacity of 1.65 GWh and phase one will achieve 20% of it.

To deal with the intense competition and trade barrier in
overseas markets, the Group has started our overseas
production capacity expansion plan in Vietnam to fulfill part
of the demand from other countries and enhance our cost
competitiveness in the future.
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SLI batteries

In 2017, SLI batteries contributed 51.6% of total growth in
revenue of batteries. In the PRC, volume delivered to auto
makers and aftermarket distributors increased approximately
45% and 87%, respectively. Although selling and distribution
expenses were higher due to investment in distribution
network, the Group enjoyed a fast expansion in the
aftermarket and maintain high growth rate of sales to auto
makers. The Group believes that this category will continue
enjoying high growth rate mainly due to the prevailing
favorable business environment for SLI batteries in the PRC.
Sufficient resources will be put in to continue enlarging
our customer bases and penetrate the market. Areas like
R&D, production, product quality, sales and marketing
including distribution network will be enhanced. The Group
is determined and working towards becoming one of the top
suppliers of SLI batteries in the PRC.

To cope with the expected growth, the Group has started
the production capacity expansion plans in the PRC and
Vietnam. The future additional production capacity for SLI
batteries is critical for the Group to become one of the
leading suppliers of SLI batteries in the PRC and fuffill part
of the future demand from other countries. These new
production plants will be equipped with the most automatic
production machinery and process which will further enhance
our cost efficiency and competitive power.

According to various researches and analyses, the PRC will
be the largest market for SLI batteries by 2020. The majority
of the growth will come from the aftermarket segment
mainly due to ageing of the vehicle fleet in the country
which accelerates car owners’ need to replace the existing
batteries. By 2020, about 77% of the vehicles in the PRC
will be over 3 years old, the average age at which the battery
needs to be replaced as compared to 66% in 2015. With
more than 90 million new vehicles expected to be added
over the next three years, the demand for SLI batteries will
remain robust.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2017
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Motive power batteries

In 2017, motive power batteries contributed 15.4% of total
growth in revenue of batteries. In the PRC, volume delivered
to low-speed electric vehicles and electric forklifts markets
increased by approximately 45% and 53%, respectively. In
terms of total revenue and volume delivered, motive power
batteries maintain the highest growth rate when we add
back the export business. The Group is confident that this
category will continue growing at high speed.

In 2018, like other categories, areas like R&D, production,
product quality, sales and marketing including distribution
network will continue to be enhanced. The Group has started
the production capacity expansion plan in existing factories in
the PRC in view of the future fast volume growth.

The demand for motive power batteries has been propelled
by the extensive promotion and application of the batteries
in electric transportation and equipment such as low-speed
electric vehicles and electric forklifts.

Low-speed electric vehicles as commuter tools to solve the
transportation demand between county and township is the
most favorable solution nowadays. The current low-speed
electric vehicle market has 5 million vehicles and is expected
to reach 10 million by 2020 with battery market size reaching
RMB8.4 billion.

In the PRC, the proportion of electrical forklifts increased
year-on-year from 38.4% in 2016 to 40.3% in 2017. The
market share of electric forklift in the European Union, the
United States and Japan is more than 70% and continues
growing. The gap is bound to be further narrowed in the PRC
at a faster pace. Furthermore, driven by the combination
factors of tighter environmental requirements, the rapid
development of e-commence logistics and the competitive
advantage of construction machinery export, electric forklift
market is expected to enter a new period of rapid growth.
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Overseas Market

The Group is the top exporter in the PRC for lead-acid
battery. In 2016, the Group has around RMB2,489.8 million
overseas sales and mostly exported from the PRC. In 2017,
overseas sales reached RMB3,075.5 million, a growth rate
of 23.5% as compared to 2016 figure. Leoch is a reputable
brand in overseas market especially in the reserve power
segment. More resources will be put in to sustain or enlarge
the growth rate in 2018.

The Group has concluded that more resources should be put
in to further develop the business in Europe for the next few
years to accelerate the business growth.

On 22 December 2017, the Group signed a joint venture
and shareholders’ agreement with DBSG (UK) Limited to
acquire 60% stake in DBS Energy Limited (the “DBSE”), a
trading company in the United Kingdom which imports and
sells batteries to the domestic market, in order to strengthen
business in the United Kingdom and it is ready for further
expansion.

In the last quarter of 2017, the Group has established a
wholly owned trading company in France. There are plans
to establish other sales operations in Italy and Germany in
2018.

Recycled Lead

The acquisition of 60% stake in Taihe Dahua Energy
Technology Co. Ltd. provides the Group with a tremendous
opportunity to enter the lead recycling industry and the 2017
financial results were better than expected. Moving forward,
expansion to further increase the production capacity has
been planned for 2018 and 2019. We believe the size of our
recycling business will continue to grow at high CAGR in the
next 2-3 years.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2017
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Due to environment protection policy, the Chinese
recycling lead industry became an important component
of the Chinese lead industry. The newly implemented
“Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China” eliminated those unqualified capacity because of
higher environmental protection standards in place. New
policies and regulations promote the regulatory development
of recycling lead industry. The rectification of the industry
has created a good opportunity for lead-acid battery
manufacturing enterprises to enter upstream resource
processing.

Compared with other developed countries like the United
States and the European Union in which proportion of
recycled lead accounted for total annual lead consumption
of 90% and 60% respectively, the Chinese recycling lead
industry with only around 40% recycled lead in the market
has a lot of room to grow.

Financial Review

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s revenue
amounted to RMB9,465.4 million, representing an increase of
51.1% compared to the year ended 31 December 2016. The
profit for the year amounted to RMB271.5 million for the year
ended 2017 as compared to RMB231.8 million for the year
ended 2016, of which the profit attributable to the owners
of the parent amounted to RMB242.9 million as compared
to RMB241.9 million for the corresponding period in 2016.
Basic profit per share for the year ended 31 December 2017
was RMBO0.18.

Revenue

The Group’s revenue from battery business increased by
22.3% from RMB6,262.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2016 to RMB7,661.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2017.

The Group’s revenue from recycled lead products amounted
to RMB1,754.8 million (2016: Nil).
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The revenue of reserve power batteries slightly increased
by 8.2% from RMB4,319.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2016 to RMB4,674.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2017, as a result of strong market demand of
UPS and other consumer product batteries compensating for
a plunge in market demand for telecommunication batteries.
The revenue of SLI batteries increased by 50.0% from
RMB1,442.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2016
to RMB2,164.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2017, which was primarily due to the enlarged customer
bases and intensive market penetration as a result of
continuing investment in SLI batteries. The revenue of motive
power batteries increased by 76.4% from RMB281.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2016 to RMB497.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017, which was mainly
attributable to the substantially increased sales of batteries
used by electric vehicles and forklifts. Details of the Group’s
revenue for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016
by category of batteries are set out below:
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2017 2016
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Percentage  Percentage Percentage
Revenue share increase Revenue share
Product category ERER Wi FEEA BRE W#E Bl

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT
Reserve power batteries BREMD 4,674,185 49.4% 8.2% 4,319,624 69.0%
SLI batteries REE 2,164,669 22.9% 50.0% 1,442,831 23.0%
Motive power batteries BNEL 497,012 5.3% 76.4% 281,793 4.5%
Others Hith 325,477 3.4% 48.9% 218,622 3.5%
Sub-total Nt 7,661,343 81.0% 22.3% 6,262,870 100%
Recycling lead products Bk EE i 1,754,834 185%  NATER - -
Others Hith 49,267 0.5% N/A NEH - -
Total Ch 9,465,444 100% 51.1% 6,262,870 100%
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Geographically, the Group’s customers are principally located
in the PRC, the European Union, the United States and
other Asian countries/areas. The Group recorded different
degrees of growth in its sales in the PRC, the United States,
the European Union, other Asian countries/areas and other
secondary market.

The Group’s sales revenue in the PRC increased by
69.4% from RMB3,773.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2016 to RMB6,389.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2017, representing 67.5% of the Group’s
total revenue (2016: 60.2%). The significant increase was
mainly due to the contribution from the lead recycling and
remanufacturing business, which was acquired on 9 January
2017, and comparatively strong market demand of lead-acid
battery in the PRC during the Period.

The Group’s sales revenue in the European Union and
United States increased by 18.5% and17.5% from
RMB761.7 million and RMB762.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2016 to RMB902.9 milion and RMB895.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2017, respectively,
which was mainly due to the Group’s increased marketing
efforts in developing the European Union and United States.
The Group’s sales revenue in other Asian countries/areas
and other countries increased by 29.4% and 39.1% from
RMB685.8 million and RMB280.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2016 to RMB887.5 million and RMB389.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2017, respectively,
which was mainly due to the increase in sales to existing
customers during the Period.
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The following revenue information is based on the location of
the customers for the years ended 31 December 2017 and

NTREEZE-_Z—+tFR_F
=t BUEFEREFPAEMEE S

—R"F+=A
ry U 25 &

2016: ¥
2017 2016
ZE—+F —E-RE
Percentage  Percentage Percentage
Revenue share increase Revenue share
WE  FEEAk BR®Z Wz MBS
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR
PRC FREIARE 6,389,915 67.5% 69.4% 3,773,107 60.2%
European Union Be 902,930 9.5% 18.5% 761,715 12.2%
United States of America ZHBERE 895,555 9.5% 17.5% 762,237 12.2%
Other Asian countries/areas HimMER /R 887,497 9.4% 29.4% 685,775 10.9%
Other countries HiBIR 389,547 4.1% 39.1% 280,036 4.5%
Total A&t 9,465,444 100% 51.1% 6,262,870 100%
Cost of Sales SHER AR
The Group’s cost of sales increased by 58.5% from ZAEBMEERAREE —_T—NF+ - A

RMB5,237.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2016
to RMB8,302.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2017, mainly because of the increased lead price and
addition of lead recycling and manufacturing business.

Gross Profit

The Group’s gross profit increased by 13.4% from
RMB1,025.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2016
to RMB1,162.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2017, mainly attributable to the addition of lead recycling and
manufacturing business during the Period. The overall gross
profit margin decreased from 16.4% for the year ended 31
December 2016 to 12.3% for the year ended 31 December
2017. The decrease was mainly because the lead price
hike cannot be fully transferred to customers. It was further
compounded by the relatively low gross margin from lead
recycling and manufacturing business.
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Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains increased by 54.7% from RMB65.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to RMB101.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2017, which was
primarily due to the recognition of foreign exchange gains
and increased government grants during the Period.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution costs increased by
23.8% from RMB296.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2016 to RMB367.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2017, primarily due to the increased salaries
of sale personnel as a result of sale force expansion and
distribution network building and freight charges, which was
in line with the increased sales during the Period.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 16.1%
from RMB224.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2016 to RMB260.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2017, mainly due to the acquisitions of new business during
the period.

R&D Expenses

The development expenditure of the Group increased
by 40.5% from RMB101.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2016 to RMB143.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2017. The increase in expenditure was mainly
used for performance enhancement of existing products and
development of new products in all categories during the
Period.
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Other Expenses

The Group’s other expenses decreased from RMB75.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to RMB34.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2017, which mainly
comprised losses caused by a fire accident on inventories
and property, plant and equipment of RMB28.2 million
(Please see note 6 of the financial statement for details.)
and loss on remeasurement of the previously held interest
in an associate of RMB2.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2017, as compared to the impairment of trade
receivables of RMB21.9 million and foreign exchange
loss of RMB49.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2016. Supplementary to the fire loss above, the Group had
sufficient insurance policies in place and most of the loss can
be recovered.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs increased by 39.3% from
RMB108.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to
RMB151.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2017,
mainly due to the increased bank borrowings and interest
hike during the Period.

Profit before Tax

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded
profit before tax of RMB306.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 as compared to RMB280.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense decreased by 27.5% from RMB48.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to RMB35.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2017, mainly
because assessable profits from the lead-acid battery
business decreased while no profit from the lead recycling
and remanufacturing business was subject to tax during the
Period.
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Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded
consolidated net profit of RMB271.5 million (2016:
RMB231.8 million) for the year ended 31 December 2017, of
which the Group recorded profit attributable to the owners of
the parent of RMB242.9 million (2016: RMB241.9 million) for
the same period.

Net Current Assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net current assets
of RMB209.9 million (2016: RMB759.2 million). The Group’s
current assets mainly consist of inventories, trade and bills
receivables, cash and bank balances, prepayments, deposits
and other receivables. The Group’s current liabilities mainly
consist of trade and bills payables, other payables and
accruals, and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Inventories

Inventories constituted one of the principal components
of the Group’s current assets. As at 31 December 2017,
the Group had inventories of RMB1,872.3 million (2016:
RMB1,127.1 million). Inventories increased significantly as a
result of a surge of customer orders at the end of the Period
which will be delivered in the first quarter of 2018. A surge of
raw material prices compared to 2016 also contributed to the
increase.

Trade and Other Receivables

(a)  Trade and bills receivables

The Group’s trade and bills receivables primarily related
to receivables for goods sold to its customers. As at
31 December 2017, the Group had trade and bills
receivables of RMB2,526.6 million (2016: RMB2,264.4
million). The increase in trade and bills receivables was
primarily due to significant increase in shipments at the
end of the Period.
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(b)  Prepayments, deposits and other receivables b FETHIE T2 REMELHIE
The Group’s prepayments and deposits mostly related AEBENBENREBEETSTZEHBEERM
to the purchase of raw materials. As at 31 December BRE@E-N_ZE—+tF+-_A=+—H =K
2017, the Group had prepayments, deposits and other SEEENFIE FekEMERFIBBAR
receivables of RMB174.4 million (2016: RMB134.7 17448 8T (ZE— R F: AR¥134.7
million). The increase in prepayments, deposits and BEL) cTBIHRIEA 5] & R E A E KA
other receivables as compared to 2016 was primarily BT R"FEMDEEHR BRI
because the Group increased its prepayments for raw BMEBHAN - N\FYVHRIOTIEE
materials in order to meet the expected strong market SK i 3G A0 BR M R R A SRIB FTEL
demand of lead acid batteries in the early period of
2018.

Trade and Bills Payables EZENRERENERE

The Group’s trade and bills payables primarily relate to its AEBENEZEFENZERENZEHE I DHES

purchase of raw materials for production. As at 31 December 4 EFMENEMEEB R -_Z—+F+ A
2017, the Group had trade and bills payables of RMB1,665.2 =+—H AEEEE ZENZEREMNEZE A
million (2016: RMB1,631.5 million). The trade and bills ER#1,665. 28 &7t (=T — 4 : ARK1,631.5
payables increased slightly because the increase in trade B &7T) ° Z 5 BN 2 E & FE R Z48 /) i 1 hn2
payables as a result of the Group’s increased procurement B /A EN AR D 7 AN B E 2 2 551 1
for increased turnover was compensated by the decrease in M3 HNERAE BB A E 5 FE R FRIBE N - BN 2
bill payables as the Group less used the bill payables which — BIE 2 TR A EB &R L EN A AL B AR R HE
were issued on intercompany sales transactions within the  $5E % 5% MR BIRENIR FIR{TIER R E 2
Group and discounted to banks for short term financing B2 o

during the Period.
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Other Payables and Accruals

The Group’s other payables and accruals primarily consisted
of provision for social insurance and retirement benefits,
payments for its expenditures related to construction and
renovation of its production facilities, payments in connection
with transportation charges, advance payments from
customers for shipments, tax payables other than current
income tax liabilities and accruals for payroll and benefits
for its employees. As at 31 December 2017, the Group had
other payables and accruals of RMB706.5 million (2016:
RMB542.9 million), the increase was mainly due to loan from
non-controlling shareholders and remaining consideration
payable to non-controlling shareholders as a result of
acquisition of Taihe Dahua Energy technology Co., Ltd and
the increased VAT payables and consumption tax payables.

Capital Expenditures

During the Period, the Group invested RMB314.2 million
(2016: RMB207.8 million) in property, plant and equipment
for its new production facilities.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s net current assets
amounted to RMB209.9 million (2016: RMB759.2 million),
among which cash and bank deposits amounted to
RMB941.2 million (2016: RMB705.2 million). As at 31
December 2017, the Group had bank borrowings of
RMB3,013.9 million (2016: RMB1,763.5 million), all of which
are interest-bearing. Except for borrowings of RMB109.3
million (2016: RMB488.5 million) which has a maturity over
one year, all of the Group’s bank borrowings were repayable
within one year. The Group’s borrowings were denominated
in RMB, US dollars, HK dollars, Singapore dollars, Malaysian
ringgits and Australian dollars, and the effective interest rates
of which as of 31 December 2017 were 1.50% to 7.53%
(2016: 1.50% to 7.53%).
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A portion of the Group’s bank borrowings was secured
by pledges over certain assets of the Group including
property, plant and equipment, leasehold lands, deposits and
trade and bills receivables. As at 31 December 2017, the
Group’s gearing ratio was 34.9% (2016: 25.7%), which was
calculated by dividing total borrowings by total assets as at
the end of each respective period, multiplied by 100%.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as
at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group operated primarily in the PRC. For the Group’s
companies in the PRC, their principal activities were
transacted in RMB. For other companies outside of
the PRC, their principal activities were transacted in US
dollars. However, as a result of the Group’s revenue being
denominated in RMB, the conversion into foreign currencies
in connection with payments is subject to regulatory
restrictions on currency conversion in the PRC. The value
of the RMB against the US dollars and other currencies
may fluctuate and is affected by, among other things,
change in the political and economic conditions in the PRC.
The Group’s product sales adopted a price mechanism
by which the currency fluctuation is basically transferred
to the customers, but the Group’s foreign currency trade
receivables may still be exposed to risk in the credit
period. The Group will use forward currency contracts to
eliminate the foreign currency exposures arising from sales
denominated in US dollars if needed. The forward currency
contracts must be in the same currency as the hedged item,
i.e. US dollars.
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Material Acquisition and Disposal

On 18 November 2016, Anhui Uplus New Energy Material
Technology Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an agreement with independent third parties in relation to
the proposed acquisition of 60% of the registered capital of
Taihe Dahua Energy Technology Co., Ltd., a company in the
PRC principally engaged in the recycle and remanufacture
of lead from disposed batteries at a cash consideration of
RMB115,200,000. The acquisition was completed on 9
January 2017 and a total amount of RMB115,200,000 has
been paid to the vendors as at the date of this report.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiary, associated company or
joint venture by the Group during the Period.

Employees

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 13,958
employees. Employee benefit expenses (including directors’
remuneration), which comprised wages and salaries,
performance-related bonuses, equity-settled share option
expenses and retirement benefit scheme contributions,
totaled RMB799.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: RMB646.2 million).

The Group has a share option scheme for selected
participants as incentive and reward for their contribution to
the Group. A mandatory provident fund scheme and local
retirement benefit schemes are also in effect. The Group
encourages employees to receive continuing education
and training to strengthen their work skills and for personal
development. The Group also provides workshops for
staff at different levels to enhance their knowledge of work
safety and to build up team spirit. Staff are rewarded based
on performance of the Group as well as on individual
performance and contribution.
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EENSHREEE

Executive Directors

DONG Li(¥2Z), aged 51, is an executive director,
chairman of the Board and nomination committee, a member
of the remuneration committee and founder of the Company.
Mr. Dong has been appointed as executive director since 27
April 2010, the date of the incorporation of our Company.
Mr. Dong is a controlling shareholder of the Company. He is
also one of the authorised representatives of the Company
and serving as director for various subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Dong also serves as director for various private wholly
owned companies which include investment holding and
manufacturing enterprise.

Mr. Dong obtained an EMBA degree from National University
of Singapore in 2015. Mr. Dong graduated from Xi’an
International Studies College, the predecessor of Xi’an
International Studies University, in 1990 with a Bachelor of
Arts degree and Northwest Textile University of Science and
Technology, the predecessor of Xi'an Polytechnic University,
in 1988 with a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering.

Contributing to his business experience and social
participation, he received various recognitions and honours
in the past including Outstanding China Non governmental
Entrepreneur (R BB & R & B %K), Rising Star
Entrepreneur of Shenzhen CRIII[BIZ £ ), Honorary
Citizen (42 MR ) of Zhaoging City in China and Texas in
the United States.

Mr. Dong also holds the positions of part-time professor of
National University of Singapore EMBA degree and Shanghai
University and visiting professor of the Xi'an Polytechnic
University.
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Mr. Dong also holds social positions including Council
Member of China Overseas Exchange Association ( 7 B )&
HNZ T E ) , overseas member of All-China Federation of
Returned Overseas Chinese (P B &8 ) , Vice Chairman of
Supervisory Board of China Overseas Chinese Entrepreneurs
Association (R BB E WS ), Honorary Chairman
of the Chinese CEO Organization (EH TEH <€),
Honorary Chairman of American Chinese National Chamber
of Commerce (EEIZE AR ), Vice Chairman of Anhui
Province Overseas Exchange Association ( Z#& /&M 32
&), Honorary Chairman of Shenzhen Federation of
Returned Overseas Chinese CRYIEEE) , Council Member
of Harmony Club of Shenzhen CEYIT E/DMELEEE) , and
Vice President of Guangdong High-Tech Industry Chamber.

Mr. Dong personally did not hold any share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2017.

ZHAO Huan (##) , aged 41, is an executive director and
chief executive officer of the Company. Ms. Zhao has been
appointed as executive director since 11 June 2010.

Ms. Zhao graduated from Guangdong Economics
Management Cadre College specializing in Finance in 1996
and from the University of Hertfordshire in the UK in 2004
with a Master of Arts degree in International Business.

Ms. Zhao is experienced in international sales and
management. Ms. Zhao first joined the Group in 2004 as
a foreign trade officer. She was subsequently promoted to
foreign trade manager, deputy general manager of foreign
trade department, vice president and finally to her current
position, in which her responsibilities focus more on the
overall management and strategic development of the
Group.

Ms. Zhao personally held 1,800,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2017.
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Non-executive Director

Philip Armstrong NOZNESKY, aged 77, is a non-executive
director of the Company and former president of Leoch
Battery Corporation; a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.
Mr. Noznesky served as an executive director from June
2010 to August 2016. He has been a non-executive director
since September 2016.

Mr. Noznesky graduated from Xavier University in 1962 with
a Bachelor’s degree in Sciences and obtained a Master of
Arts degree in Russian History from Georgetown University
in 1965. He joined the Group in 2007 as president of Leoch
Battery Corp. in charge of the sale and distribution of our
products in the U.S. market.

Before joining the Group, Mr. Noznesky served in executive
management positions with a number of major battery
manufacturers; among them General Battery Corporation,
GNB Inc. and Accumuladores Mexicanas. He has over
40 years of management experience in the global battery
industry.

Mr. Noznesky personally held 1,500,000 share options and
400,000 shares in the Company as at 31 December 2017
respectively.
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Independent Non-executive
Directors

LAU Chi Kit (8|5 #t) , aged 73, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive director, the chairman of
the remuneration committee, a member of the nomination
committee and a member of the audit committee of the
Company since 17 September 2014.

He retired from The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited (‘HSBC”) in December 2000 after more
than 35 years’ of service. Among the senior positions in
HSBC, he was the Assistant General Manager and Head
of Personal Banking Hong Kong and Assistant General
Manager and Head of Strategic Implementation, Asia-
Pacific Region. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers (“Institute”). He was the chairman of the Institute’s
Executive Committee (from January 1999 to December
2000) and is currently an Honorary Advisor of the Institute’s
Executive Committee. He served as a member on a number
of committees appointed by the Government of Hong Kong
Special Administration Region, including the Advisory Council
on the Environment (from October 1998 to December 2001),
the Advisory Committee on Human Resources Development
in the Financial Services Sector (from June 2000 to May
2001), the Corruption Prevention Advisory Committee of the
Independent Commission Against Corruption (from January
2000 to December 2003), the Environment and Conservation
Fund Committee (from August 2000 to October 2006), the
Innovation and Technology Fund (Environment) Projects
Vetting Committee (from January 2000 to December 2004)
and the Law Reform Commission’s Privacy Sub-committee
(from February 1990 to March 2006). He also served as
Chairman of the Business Environment Council Ltd. (from
September 1998 to December 2001).
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Currently, he is also an executive director of Chinlink
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 997) and is an
independent non executive director of Royale Furniture
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1198), Century Sunshine
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 509), Janco Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8035), Hin Sang Group (International)
Holding Co Ltd (stock code: 6893). The shares of Chinlink
International Holdings Limited, Royale Furniture Holdings
Limited, Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited, Hin
Sang Group (International) Holding Co Ltd, are listed on
the Main Board and Janco Holdings Limited on the GEM
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. He retired from
Hua Long Jin Kong Company Limited (formerly known as
Highlight China IOT International Limited) (stock code: 1682)
as an executive director in 2017.

Mr. Lau personally held 300,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2017.
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CAO Yixiong Alan (&7~ ) |, aged 49, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director, chairman of the
audit committee and a member of remuneration committee
of the Company since 14 October 2010.

Mr. Cao holds a Bachelor's degree in Accounting from
Sonoma State University and an MBA degree from the
Anderson School of the University of California, Los Angeles.
He worked at the auditing department of Coopers &
Lybrand between 1993 and 1996, and obtained his CPA
license (California, United States) in 1996. From 1997 to
2002, he worked at J.P. Morgan and Merrill Lynch in their
respective private banking divisions. Since 2002, he has
been the Executive Director of Etech Capital, a subsidiary
of Etech Securities, Inc., responsible for its Greater China
private equity advisory business. He is also currently the
Chief Executive Officer, Director and Founding Partner of
Shanghai Great Wall Etech Capital Management Company,
a joint venture between China Great Wall Asset Management
Company, one of the largest Chinese asset management
companies, and Etech Group. Mr. Cao is also currently the
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors of Chongqging Tongli
Heavy Machinery Manufacturing Co., LTD.

Mr. Cao personally held 300,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2017.
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Mr. LIU Yangsheng (2R3 4) , aged 71, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director and a member of the
audit committee as well as the nomination committee on 14
October 2010.

Mr. Liu studied wireless communications at Beijing College of
Posts and Telecommunications, the predecessor of Beijing
University of Posts and Telecommunications, from 1965 to
1970.

After that, he worked at Beijing College of Posts and
Telecommunications for more than 10 years until 1984. Mr.
Liu joined the Ministry of Posts and Telecommunications,
the predecessor of Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology, in 1984, and served as the director of the
cadre members department, and deputy director and then
director of the human resources department. Mr. Liu retired
from the Ministry of Information Industry, the predecessor
of Ministry of Industry and Information Technology, in 2007.
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology is responsible
for the overall management such as promulgation of
industry policies and strategies, implementation of laws and
regulations, and assessment for approvals and permits of the
telecommunication industry in the PRC which covers aspects
of telecommunication equipment such as telecommunication
batteries. Therefore, during his time with Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology and its predecessor, Mr. Liu
had the experience in working in the telecommunication
battery area. Mr. Liu is now the chairman of Cosmos Posts
& Telecommunications International Leasing Co., Ltd. (}2=F
MEBHEHEEGR A A)) and a supervisor of Viton Wireless
Technology AG, a company listed on the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange (stock code: CHEN99).

Mr. Liu personally held 300,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2017.
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Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary

Mr. CHOW Kam Keung Albert, aged 53, joined the
Company as chief financial officer and company secretary in
1 November 2015.

Mr. Chow has over 30 years of experience in accounting,
auditing, tax, information system, corporate finance and
management. Prior to joining the Company, he had held
various senior positions with public companies listed in Hong
Kong which mostly are manufacturing enterprises. Mr. Chow
obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration with
double majors in Accounting and Management Information
Systems in 1986 and a Master’s degree in Accounting in
1987 from the University of Hawaii in the United States. He
is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a CFA charter holder and a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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B/ Report of the Directors

ESEWRE

The Board is pleased to submit the annual report together
with the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017 which have been audited by the
Company’s auditor Ernst & Young and reviewed by the audit
committee of the Company.

Principal Activities and
Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2017 are set out in note 1 to the financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segments is set out in note 4 to the financial
statements.

Key Risks and Uncertainties

Risks and uncertainties involved in the business operations
of the Group may affect the Group’s financial conditions
or growth prospects. The Group has been focusing on
the control of risks and uncertainties with the aim of
understanding and addressing the concerns of stakeholders.
Key risk factors and uncertainties affecting the Group are
outlined below:

1) Substantially all of our revenue is derived from batteries
using lead-acid technology. If the lead-acid battery
market does not grow at the rate we expect or at
all, or if lead-acid technology is replaced by another
technology, our business, profitability and future
prospects may be materially and adversely affected;

2)  The recent array of tariffs against numerous countries
by the US government and the tariff plans for up to
USD50 billion in Chinese imports, any global economic
downturn, or changes in the economic, political and
social conditions in the PRC may have an adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects;
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If we are unable to successfully develop new
technology or new products, our business, results of
operations and prospects may be adversely affected;

We derive a significant portion of our income
from our major customers, particularly UPS and
telecommunications customers, and we have no long-
term sales contracts with our customers. Our results of
operations could be adversely affected if we lose these
customers;

We face intense competition in our major markets and
continuing pressure to reduce our production costs to
remain price competitive;

Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials, such as
lead, could materially and adversely affect our results of
operations; in addition, we rely on our major suppliers
for our primary raw materials. Our operations could be
affected if our major suppliers are not able to supply
raw materials as scheduled. More information on major
suppliers is set out on page 63 under the heading
“Major Suppliers and Customers” of the Report of
Directors.

These factors are not exhaustive or comprehensive, and
there may be other risks in addition to those shown above
which are not known to the Group or which may not be
material now but could become material in the future.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on page 92 and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 93.

To reserve fund for acceleration of production capacity
expansion, the Board did not recommend the payment of a
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
5.50 HK cents per share).
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Business Review

A review of the business of the Group during the year and
a discussion on the Group’s future business development,
possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing
and an analysis of the performance of the Group during the
year using key financial performance indicators are set out
in the headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 11 to 33 of the annual report.

Discussions on the Group’s environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group are set out below:

Environmental Policies and
Performance (Environmental
Protection)

The Group is committed to safety and environmental
protection and has implemented stringent environment
protection policies to uphold high standards of operating
practices.

Pursuant to the applicable environmental laws and
regulations in PRC, the Group installed environmental
protection equipment in all of our production facilities for
the removal of lead dust and particles generated during
our production process in order to minimize the amount
of pollutants in the air. The equipment includes ventilation
systems, dust absorbing and removing systems, acidic mist
and lead fumes purifying machines and fresh air pipelines.

The Group installed waste water treatment facilities at our
production facilities. The water treatment facility neutralizes
the waste water and removes its lead content in accordance
with the applicable environmental standards in PRC. At our
Zhaoqging and Anhui production facilities, the purified water
is collected and reused in our production process, thus
achieving “zero discharge”.
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Our PRC factories management constantly control and
monitor the waste level. Monitoring systems that provide
ontime reading is connected to local government authorities
in charge of environment protection for real-time monitoring
purpose.

During the Period, the Group provided sufficient resources to
upgrade and enhance the level of environmental protection.
Most of our factories have passed the environment protection
inspection in 2017 with one factory entered the list of
approval of industry access inspection released by the
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology.

Compliance with laws and regulations

Compliance procedure are in place to ensure adherence
to applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those
have significant impact on the Group. The Group holds high
standards of operating practices and complies with the
relevant standards. The Group has stringent requirements
to maintain high levels of quality control and responsible
business practices. Any changes in the applicable laws,
rules and regulations are brought to the attention of relevant
employees and relevant operation units on a timely basis to
ensure that adjustments are made in our procedures and
operations to reflect such changes.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the operations of the Group.

Relationship with Employees, Suppliers and
Customers

The Group believes that employees are important asset
and provides competitive remuneration packages to
attract and retain employees. The management regularly
reviews the Group’s remuneration to its employees to be
up to prevailing market standards. Furthermore, the Group
provides employee training programs to polish their skills
and knowledge and a number of staff activities to enhance
employees’ sense of belonging and to help create a friendly
and harmonious working environment.
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The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil
its long-term goals and development. To maintain its brand
competitiveness and dominant status, the Group aims at
delivering constantly high standards of quality in the service
to its customers. During the year ended 31 December 2017,
there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 96 to 97 and in note
45 to the financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are
set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

The Company’s reserves available for distribution comprise
the share premium account and shareholder’s contribution
less accumulated losses. As at 31 December 2017, the
reserves of the Company available for distribution to
shareholders amounted to approximately RMB1,351.5 million
(2016: approximately RMB1,519.0 million).

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results of the Group and of the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on pages 275 to 276 of this
annual report.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of
Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Directors

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the
year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. DONG Li (Chairman)
Ms. ZHAO Huan (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Philip Armstrong NOZNESKY
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LIU Yangsheng

Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan

Mr. LAU Chi Kit

Dr. GONG Fangxiong (resigned on 16 June 2017)

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. DONG
Li and Mr. LAU Chi Kit will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election, at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between the Directors.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years from 17
November 2016, which may be terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

Permitted Indemnity

Subject to the applicable laws, every director and other
officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified by
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur in the execution and discharge of his or her duties
or in relation thereto pursuant to the Company’s Articles of
Association. Such provisions were in force during the course
of the financial year ended 31 December 2017 and remained
in force as of the date of this report.

The Group has also taken out and maintained directors’
liability insurance throughout the year.

Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management members of the Group are set out on pages 34
to 41 in the annual report of the Company.

Changes in Information of Directors

The Company is not aware of other changes in the Directors’
information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior
management members of the Group was based on
qualifications, years of experiences and the performance of
individual employees and are reviewed regularly.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and five highest
paid employees are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares
or Debentures

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements
about the Company’s share option schemes, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Directors or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

Directors Interest in Transaction,
Arrangement or Contract of
Significance

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below, no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or entity connected with the Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions
of each Director and chief executives of the Company in
the shares of the Company which (a) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to

Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) we

re required

under Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register

required to be kept by the Company referred

to in that

section; or (c) were required to be notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Mode

| Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“‘Model Code”) set out in the Listing Rules were as follows:

EENROER AR

~

RZE—tF+A=+—H ARAEFKFE
TBABEBRAR RN HES @IBIRES &
ERBIEXVEBET R8I D B S A A A R P
B AR SK(oIRIEFE 5 & B E 15 15) 5535215
BRBRZIGFTI A AR BRE 2 &M H R
KRB OB IBE ETRBNATE ETMBITAES
EITEFR ZHRESTR ([BESFA]) BHER

RA R PR s SRR AT -

Number and Number and
class of securities class of securities
subject to options subject to options
Number and granted under the granted under the Approximate
class of Pre-IPO Share Share Option percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interest securities™ Option Scheme Scheme Total shareholding®
SHRE
ERDHBES ZRE
BRESHRLY BRESHRLN
BREMRY BREMRY
£3:4 BEME FEYERER BEHARER BEHARER EH BRRRAD LS
Mr. DONG Li Interest under a trust 1,003,059,000"(L) - - 1,003,059,000 73.90%
Y ERETHER
Ms. ZHAO Huan Beneficial Owner - 1,500,000% (1) 300,0009(L) 1,800,000 0.13%
BERL ERfAA
Mr. Philip Armstrong NOZNESKY Beneficial Owner 400,000() 1,500,000 (L) - 1,900,000 0.14%
Philip Armstrong NOZNESKY % 4 EnBAA
Mr. LIU Yangsheng Beneficial Owner - - 300,0009(L) 300,000 0.02%
AGERE EREAA
Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan Beneficial Owner - - 300,000 (L) 300,000 0.02%
EERE ERfAA
Mr. LAU Chi Kit Beneficial Owner - - 300,000 (L) 300,000 0.02%
L ERBEBA
* The letter “L” denotes long position of the shareholder in the  * L] REBRRERABRGFRLTR -
Shares.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2017



Report of the Directors EEE#{& i3

Notes:

Mr. DONG Li is deemed to be interested in 1,003,059,000
shares held by Master Alliance Investment Limited, a company
wholly owned by Jingle Bells Group Limited, which is in turn
wholly owned by DB International Trust (Singapore) Limited.
DB International Trust (Singapore) Limited is the trustee of
a discretionary trust established by Mr. DONG Li and the
beneficiaries of such trust are family members of Mr. DONG
Li. On 21 March 2018, Jingle Bells Group Limited transferred
its entire shareholding in Master Alliance Investment Limited
to Mr. Dong. Mr. Dong is therefore deemed to be interested
in 1,008,059,000 Shares held by Master Alliance Investment
Limited.

Ms. ZHAO Huan has been granted options for 1,500,000 shares
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share
Option” below for further details of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

Ms. ZHAO Huan has been granted options for 300,000 shares
under the Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share Option”
below for further details of the Share Option Scheme.

Mr. Philip Armstrong NOZNESKY has been granted options for
1,600,000 shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
Please see “Share Option” below for further details of the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme.

Mr. LIU Yangsheng has been granted options for 300,000 shares
under the Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share Option”
below for further details of the Share Option Scheme.

Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan has been granted options for 300,000
shares under the Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share
Option” below for further details of the Share Option Scheme.

Mr. LAU Chi Kit has been granted options for 300,000 shares
under the Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share Option”
below for further details of the Share Option Scheme.

This is based on 1,357,271,666 Shares, being the number of
issued Shares as at 31 December 2017.

Wi

B Z WA B Master Alliance Investment
Limited (Jingle Bells Group Limited® & # &
Z AR ) A R1,003,059,0008% B 7 H # A
¥ % MJingle Bells Group Limitedf]#H DB
International Trust (Singapore) Limited® & # & °
DB International Trust (Singapore) Limited 8] &% 2=
SERRYMERETZZAAN  ZETLNZEA
ABEFRENREKE - RZZ—N\F=ZA=+—
A - Jingle Bells Group Limited[f)®E A 8@ = 7%
Master Alliance Investment Limited ) 2 B B% #  #
T AR B Master Alliance Investment Limited
#5 #91,003,059,0000% i& 15 7 1 5 fE 2

BEERAAFAEEMBERETS BEBL LB ER
11,500,000/% B& 17 Y BE AR 3 - &R AR B ERIEER
AT B R — BB R T [ -

RIR A AT 8 - 18 B £ B % H1300,0000% %
R ERRE - BT EIME — S BR T E
fctE] -

RIBEERAREERIERET 2 Phiip Armstrong
NOZNESKY %t 4 B & 5 11,500,000% i% 17 ) B A%
BoEHAAAEERERETENE - PHBRET
it [FEARAE ] o

RIERBRCRERT 8 2054 S5 4 £ 4% 1H 300,000/ %
R ERE - BT M E - SHBR T E
fctE] -

IRIERBRCRERT &) & I 55 A B 4% H 300,000/ %
R ERE - BT M E - SHBR T E
fctE] -

RIERBRCRERT 8 278 55 A B 4% 1H 300,000/ %
R ERE - BT I E -~ S BR T E
fctE] -

#Z A9 TIA1,357,271,666/% 8k 5 (Bl —T—+
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code, nor had there been any grant or exercise of
rights of such interests during the year ended 31 December
2017.

Share Option
A. Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by all
shareholders of the Company on 25 May 2010, the
Company approved and adopted a share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentive or reward to selected
participants for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the Company and
enabling the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees. The number of shares which may be
issued pursuant to the outstanding share options (i.e.
options which have been granted but not yet lapsed
or exercised) under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
as at 31 December 2017 was 17,365,000 shares
(representing approximately 1.3% of the Company’s
total issued share capital as at that date). No further
options will be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

Details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements.
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B. Share Option Scheme B. BRETE

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by all BEARAZEBRAN_Z-FF+HA+M
shareholders of the Company on 14 October 2010, HiBEe —IBEEARS - NA AR
the Company approved and adopted another share H—IEER TS ([BRAESTE]) - REE
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the 2 EE TR E kB R - ISR M AA A
purpose of providing incentive or reward to selected AR IEH BRFIRHER) AR ARES
participants for their contribution to, and continuing STNFIENEMRR R —+tF+=H
efforts to promote the interests of, the Company and =+—B  RIEERERTEIIE T 2 AR TR
for such other purposes as the Board may approve A&t (BPE IR B M AR R T 2 B AE)
from time to time. The number of shares which may be Al FE17 2 IR 8RB £29,174,0000% (FEE R
issued pursuant to the outstanding share options (i.e. ARERE BREEITIRAL92.1%) ©

options which have been granted but not yet lapsed
or exercised) under the Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2017 was 29,174,000 shares (representing
approximately 2.1% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at that date).

Details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in note 33 B B #E &1 B A9 5F 15 70 B 75 3 3% M 33 55 ©
to the financial statements.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares

As at 31 December 2017, the following persons (other than
the directors and chief executives of the Company) had
interests and short positions of 5% or more in the Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section

TERRIROEZN AR

R-TE—tF+ - A=1T—8 REREFLH
IR PIE3B6IRFTF B ERLMACE TIIAL
(TEREARAEZTREZITRAR)FEEN
5% A LM RORR

N
[\ N2

jii

336 of the SFO:
Approximate
Number and class percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest of securities” shareholding®
R EantE HHEHE RER BARRED O
Master Alliance Investment Limited Beneficial Owner 1,003,059,000 (L) 73.90%
EHBEAA
Jingle Bells Group Limited™ Interest of Controlled 1,003,059,000 (L) 73.90%
Corporation
REREENER
DB International Trust (Singapore) Limited? Interest under a Trust 1,003,059,000 (L) 73.90%

ERE TR

*

The Letter “L” denotes long position of the shareholder in the
shares of the Company.

Notes:

(1) Jingle Bells Group Limited is deemed to be interested in
1,003,059,000 shares which are held by Master Alliance
Investment Limited, a company wholly owned by Jingle Bells
Group Limited. On 21 March 2018, Jingle Bells Group Limited
transferred its entire shareholding in Master Alliance Investment
Limited to Mr. Dong. Mr. Dong is therefore deemed to be
interested in 1,003,059,000 Shares held by Master Alliance
Investment Limited.

2 DB International Trust (Singapore) Limited is deemed to be
interested in 1,003,059,000 shares held by Master Alliance
Investment Limited, a company wholly owned by Jingle Bells
Group Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by DB International
Trust (Singapore) Limited. DB International Trust (Singapore)
Limited is also the trustee of a discretionary trust established
by Mr. DONG Li and the beneficiaries of such trust are family
members of Mr. DONG Li.
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(8)  This is based on 1,357,271,666 Shares, being the number of
issued Shares as at 31 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2017, no person,
other than the Directors whose interests and short positions
are set out in the section headed “Directors’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares” above, had an interest or a short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Connected Transactions

Details of the Group’s related party transactions for the
year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements, some of which also
constituted connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the above-mentioned transactions.
The continuing connected transactions and connected
transactions entered into by the Group in 2017, which were
required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules, are set out
as follows:
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Continuing connected transaction which A.

is exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement, but
subject to the reporting, announcement
and annual review requirements

Leases with Mr. Dong Li and his Associates

The Company and Mr. DONG Li (our controlling
shareholder and executive Director holding about
73.90% of the issued share capital of the Company and
thus a connected person) renewed the master leasing
agreement dated 8 November 2012 and entered into a
new master leasing agreement dated 21 March 2016
(the “2016 Master Leasing Agreement’). Pursuant
to the 2016 Master Leasing Agreement, members
of the Group will lease from Mr. DONG Li and/or his
associates properties for the use by members of the
Group. Individual tenancy agreement will be entered
into between members of the Group and Mr. DONG
Li and/or his associates with respect to the leasing
arrangement of individual leased property. The 2016
Master Leasing Agreement is for a term of three years
from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018. Upon
expiry of the term, the 2016 Master Leasing Agreement
will, subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules,
be renewed for further period of three years by mutual
agreement. The annual caps for the transactions under
the 2016 Master Leasing Agreement for each of the
three years ended 31 December 2018 have been set
at RMB3.5 million, RMB3.5 million and RMB3.5 million
respectively. For the year ended 31 December 2017
the aggregate rent paid by the Group under the 2016
Master Leasing Agreement was approximately RMB3.2
million.
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Continuing connected transaction
subject to the reporting, announcement,
annual review and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements

0

Sales of Products to Connected Persons

The Company and Mr. DONG Li renewed the
master agreement dated 25 October 2012 and
entered into a new master agreement dated
13 October 2015 (the “2015 Master Sales
Agreement”), which sets out the terms and
conditions upon which members of the Group will
sell to Mr. DONG Li’s associates, and Mr. DONG
Li’'s associates will purchase from members of
the Group, products including leadacid batteries,
mainly start lighting and ignition batteries, reserve
power batteries and motive power batteries,
and related parts. The products to be sold
and purchased under the 2015 Master Sales
Agreement shall be at the prevailing market price,
namely, the price at which the same type of
products is sold by us to independent third parties
on normal commercial terms in the ordinary
course of business in the PRC. The 2015 Master
Sales Agreement is for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2016 and ending on
31 December 2018. Upon expiry of the term, the
2015 Master Sales Agreement will, subject to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, be renewed for
further period of three years by mutual agreement.
The annual caps for the transactions under the
2015 Master Sales Agreement for each of the
three years ending 31 December 2018 have
been set at RMB100.0 million, RMB150.0 million
and RMB200.0 million respectively. For the year
ended 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount
received by the Group under the 2015 Master
Sales Agreement was approximately RMB84.3
million.
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(i)

Purchase of Products from Connected Persons

The Company and Mr. DONG Li renewed the
master agreement dated 25 October 2012 and
entered into a new master agreement dated 13
October 2015 (the “2015 Master Purchase
Agreement”), which sets out the terms and
conditions upon which members of the Group
will purchase from Mr. DONG Li’s associates, and
Mr. DONG Li’s associates will sell to members
of the Group, products including battery cases,
parts, models, chargers and electronic products
(for the manufacturing of the Group’s battery
products or sale as accessories of the Group’s
battery products) and electric scooters (for use by
members of the Group). The products to be sold
and purchased under the 2015 Master Purchase
Agreement shall be at the prevailing market
price, namely, the price at which the same type
of products is sold to the Group by independent
third parties on normal commercial terms in the
ordinary course of business in the PRC. The 2015
Master Purchase Agreement is for a term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2016 and
ending on 31 December 2018. Upon expiry of
the term, the 2015 Master Purchase Agreement
will, subject to the requirements of the Listing
Rules, be renewed for further period of three years
by mutual agreement. The annual caps for the
transactions under the 2015 Master Purchase
Agreement for each of the three year ending
31 December 2018 have been set at RMB40.0
million, RMB50.0 million and RMB60.0 million
respectively. For the year ended 31 December
2017, the aggregate amount paid by the Group
under the 2015 Master Purchase Agreement was
approximately RMB30.6 million.
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Purchase of Facilities from Connected Persons

The Company entered into a master agreement
dated 13 October 2015 with Mr. Dong Li
(the “2015 Master Facilities Purchases
Agreement”) which sets out the terms and
conditions upon which members of the Group will
purchase from Mr. Dong Li’s associates, and Mr.
Dong Li's associates will sell to members of the
Group, battery facilities. The purchase price of
battery facilities by the Group shall be determined
at 8% discount to the average purchase prices of
similar battery facilities as obtained by the Group
from two independent third parties 30 days prior
to the date of relevant purchase order. The 2015
Master Facilities Purchases Agreement is for a
term commencing from 1 November 2015 up to
31 December 2017. The caps for the transactions
under the 2015 Master Facilities Purchases
Agreement for two months ended 31 December
2015 and each of the two years ending 31
December 2017 have been set at RMB60.0
million, RMB100.0 million and RMB100.0 million.
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the
aggregate amount paid by the Group under the
2015 Master Facilities Purchase Agreement was
approximately RMB27.5 million.

The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions
under paragraphs (A) and (B) above and
confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group;

(2)  normal commercial terms or better; and

(i)
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(8) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transaction on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued its unqualified letter
containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group above in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Board confirms that the Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in relation to the aforementioned
connected transaction and continuing connected
transactions.
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Disclosure under Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules

Pursuant to the term of a loan facility agreement (the
“Facility Agreement”) dated 8 May 2017 and entered into,
among other parties, the Company as borrower, five of its
subsidiaries as guarantors, China Citic Bank International
Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited and The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited as mandated lead
arrangers and bookrunners, and various financial institutions
as lenders, a term loan facility of US$200,000,000 (the
‘Loan”) was made available to the Group for general
corporate purposes including, but not limited to financing
working capital and refinancing or full repayment of existing
indebtedness due under the term and revolving facility made
available to the Group in 2015.

The Loan is repayable in five instalments as to 10%, 10%,
10%, 20% and 50% on the dates falling 12, 18, 24, 30 and
36 months respectively after the utilisation date of the Loan.

If, among other matters: (i) Mr. Dong Li (“Mr. Dong”) does not
or ceases to own, directly or indirectly, at least 51% of the
beneficial interest in the Company carrying at least 51% of
the voting right, free from any security; (i) Mr. Dong does not
or ceases to have management control over the Company;
and (i) Mr. Dong is not or ceases to be the chairman of
the Board of Directors of the Company, it will be an event
of default under the Facility Agreement, in which event all
or any part of the commitments under the Loan may be
cancelled and all amounts outstanding under the Loan may
immediately become due and payable.
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Directors’ Interest in Competing
Business

On 21 December 2010, each of the Controlling Shareholders
of the company namely Mr. DONG Li (also being the
executive Director) and Master Alliance Investment Limited
(the “Controlling Shareholders”), entered into a deed of
non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) with
the Company pursuant to which each of the Controlling
Shareholders has individually, jointly, unconditionally and
irrevocably undertaken and represented to the Company and
each member of the Group that, among other things, he/
it procures that his/its associates will not engage, directly or
indirectly, in businesses which will or may compete with the
business carried on or to be carried on by the Group.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has provided an annual
declaration on his/its compliance with the undertakings
contained in the Deed of Non-Competition undertaken by
them.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
were satisfied that each of the Controlling Shareholders has
complied with the Deed of Non-Competition for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31
December 2017, none of the Directors is considered to have
interest in a business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.
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Major Suppliers and Customers

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the
Group’s major largest suppliers are as follows:

5.13%
21.31%

— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers in aggregate

The percentages of sales for the year attributable to the
Group’s major customers are as follows:

13.41%
31.65%

— the largest customer
— five largest customers in aggregate

None of the directors, their respective close associates
(within meaning of the Listing Rules) or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these
major suppliers and customers.

Closure of Register of Members

For the purpose of determining Shareholders’ entitlement
to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Tuesday 15 May 2018,
to Friday 18 May 2018, (both days inclusive). During the
closure period, no transfer of shares of the Company will
be registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting
at the AGM, Shareholders should ensure that all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
are lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar (see
below) for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday,
14 May 2018.
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The details of the Company’s branch share registrar are as AR B HIRDBEZE LD EFIBUT

follows:

Tricor Investor Services Limited PEBHFERLER AT

Address: Level 22, Hopewell Centre, ik BB 2 A ANBR183% A M 02218
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

Sufficiency of Public Float PNREFERENE AN

Based on the information that is publicly available to the RIERNRFTRFAMESNERARGKRESEIA A
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, RalR_ZT—+F+-_A=+—HERHNLR
there was sufficient public float of more than 25% of the & E @ (HANQ BB TN B iB25% °
Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2017.

Auditor % ERD

The financial statements have been audited by Ernst & BIEHERDKE LK AN EBIEZ 2 AZ S0
Young who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re- BAEMEERE  BRNEERARN G EEKRRBSF
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of A& - fERZE (T o

the Company.

The Company hasn't changed in its auditor in any of the B =4 » AN F) I 2 F HAZ 80 -
proceeding three years.

On behalf of the Board REEZE

DONG Li =3

Chairman E

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018 7E - \F=ZA=+N\H
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
December 2017.

The Group is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

Compliance Statements

The Company has complied with all applicable code
provisions and certain recommended best practices set out
in the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules.

The details of the compliance of the CG code set out in
the mandatory disclosure requirements, complied by the
Company, are shown below.
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Mandatory Disclosure
Requirements

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board will continue to review its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that the regulatory
requirements and principles, such as “comply or explain”
regarding the code provisions of the CG Code and
mandatory disclosure requirements set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules, are met and the corporate governance
practices of the Company is in line with expectations of
shareholders and investors.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company had complied with
all applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code and
Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2017.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Company (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the
code for dealing in securities of the Company by its directors
(the “Directors”).

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors have confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and its
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

Board of Directors
Composition of the Board
The Board comprises two executive Directors, one non-

executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors.
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Executive Directors

Executive Directors comprise Mr. DONG Li (chairman of
the Board (the “Chairman”) and Ms. ZHAO Huan (chief
executive officer).

Non-executive Director

Non-executive Director is Mr. Philip Armstrong NOZNESKY.

Independent non-executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors comprise Mr. CAO
Yixiong Alan, Mr. LIU Yangsheng, Mr. LAU Chi Kit and Dr.
GONG Fangxiong (resigned on 16 June 2017).

The name of each Director, as at the date of this report is
set out under the section headed “Corporate Information”
in this annual report and is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules from time to time. The independent non-
executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between the Directors.

Number of Board, Committee and General Meetings Held

The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company.
Additional meetings are held when significant events or
important issues are required to be discussed and resolved.
During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, 13
Board meetings, 2 Audit Committee meetings, 2 Nomination
Committee meetings, 5 Remuneration Committee meetings
and one general meeting were held.
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Attendance at the Board Meetings, Board Committee EFEEE 5282 RREASHILEIER

Meetings and General Meeting

The attendance of each Director, by name, at the Board &JEEHLFEEEC e =TS8 HMK
meetings, Board committee meetings and general meeting R A& RIE N (FRHEZ)E 0T

are set out below:

Attendance/ Attendance/ Attendance/
Attendance/ Number of Number of Number of  Attendance/

Number of Audit  Nomination Remuneration Number
Board Committee Committee Committee of General
Name of Director Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting"

HERE,/ HERY/ HERE/ HERES  HERE/
Exe EBNZEE REZEE FWHzES L EYN-

EENZ g1 eRYE R b gAau
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. DONG Li EEYd 13/13 - 2/2 5/5 11
Ms. ZHAO Huan HET T 13/13 - - - 1/1
Non-executive Director FHTEE
Mr. Philip Armstrong NOZNESKY  Philip Amstrong

NOZNESKY?: 4 2/13 - - - 11

Independent Non-executive BV FHTES

Directors
Mr. LIU Yangsheng AGEEE 213
Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan EMERE 2/13
Mr. LAU Chi Kit ARG E 213
Dr. GONG Fangxiong @ BhELe 0/13
Notes: B 5T

(1) Being the annual general meeting of the Company held on 26 (1)
May 2017.

2 Dr. GONG Fangxiong resigned from an independent non- 2
executive director of the Company on 16 June 2017.
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Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for leadership
and control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions and performance. The Board
has delegated to the senior management the authority and
responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation
of the Group. In addition, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees
various authority and duties set out in their respective
terms of reference. All Directors have carried out their
duties in good faith, in compliance with applicable laws
and regulations and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
senior management of the Company. These responsibilities
include implementing decisions of the Board, directing
and coordinating day-to-day operation and management
of the Company in accordance with the management
strategies and plans approved by the Board, formulating and
monitoring the operating and production plans and budgets,
and supervising and monitoring the control system.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors possesses
different business experience, knowledge and professional
background. The Company has at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules regarding the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of its Board members with
at least one of them possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received a written annual confirmation
regarding the independence from each independent non-
executive Director pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company still considers the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Independent non-executive Directors have been invited to
serve on the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”). Through participation in Board meetings,
taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees,
all independent non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Directors’ Training

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Directors have been given relevant guideline
materials to ensure that they are apprised of the latest
changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements
in relation to the Company’s businesses, and to refresh their
knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and duties as a
director of a listed company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, all Directors
provided their records of training to the Company. All
Directors, namely Mr. DONG Li, Ms. ZHAO Huan, Mr. Philip
Armstrong NOZNESKY, Mr. LIU Yangsheng, Mr. CAO Yixiong
Alan, Mr. LAU Chi Kit and Dr. Gong Fangxiong (resigned
Company on 16 June 2017) participated in this continuous
professional development mainly by reading various materials
regarding directors’ responsibilities, prevention of breaching
Listing Rules and disclosure of inside information, etc.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
segregated and not performed by the same person. The
Chairman is primarily responsible for the leadership of the
Board and formulation of overall strategic development
of the Group, while the Chief Executive Officer is primarily
responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business.

During the year. Mr. DONG Li is the Chairman and Ms. ZHAO
Huan is the Chief Executive Officer.

Non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors is engaged
for a term of three years commencing from their respective
dates of appointment and is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election pursuant to the Articles of Association.

Board Committees

The Board has established three Board committees, namely,
the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees have been
established with defined written terms of reference, which are
available to shareholders on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. All Board committees report to the
Board on their decisions or recommendations.
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All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Remuneration Committee

The principal role and function of the Remuneration
Committee are to (a) make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure of the remuneration
of the Directors and the senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy; (b) assessing the
performance of the executive Directors and approving their
terms of their service contracts; (c) review and approve
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board’'s corporate goals and objectives; (d) make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive director and senior
management of the Company which include benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment; (e) make recommendations to the Board of on
the remuneration of non-executive directors of the Company;
(f) to review and approve the remuneration payable to the
executive directors and senior management of the Company
for any loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure
that it is consistent with relevant contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive; (g) review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal
of directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent
with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and (h) ensure that no director of the Company
or any of his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) is
involved in deciding his own remuneration. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

As at 31 December 2017, the Remuneration Committee
comprised three members, namely, Mr. DONG Li (the
executive Director), Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan and Mr. LAU Chi
Kit, the latter two being independent non-executive Directors.
Mr. LAU Chi Kit is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Remuneration Committee held five meetings to discuss,
review, analyse and consider any change of the remuneration
policy of the Company and performed all functions as
disclosed above. The records of attendance of committee
members, by name, at the meetings held are set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. LAU Chi Kit 5/5
Mr. DONG Li 5/5
Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan 5/5
Dr. GONG Fangxiong

(resigned on 16 June 2017) 2/5

The Remuneration Committee adopted the model of
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

Nomination Committee

The principal role and function of the Nomination Committee
are to (a) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy and Board Diversity Policy which aims to set out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Company’s Board;
(b) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
(c) assess the independence of the independent non-
executive directors; and (d) make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or reappointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the chairman
and the chief executive. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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As at 31 December 2017, the Nomination Committee
comprised three members, namely, Mr. DONG Li (executive
Director), Mr. LIU Yangsheng and Mr. LAU Chi Kit, the latter
two being independent non-executive Directors. Mr. DONG Li
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings and performed all functions
as disclosed above. The attendance records of each member
at the meetings are set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. DONG Li 2/2
Mr. LIU Yangsheng 2/2
Mr. LAU Chi Kit 2/2
Dr. GONG Fangxiong

(resigned on 16 June 2017) 1/2

All Board members’ appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity
of the Board members. According to the Board Diversity
Policy adopted by the Nomination Committee in 2013,
selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision will
be made upon the merits and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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Audit Committee

The principal role and function of the Audit Committee are
amongst others to (a) review the financial statements and
reports and consider any significant or unusual items raised
by the staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function or external auditor before submission to
the Board; (b) review the relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work performed by the auditor, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditor; and (c) review the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting system,
internal control system and risk management system and
associated procedures. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

As at 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee comprised
three members, namely, Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan, Mr. LIU
Yangsheng and Mr. LAU Chi Kit, all of whom are independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan is the
chairman of the Audit Committee and he possesses relevant
accounting and financial management expertise.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2017 together with the Company’s
external auditor and the senior management and performed
the following major tasks:

- Reviewed the scope of 2016 annual audit and 2017
interim review work, auditor’'s fees and terms of
engagement; and

- Review and discuss the 2016 annual and 2017 interim
financial statements, results announcement and report,
the related accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and the relevant audit findings.
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The Audit Committee has not taken a different view from the
Board regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditors.

The attendance records of each member at the meeting are
set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan 2/2
Mr. LIU Yangsheng 2/2
Mr. LAU Chi Kit 2/2
Dr. GONG Fangxiong

(resigned on 16 June 2017) 1/2

In addition, the Audit Committee has reviewed the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 and has discussed with the management and the
external auditor of the Company on the accounting policies
and practices adopted by the Group and the internal controls
and financial reporting matters of the Group.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance duties as required under the CG
Code:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;
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° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

o to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board performed the following corporate
governance matters:

° review of the corporate governance duties under the
CG Code; and

° review of the compliance with the CG Code.

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial
Reporting in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements of the Company with a view to
ensuring that such financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and that relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements are met and applicable
accounting standards are complied with. The Board has
received from the senior management the management
accounts and such accompanying explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment for approving the financial statements.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining
effective internal control and risk management systems to
safeguard shareholder investments and the Group’s assets
on an ongoing basis and for reviewing the effectiveness
of such system on an annual basis. Internal audits were
carried out on all significant operation units of the Group
on an ongoing basis. The senior management reviews and
evaluates the control process, monitors any risk factors
on a regular basis and reports to the Audit Committee on
any findings and measures to address the variances and
identified risks.

During the year under review, the Board conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems of the Group including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget. The Board is of
the opinion that the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group are effective and adequate. The Board
is also reasonably satisfied that there are sufficient resources
of staff with appropriate qualifications and experience in its
accounting and financial reporting team and that sufficient
training and budget have been provided.

External Auditor and Auditor’s Remuneration

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their
report responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on
pages 83 to 91 of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the remuneration
paid/payable to Ernst & Young, the Company’s external
auditor, for annual audit services provided to the Group
and for non-audit services which comprise professional tax
services, amounted to RMB2.6 million and RMBO0.6 million,
respectively.
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Shareholders’ Rights
Convening an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM’)

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association,
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law or the Articles of Association. Shareholders
who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting following the procedures set out
in the preceding paragraph.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders are welcome to send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board addressing to the Company Secretary
of the Company through the following channels with contact
details as set out below:

i) by mail to the Company’s place of business at Unit C,
33/F, TML Tower, No. 3 Hoi Shing Road, Tsuen Wan,

New Territories, Hong Kong; or

i) by email to ir@leoch.com.
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Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
shareholders’ meetings.

Al resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be
voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange after each shareholder meeting.

Changes to Constitutional Documents

There were no significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 31
December 2017, and the Company’s constitutional
documents are published on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders

The Company has received, from each of the Controlling
Shareholders, an annual declaration on his/its compliance
with the undertakings contained in the Deed of Non-
Competition entered into by each of them in favour of
the Company pursuant to which each of the Controlling
Shareholders has individually, jointly, unconditionally and
irrevocably undertaken and represented to the Company and
each member of the Group that, among other things, he/it
and his/its associates will not engage, directly or indirectly,
in businesses which will or may compete with the business
carried on or to be carried on by the Group. Details of the
Deed of Non-Competition were disclosed in the Prospectus
under the section headed “Relationship with Our Controlling
Shareholders”.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
have been satisfied that each of the Controlling Shareholders
had complied with the Deed of Non-Competition for the year
ended 31 December 2017.
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Communications with Shareholders and
Investors

The Board believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company also recognizes
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which will enable shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decisions.

The Company maintains a website at www.leoch.com as
a communication platform for shareholders and investors,
where information and updates on the Group’s business
developments and operations, financial information and other
information are available for public access. Shareholders and
investors may write directly to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong for any inquiries.

The Board considers that general meetings of the Company
provide an important channel for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. The Chairman of the Board as
well as the chairmen and/or other members of the Board
committees have endeavored to be available to answer
questions raised by the shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication
and relationship with its investors. Designated senior
management maintains regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them informed of the Group’s
developments.
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Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. CHOW Kam
Keung Albert, is the chief financial officer and one of the
employees of the Company.

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company
Secretary must take no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in each financial year. Mr. Chow has
provided his training records to the Company indicating that
he has not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
by means of attending in-house briefings, attending seminars
and reading relevant guideline materials.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2017
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Ernst & Young BB EISEBFR Tel E&%: +852 2846 9888
EY 22/F, CITIC Tower BEEPIRRNEEIR Fax {8 H: +852 2868 4432
577( 1 Tim Mei Avenue h{EARE221E ey.com
Central, Hong Kong
To the shareholders of HETEBEMERAT
Leoch International Technology Limited 2RRBRR

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Leoch International Technology Limited (the ‘Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 92 to
274, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which also
include International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Audiitor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
Statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

HRELSEHE

B ZBENRE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEERNMEERREREE

Inventory provision

FEREE

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture,
development and sale of lead-acid batteries and other
related items. Since technology develops rapidly in
the lead-acid battery industry, the Group’s inventories
are subject to significant risk of obsolescence and
significant management’s judgements and estimates
were involved in determining the amount of provision
against slow-moving and obsolete inventories. We
focused on this area because inventory balances
amounting to RMB1,872 million were significant to the
Group, which represented 22% of the total assets of the
Group, and the provision against inventories was made
based on subjective estimates and was influenced by
assumptions concerning future consumption or sales of
inventories.
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The disclosures about inventories are included in notes
3 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

BRATEZRBEHNFAMBmRMEIR22 -

We obtained an understanding of management’s
process about how to identify the slow-moving and
obsolete inventories and calculate the amount of
provision. We evaluated the sales forecasts prepared
by management for the purpose of identifying the slow-
moving and obsolete inventories by checking, on a
sampling basis, to the sales orders and agreements,
and assessing the estimated sales taking into account
the previous estimations, the historical evidence
supporting underlying assumptions and current market
conditions. We also checked on a sampling basis the
aging reports of inventories and the production record
and sales of inventories made after the year end. For
the net realisable value of slow-moving and obsolete
inventories identified, we checked samples of recent
sales invoices for the value.
EEETHERERANMAETFIHELRERFT Kt
BRBeHIEF - BEECTAHEEERECHER
TR BEEEBMERZEHE R E R BT R
REFE  WEERTAA  XFHERRCELE
BRERITHAF GG HER - EENECHTFEZR
R ERFREBZEECRHEIMIEH 2 FRIHEETTH
BBl - AP EZFHAREFE 2P 2 IFEM
T ESERHINEERERAZBE.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

REERER

B ZBERE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZERNEEBRRERSER

Impairment of trade receivables

- 16 =D 41

The Group grants different credit periods to customers.
The credit periods for individual customers are
considered on a case-by-case basis. Certain customers
are required to make partial payments before or upon
delivery. As at 31 December 2017, the gross carrying
amount of trade receivables was RMB2,344 million, with
a significant overdue balance and an impairment loss
of RMB30 million was recorded. The Group estimates
the impairment allowances for trade receivables by
assessing the recoverability based on the historical
recovery of overdue trade receivables of respective ages
and related prevailing market conditions. We focused
on this area because this requires the use of significant
estimates and judgements.
EEERNEFPERTIARNGEES - ZEEFHEEH
B—EETE oA T B P AR RIS A A B R #B
KRBt F+_A=+—H BHRKFIENER
HRER/ARK23448E T SHSERBHARNEAE
HREREEEARKNEETL EXERABHES
JRE WK TE A BT I B 1 BT A (AR B W IR Y
BEREE MWt HRETRKRKRNEHE FE
WA AW EIER R BBRITH TR &
FHEIIN MR T RN E AR E A R I -

The disclosures about impairment of trade receivables
are included in notes 3 and 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BB S RWGIERE BBHNGE M BERKRW T
324
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We obtained an understanding of management’s
analysis of the recoverability of trade receivables,
checked the historical settlement history and the
subsequent settlements with respective bank slips
on a sampling basis. We evaluated the aging analysis
prepared by management by checking the related sales
contracts and invoices, and the credit terms specified in
the sales contracts.

EECD TRERERANE S RYGKIER PR SHT -
MERE R RITEEERBEENCHERREEN-
EEBAREREHEA N NERUALHES KT
ANEEGR HERBRENRR O METT -
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Other information included in the
Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the directors
for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs which
comprise standards and Interpretations approved by the
IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ERARESHEMENAR -EMENBRIASF
EHmENER  HERE M BEIME M E TN ZEENR
EERINo

BEURAVBRRIFENERLRAREEME
- ARSI BRI A NE SR -

HEFHGREVBRER 2 2BEZMs  EENEAR
BIRE ALt &R} WA EREMER S HE
RENBHREANETEEEZBETERNERT
FEERIF AT EE AR R a8 ER
EEERITNIE EERAEMERHIRERE
bR EERAREZEE -EEUES I IELH R
4,

ESHGRSURRR2EME

BERAREFABRBEERVHHREER (BERER
SRR ESHAENER LRRE) NEBARIR
PINBBEREREEIEENAFERNGEY
Bk WETESHTEE LV 2NNEEE UE
REURAMBRER T FERMFFRHERERNE
REBERER A -
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Independent Auditor’s Report B M % EETHRE

Responsibilities of the directors
for the consolidated financial
statements (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2017
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report B M % EETRE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements (continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the BEEMERGEMBERR 2
audit of the consolidated financial  1E (#&)
statements (continued)

\

—

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this HEAXBIIZEEREZEZEESCRARER

independent auditor’s report is Law Kwok Kee. Ho

Ernst & Young KBRS AT
Certified Public Accountants HEEEED

Hong Kong BB

28 March 2018 —E-\F=A=+)N\AH
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

— A = \_/43’%
:2-51? =] ?Eﬁi
Year ended 31 December 2017
BE-F—tFt-A=+-BLFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE-RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR%T T ARBFTT
REVENUE g 5 9,465,444 6,262,870
Cost of sales SHE R (8,302,904) (5,237,286)
Gross profit EF 1,162,540 1,025,584
Other income and gains A PN € 5 101,744 65,752
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEMAE (367,199) (296,682)
Administrative expenses FTE S (260,742) (224,567)
Research and development costs ff 8 A A 6 (143,084) (101,865)
Other expenses HEAx (34,639) (75,824)
Finance costs B IR AR 7 (151,788) (108,931)
Share of profits and losses of S RN /NS D53
a joint venture and an associate NAIR R K g - (2,931)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B A% R 6 306,832 280,536
Income tax expense R X 10 (35,352) (48,749)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 271,480 231,787
Attributable to: AT ALTENS:
Owners of the parent NalEA A 242,885 241,898
Non-controlling interests FEIE R M A 28,595 (10,111)
271,480 231,787
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREBREGEAA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EASRAEF
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 12
Basic R RMBAR®0.18%  RMBARM0.187
Diluted e RMBA K #0.187 RVBAR #0187
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income {5
meEZEBER

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_ZT—tHF+_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF AN S
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR%T T AR®BFTT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 271,480 231,787
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hi 2 mEks
Other comprehensive income REZBBREFSHESE
to be reclassified to profit or loss BarEM2EKE:
in subsequent periods:
Available-for-sale investments: AHEERE:
Changes in fair value NRBEEE 20 3,703 35,083
Income tax effect iz 2 31 (926) (11,771)
2,777 23,312
Exchange differences on translation of & 35 5N ¥ 45 1O FE 3, =58
foreign operations (14,193) 25,679
Net other comprehensive income REEZBEEHH»EE
to be reclassified to profit or loss BmrEamemla F 5
in subsequent periods (11,416) 48,991
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AFEEHMEERE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX BB (11,416) 48,991
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AEEEEHBHEAE
FOR THE YEAR 260,064 280,778
Attributable to: LA A FEAS -
Owners of the parent nElER A 235,650 286,380
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R 24,414 (5,602)
260,064 280,778



i |

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R R
31 December 2017
—E—+F+ZA=+—H

2017 2016
=E—tF —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR%T T ARBFTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - WE KR 13 2,046,177 1,877,677
Investment properties B 14 48,392 31,663
Properties under development BRPYE 15 40,869 40,869
Prepaid land lease payments A A EFIE 16 154,819 120,600
Goodwill S 17 8,699 8,660
Other intangible assets HihmEEE 18 484,215 285,030
Investment in an associate R—EEE R ERIRE 19 - 4,127
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 20 132,576 123,967
Deposits paid for purchase of items of ~ FLUWEEWZE - BE &
property, plant and equipment and BBEE Rt ERIA
land lease payments SIME & 85,016 14,615
Deferred tax assets RIEHIAE E 31 48,888 54,715
Total non-current assets EMBEELE 3,049,651 2,561,923
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 22 1,872,285 1,127,126
Completed properties held for sale BIEGEEEXE 23 44,205 61,702
Trade and bills receivables B 5 M W ERIE & e R IR 24 2,526,597 2,264,377
Prepayments, deposits and ERNHRE EI2 Rk
other receivables H b fE U 5k I8 25 174,423 134,725
Derivative financial instruments ?)T Ao T A 21 4,418 4,625
Equity investments at fair value REEEZEHF ABRD
through profit or loss $§ HERE 26 12,545 13,595
Pledged deposits [ iRER N 27 540,116 490,885
Cash and cash equivalents RekBFeEEY 27 401,042 214,344
Total current assets mMENEEEE 5,575,631 4,311,379
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables B SN FIBREN R 28 1,665,247 1,631,484
Other payables and accruals HEMEMNFIBREGTEA 29 706,537 542,867
Interest-bearing bank borrowings .ﬁ‘ IRITIEE 30 2,904,553 1,275,014
Derivative financial instruments TESmITA 21 - 13,636
Income tax payable FERTFTISREL 89,406 89,212
Total current liabilities mENEER 5,365,743 3,552,213
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 209,888 759,166
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEABERRBAER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,259,539 3,321,089
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position & Bk R i3

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=A=+—H

2017 2016
—®—tx C—TAF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

P & ARBT T ARETT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities REBIEAE 31 54,554 31,448
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERIRTITIEE 30 109,338 488,463
Deferred government grants 3R RE TR 478 B 48,959 43,249
Total non-current liabilities EMBAEMARE 212,851 563,160
Net assets BEFE 3,046,688 2,757,929
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of BARBEEAELELZS
the parent
Share capital AR 32 116,192 115,846
Reserves & 34 2,760,418 2,582,042
2,876,610 2,697,888
Non-controlling interests FEPERR R S 170,078 60,041
Total equity W A RE 3,046,688 2,757,929
Dong Li Zhao Huan
5= HE
Director Director
EF EE



N Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERnB B
Year ended 31 December 2017
BE-FT—tF+T-A=+—AILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAREARRE

Avallable-
for-sale
Share Share  investment  Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share premium Merger option  revaluation reserve fluctuation Retained controling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity
AfthE
BEER EE ERED
Bx RhEEER AkEE BRERR fE fEe BE  REEN ait FEREE  BReR
RVBO00 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMBOO0  RMB000  RMB'OO0 ~ RMB000  RMBOOO ~ RMB000  RMBOO0  RMB000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR ARETR AR%BTT AR%TR ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARBTT ARETT ARETR
Note (note 32) (note 45) (note 34)  (note 34)  (note 34) (note 34) (note 34)
i3 (Fsrs2)  (Wistas)  (Wiaise)  (Warse)  (WEse)  (MisRss)  (Mskse)

At 1 January 2016 W=F-7%-A-A 115,843 1,237,298 275,106 33,207 25,507 101,538 2,5% 648,494 2,439,588 5994 2445582
Proft for the year REERT - - - - - - - 41898 241898 ({fo111) 231,787
Other comprehensive income FERAMRENE:
for the year:
Changes n fair value of avalable- AHLERENLEE
for-sale investments, net of tax 23 NBHE - - - - 23312 - - - 23312 - 23312
Exchange difierences on ranslation BN EBMEL EE
of foreign operations - - - - - - 21,170 - 21,170 4,509 25,679
Total comprehensive income FERRENRES
for the year - - - - 23312 - 21,170 241,898 286,380 (5,602) 280,778
Exercise of share options fifeERE 2 3 4 - (25) - - - - 2 - 2
Lapse of share options BRELR - - - (6,657) - - - 6,657 - - -
Final 2015 diicend pad BR-E-RERHARE - ey - - - - - - ey NG
Equity-settled share option IEREENERER S
arangements - - - 1,376 - - - - 1,376 - 1,376
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHEAR - - - - - - - - - 59,649 5,649
Appropriations to reserves EiERE - - - - - 17947 - (17.947) - - -
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RETZA=1-A 115,846 1,207,864 275,106" 27,901* 48819 119,485 23,766 879,102 2,697,888 60,041 2,757,929
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity &r& =B EXR i3

Year ended 31 December 2017
BHE-_Z—+F+-_A=+—HItEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATEENES
Available-
for-sale
Share Share investment  Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share  premium Merger option  revaluation reserve  fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity
e
EEEf EiRD

Rk RiteEER AftEE BREGS i EREEE e REEN B FEREE  REER

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARETR

Notes (note 32)  (noted5)  (note 34)
ik (Has2)  (W&4s)  (Mazsd)

(note 34)  (note 34)  (note 34)  (note 34)
(Witsa)  (H&s4)  (WHEEs4)  (MHaEs4)

At 1 January 2017 W=E-t5-A-A 115846 1,207,864 275,105 27,901 43,819 119,485 23,766 879,102 2,697,888 60,041 2,757,929
Profit for the year RERER = = = - - - - 242,885 242,885 28,595 271,480
Other comprehensive income FEREMRENRE:
for the year:
Changes in fair value of available- AHLERENLEE
for-sale investments, net of tax 28 IRHA - - - - 2,717 - - - 2,117 - 2,111
Exchenge difierences on translation BN EBMEL 258
of foreign operations - - - - - - (10,012 - (10,012 (4,181) (14,193)
Total comprehensive income FERRENRES
for the year - - - - 2111 - (10,012 242,885 235,650 24414 260,064
Exercise of share options fifeERE 2 346 52338 - (2,652) - - - - 3,032 - 3,032
Final 2016 dividend paid BNZE-RERERE - (64603 - - - - - - (64609) - (64603
Equity-settied share option IEREENERER S
arangements - - - 4,643 - - - - 4,643 - 4,643
Capital contribution from FERRETE
non-controling shareholders - - - - - - - - - 5411 5411
Acquisition of subsidiaries KEHEAR 35 - - - - - - - - - 80,146 80,146
Appropriations to reserves BiERE - - - - - 14,320 - (14,320) o o o
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+E+ZA=1-8 116,192 1,148,599 275,105 29,892 51,596 133,805° 13,754 1,107,667 2,876,610 170,078 3,046,688

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves
of RMB2,760,418,000 (2016: RMB2,582,042,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

* WEHBEREAKGETBERRAERAZEEHE
AR®2,760,418,000L (=T —RF: ARK
2,582,042,0007C ) °



B Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

—AN 3= B
MERERER
Year ended 31 December 2017
BE-F—tFt-A=+-BLFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &E AR¥T T AR®T T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RREXBNWESARE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R i A 306,832 280,536
Adjustments for: BT SIEELFHE
Finance costs B 7% A AR 7 151,788 108,931
Interest income F B A 5 (13,374) (8,717)
Fair value gain from derivative TESMTAEARER
financial instruments, net Was - 55 6 (1,166) (3,551)
Fair value loss from equity NABEEHTAERN
investments at fair value through BRERENAAER
profit or loss, net E5i8 - HEE 6 1,050 3,366
Gain on remeasurement of the B ELAN—HEE
previously held interest in YNGIESRER Tt il &
a joint venture 5 - (10,502)
Loss on remeasurement of the BHFTEEN —EEE
previously held interest in NAIFEAERNEE
an associate 6 2,064 -
Gain on bargain purchase = BUE KR 5 (880) -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of BEWH WEI&EEREE
property, plant and equipment mEsE, (ME) 6 611 (956)
Share of profits and losses of a joint ~ JE{h — & & A 7] M B &
venture and an associate RNAEHY ;= A N B 1R - 2,931
Depreciation of property, plant and M RE RERETE
equipment 13 218,888 196,478
Depreciation of investment properties & & ¥ ¥ 4T E 14 1,321 1,188
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TET Db AR E SR IE 85
payments 16 3,656 2,844
Amortisation of intangible assets & EE Y 18 88,849 59,627
Amortisation of deferred government & X [ i #5 Bt 5 $4
grants (3,200) (4,709)
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment & 5 U7k 18 CR{EREE )
of trade receivables BB 24 (7,713) 21,910
Impairment of inventories FERIE 6 3,957 14,491
Dividend income from available-for- 3R 5 A it &5 & HI A% &
sale investments WA 5 (1,301) (15,728)
Loss on a fire accident NAHB R 6 28,153 -
Equity-settled share option expenses A HE %5 45 & 0y BB ILAEFT XX 6 4,643 1,376
784,178 649,515
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ZREBHESRER =

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+F+-_A=+—HIEE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

P &£ ARBTRE ARBTRT

Increase in inventories 7{? = 38 10 (758,830) (229,280)
Increase in trade and bills receivables & 5 & I 20 T8 I fE UL = 4512 N (247,009) (724,653)
Increase in prepayments, deposits E‘E ﬁ RIH - 5] M E b FE IR

and other receivables FRIEIE N (16,310) (14,170)
Changes in fair value of derivative TESMTAEARBEED:

financial instruments, net FER (12,263) (39,545)
Increase in trade and bills payables & 5 &~ 2008 M fE S =5 N 29,164 354,423
Increase in other payables and HEMEMNEEREREREM

accruals 123,862 234,446
Cash (used in)/generated from KEES) (FTAR) /B E &

operations (97,208) 230,736
Income tax paid =ENIZIRC (34,176) (41,567)
Net cash flows (used in)/from rEEe (A /FBHEe

operating activities MEFE (131,384) 189,169

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHFB/ATRE

ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2 B 13,294 12,690
Purchases of items of property, BE ’«T@% = N w5518 B

plant and equipment (332,143) (232,298)
Proceeds from disposal of items of  EEWE  WEMKEEEH

property, plant and equipment FTi8 508 13,026 22,871
Dividend income from available-for- 2K 8 7] [ £ 1% & K9 i% B WA

sale investments 5 1,301 15,728
Increase in available-for-sale A {5 1 & 1 0

investments (5,800) (34,627)
Additions of intangible assets EINEEEE (179,908) (138,580)
Additions of prepaid land lease #HNFE A L & A

payments (32,993) -
Deposits paid for land lease payments + b8 & R IBE 184 (11,426) -
Deposits paid for construction ofa  EE—EMED([HiLE

property 39 (49,130) -
Proceeds from disposal of equity BEEARBEEZH ABRZN

investments at fair value through EmIEERNATERIE

profit or loss - 5,582
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wt & Bt 8 A 7] 35 (78,760) 61
Net cash flows used in investing REEBMARES NE R

activities (662,539) (348,573)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows SZREHRERER

Year ended 31 December 2017
BHE-_ZT—+F+-_A=+—HItEE

2017 2016
—E-+tF —ZE-RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARET T ARBFTT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHMERERE
ACTIVITIES
Issue of shares, net of issuance IR EE1T MR EEITHRZ
expenses 32 3,032 22
New bank borrowings FERITEE 5,887,649 2,152,428
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEE (4,601,065) (1,992,285)
Interest paid 2ARHE (151,788) (108,931)
Capital contribution from IR EE
non-controlling shareholders 5,477
Final dividend paid 2R B (64,603) (29,478)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged BEEER (M), R
deposits (49,231) 89,516
Receipt of government grants W BR BK 1 #78 B 8,910 16,678
Net cash flows from financing activities B & E B TSR & HE/F 5 1,038,381 127,950
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) BERBSZSEYEM
IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (B4 ) B %8 244,458 (31,454)
Cash and cash equivalents REVNRE MRS EED
at beginning of year 214,344 207,618
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEHNTE S5
changes, net (57,760) 38,180
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERNRAESRREEEY
AT END OF YEAR 401,042 214,344
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF ReERASEENERIN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Be MIBITE 27 401,042 214,344
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Corporate and Group
Information

Leoch International Technology Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 27 April 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s shares have been listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 16 November 2010. The
registered office of the Company is located at the office
of Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Group is principally
engaged in the manufacture, development and sale of
lead-acid batteries and other related items.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the immediate holding company is Master
Alliance Investment Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands. The ultimate holding company
is DB International Trust (Singapore) Limited, which is
the trustee of a discretionary trust established by Mr.
Dong Li and the beneficiaries of the trust are family
members of Mr. Dong Li.

On 21 March 2018, Jingle Bells Group Limited,
the immediate holding company of Master Alliance
Investment Limited and which is in turn wholly
owned by DB International Trust (Singapore) Limited,
transferred the whole ownership of Master Alliance
Investment Limited to Mr. Dong Li at nil consideration.
Upon completion of the ownership transfer, in the
opinion of the Directors, the immediate holding
company and the ultimate holding company is Master
Alliance Investment Limited, which is wholly owned by
Mr. Dong Li.

B 755 R 3R B

31 December 2017
—E—tE+ZA=+—H

REAREEER

BTEBEEMBRAR ([RAT) TR
Z-EFOA_T+ERBRASHSRAE
($228) (—NWR—FFIRER Kizc K&
B ERSHETMKIREREERA
Al MARRIRGE —E—ZFF+— A+~
HREEBHEXHMER AR ([BRA])
T o AN B RE I S IR A2 74 Conyers Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited®) ¥ 5% (3iiF A
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands ) °
AEEFENFHE FAENHEENERES
o R H A ARRAEE & o

AAREE([EBR R BEEERAA
AT TR B A BE S FE B SZ BYMester Alliance
Investment Limited ° & £ 1% & A 7] £DB
International Trust (Singapore) Limited * H£ A H &
FREKIHDEELHZEA METH

NZZE—N\FE=H=+—H  Master Aliance
Investment Limited.~ & % 1% i% A 7 & FRDB
International Trust (Singapore) Limited® & # A&
2 Jingle Bells Group Limited A Z R B R E 254
A8 EMaster Aliance Investment Limited#) %
HEER - TRERREEC R EERA
BEEERARREEERABIRESTKESR
E WA 2 Master Aliance Investment Limited e
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31 December 2017
—T-tF+=-A=+-H

1. Corporate and Group
Information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#&RRMIEE

1. REAIREBES (&)

FENELRZEN

ARREEWMBARINFEWT

as follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity interest
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
HMAL/ R
HWEAR ERAL/ERAH REENY BRTRARER ANAEGERAAL TEXK
Direct Indirect
E# B
% %

IRETERERAT 11 March 2003 PRC* RMB562,649,382 - 100 Investment holding and
(Leoch Battery (Jiangsu) Corp.) manufacture and sale of lead-
(‘Jiangsu Leoch’) acid batteries

THEETEHARRA (NIHEL]) ZZTZEZA4-H i AR H562,649,3827T REZR RENHERRETH

EEBLTERRERAR 9 May 2005 PRC* 1S$34,365,975 - 100 Investment holding and
(Zhaoaing Leoch Battery manufacture and sale of lead-
Technology Co., Ltd.) (‘Zhaoqing Leoch’) acid batteries

EERTERRMARAA ((EERL]) —TTRFRANA PE* 34,365,975% 7 RERR RERNSERREED

ZENENFERRITERAR 26 July 2006 PRC* US$10,001,455 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid
(Anhui Uplus Energy Technology batteries
Co., Ltd.) (“Anhui Uplus’)

RENERHERRITERAA ZZEAEEAZTAR hE 10,001 4555 7T SENRELRETR
([ZEHERLK])

FIBLREFRTERAR 26 April 1999 PRC* RVIB582,649,382 - 100 Investment holding and sale of
(Shenzhen Leoch Battery lead-acid batteries
Technology Co., Ltd))

(‘Shenzhen Leoch Battery’)

RETEERRITERAE —“AAAEBEAZTRA PE* AR #582,649,3827C REBBAHERRESD
([RYIELRER])

RRMELHEHERRMAERAR 27 November 2002 PRC’ RMB3,500,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Dongguan Leoch Battery
Technology Co., Ltd.)

REMELHERERRNERAE ZEEZE+-AItER RES AR 3,500,000 HERBEED

BENELRERRTARAR 23 July 2013 PRC RMB100,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Guangzhou Leoch Battery
Technology Co., Ltd)

BNBTESRRNERAR “2-=#tA-T=H HEr AR#100,0007C HERBESY

102
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRIRHIEE

1. Corporate and Group
Information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

31 December 2017

—F—t+t%t+=A=+—H

1. REIREBER (&)

FRANBARZESR (#)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity interest
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
HRAL/ ER
KWEAR HEMARYL/EMA S REELE BRIRMZER RAREEERAI Y TEEH
Direct Indirect
EE B
% %
Leoch Internationation Sales Ltd 31 December 2010 Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding and sale of
(‘Leoch Internationation Sales’) lead-acid batteries
BrERHEERAR ((BLEARHE]) _—T-TET-A=t-0 &A BT REBRAHERRETD
Leoch Battery Corporation 17 June 2003 USA™ US$3,256,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(‘Leoch Battery Corp.’)
Leoch Battery Corporation —EE=ExAtTLR E3e 3,256,000% 7 HENRESY
([Leoch Battery Corp. | )
Leoch Power Supply (H.K.) Limited 18 August 2004 Hong Kong HK$12,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and sale of
(‘Leoch Power Supply’) lead-acid batteries
ETER(5%)ERAF ((BLER)) “ZTRENATAR &k 12,000,000 7T REBRIRBEREEE
Honour Label Investments Limited 28 February 2005 BV US§1 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Honour Label’)
Honour Label Investments Limited ZETRF-A=TNA RERBE™ iE REER
([Honour Label |)
Peak Year Investments Limited 25 January 2007 BVI™* US$1 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Peak Year')
Peak Year Investments Limited —E5tF-A=-t+AR RBRTHE™ 1% REAER
([Peak Year )
Shieldon International Limited (*Shieldon”) 19 January 2007 BV US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Shieldon International Limited ([Shieldon |) ~ —ZZ+&—A+ /8 RERTEE™ iEH REAER
Leoch Battery Company Limited 25 April 2007 Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and sale of
(‘Leoch Battery Company’) lead-acid batteries
Leoch Battery Company Limited “ETLERA=+AR B 1,000,0007%7C REZRARBERRES
([Leoch Battery Company |)
Nanjing Leoch Battery 15 March 2006 PRC* RMB300,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Technology Co., Ltd.
HRETRERRNERARA T F=ATaA RE AR#300,0007C HERBEEY

BELEBRRMERAR | T LFF§
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Ej Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#&RRMIEE

31 December 2017
—T-tF+=-A=+-H

1. Corporate and Group 1. RRIREEER (&)

104

Information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

FRANBARZESR (&)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity interest
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
SRR/ M
HWEAR ERAL/EMAH REELE BRTRAZER AAAEEERAAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
EE GF:3
% %
Beijing Leoch Engineering 14 December 2004 PRC* RMB1,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Technology Co., Ltd.
FRBTEERRNERAA “E2EMETZA+IA Er AR 1,000,000 HERREED
Leoch Battery Shenzhen Corp. 27 September 2007 PRC* RMB1,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
RETERRITERAR ZETHENACTLR PE* ARH1,000,0007T HERBESY
Catherine Holdings International Company 3 May 2010 BV Uss6 100 - Investment holding
Limited (‘Catherine Holdings’)
Catherine Holdings International Company —“T-TFRA=H RERTBE™ 6XTT REHER
Limited ([ Catherine Holdings | )
Leoch Battery Pte. Ltd. 5 April 2010 Singapore §G$2,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(‘Leoch Battery Pte.")
Leoch Battery Pte. Ltd. “Z-T5mARA I 2,000,0003 13 7T HERRESH
([Leoch Battery Pte. | )
Leoch International Holding Pte. Ltd. 21 April 2011 Singapore SG$1 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Leoch International Holding’)
Leoch International Holding Pte. Ltd. —E——FRA=+-R g g REHER
(ILeoch International Holding |)
Anhui Leoch Power Supply Corp. 26 October 2010 PRC* HK$321,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid
(“Anhui Leoch Power’) batteries
RHRTERRMARAR “E-RETACTRA HE 321,000,000 7T RERHERRESD
([RE2LER])
Leoch Lanka (Private) Ltd. 26 January 2012 Sri Lanka LKR337,712,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid
batteries
Leoch Lanka (Private) Ltd. ZE-ZF-A=+RR HEL RS 337,712,000 HERHERRES D
HEEREL
Leoch Batteries India Private Limited 31 October 2012 India INR223,581,336 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Leoch Batteries India Private Limited ZE-ZEtAZT-H I 223,581,336 HENREED
HEEL
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRIRHIEE

Corporate and Group
Information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

31 December 2017
—F—t%t+=ZA=+—H

1. REIREBER (&)

FRANBARZESR (#)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity interest
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
HRAL/ ER
KWEAR HEMARL/EMA S REELE BRTRMRER AAAEEERAAL TREH
Direct Indirect
EE B
% %
Big Help Group Limited (‘Big Help) 19 May 2011 Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Big Help Group Limited ([ Big Help |) —Z——ERATNA B 1B REER
IHEEEZERAT 29 October 2014 PRC* RMB20,000,000 - 100 Development and sale of
(Jiangsu Stting Real Estate Co., Ltd.) properties
(‘Jiangsu Siting’)
IREEEZERAA (NIHKBE]) “Z-MmETAZTAR PEr AR #20,000,0007 REREENE
AT RERRIBRAE 19 November 2012 PRC* HK$10,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Shenzhen Lihang Battery
Technology Co., Ltd)
R ERRITERAF “T-Z§+—-AtNR PE* 10,000,000 7 REER
BHRERRE (R BRAR 17 June 2014 PRC* RMB827,456,523 - 100 Investment holding
(Leoch Investment Development
(Shenzhen) Limited)
BERERR (RYNERRA “E-mERATLR R AR 1827,456,5237C REER
Leoch Trontek Battery Pvt 7 August 2015 India INR259,110,200 - 51 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid
batteries
Leoch Trontek Battery Pvt “Z-R§/\AtA HE 259,110,200 HERHERRERR
HEEL
EEBTERAEHEERAA 12 August 2016 PRC RMB160,690,000 - 7534 Leasing of properties
(Zhaoqing Leoch Marshell
Electric Vehicle Co., Ltd.)
EERTHAAEYEARAR “Z-§N\ATZA R AR ¥160,690,0007 NERE
Leoch Accupower (M) Sdn. Bhd 10 July 2016 Malaysia RM40,000,000 - 51 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid
(“Accupower’) batteries
Leoch Accupower (M) Scn. Bnd —E-RELAtA ERAER 40,000,005 70 HERBERRETN
([ Accupower |)
RENERFRERMBRRERARA 9 September 2016 PRC* RMB5,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Anhui Uplus New Energy Material
Technology Co., Ltd)
(‘Anhui Uplus New Energy’)
ZENERI R AR ERAT “I-~FNANA PE* AR %5,000,0007C REER

([ZBAEREHER])
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#sRIRMIEE

31 December 2017
—T—+F+=ZA=+—H

Corporate and Group
Information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

1. REAIREBES (&)

FRANBARZESR (#F)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity interest
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
SRR/ M
KWEAR HERAL/ A REELE BRIRYZER AAAEEERAAL TEER
Direct Indirect
EE B
% %

ANGAELERHARAF 9 January 2017 PRC* RMB110,000,000 - 60 Recycle and remanufacture of
(Taihe Dahua Energy Technology Co., Ltd.) lead from batteries disposed of
(‘Taihe Dahua”)

AAGAZRLRRRERAE “Z—tE-ANA PE AR110,000,0007 BEEEEEHONRALER
([RABAE])

Tele Power Sdn. Bhd. (‘Tele Power’) 23 January 2017 Malaysia RM1,000,000 - 51 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid

batteries

Tele PowerSdn. Bnd. ([ Tele Power |) —Z-+tF-A=1=A ERED 1,000,005 7 RERHERRESD

Leoch Battery (Vietnam) Limited 29 September 2017 Vietnam US$504,970 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid

batteries

Leoch Battery (Vietnam) Limited ZZ—tEAAZTIA il 5049705 T HERHERRERD

Leoch Super Power (Vietnam) Limited 29 September 2017 Vietnam US$464,970 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid

batteries

Leoch Super Power (Vietnam) Limited “E-tENAZTNEB HE 4649705 7T HERBERRETN

Leoch France SAS 23 November 2017 France EUR100,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries

Leoch France SAS “I—tE+-A-tZR AR 100,000 HERMESY

Taiwan.

ok

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors,

BVI represents the British Virgin Islands.

result in particulars of excessive length.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2017

PRC represents the People’s Republic of China excluding
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC,
the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and

USA represents the United States of America.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs, which comprise standards
and interpretations approved by the IASB, and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for derivative financial
instruments, equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss and certain available-for-sale investments
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=A=+—H

1R E %

A EH IR TIRIR PR B RS LR DA K2
BA R AP NERERE - BRI HRE
EABREERETENZES AN ER
MRt - 2 TR SRR TR IR E 2 KA E B
mEIETESR TR  ARBEEZES AR
HNEEMERERETAHEEREERA
REBEFEN ZFMBEHRERAARE (TA
R¥ 25 BRABHERIN ABEETRE
EREOMTITe

2

BOHEE

LEGAVBRREEAEENRBE_F
—tF+ A=+ RIFENMBREK-
B ARIIAR R ERERES B (2
EEBILEER) - EAKER2EGIRERT
LEMBZAIEPRRERRAERFTEE
M WEEAHRRIRE A REREENAZE
Cl¥R &8 (BNIRTF 2 F AR S B 85045
TMEIRERR 2 EREE)) - IR AR EH
BTt
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31 December 2017
—E—tF+ZA=+—H

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued) 2.14m&EE%E (&)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangement;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2017
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BOEE (&)

HARAEZAAZREARREARNERER
RESBLERN DRAZ B RIRE BN G
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RRHIEE

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued) 2.14m&E%E (&)

BOEE (&)

8 =E NSRS LA B AR g BeR
AT = TRIE R R R E R IR Z AN
R AKESEMFHETTHRIRE
FHRAENE B AR REEER
(WARREZSRE) IR F R

e AR SR B 2K 5 Y — R P BB 8 B 2 1 o) 4 - R
HEEBRANZMNBARZEE (BREEHE)
KB & (SRR e 2 BRE (B M (i h #E
BARCERZ R R B ER - REEROPTRAE
ZAEE FREETAREZAERBR
(i1 2 B TP (R R b EE A 2 B RRakEaAl © ST AT
REA 2 EWE MR A EBR D #85

BRASBEERLEAHEEXABNER
HESHHBERSLREEN (WEE) ©
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31 December 2017

—tF+=A=+—8

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies

and Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative
IAS 7
Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for

[AS 12 Unrealised Losses

Amendments to Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities:
IFRS 12 included in Clarification of the Scope of IFRS 12
Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

None of the above amendments to IFRSs has had a
significant financial effect on these financial statements.
Disclosure has been made in note 36 to the financial
statements upon the adoption of amendments to
IAS 7, which require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and
non-cash changes

The nature and the impact of the amendments are
described below:

(@ Amendments to IAS 7 require an entity to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
Disclosure of the changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities is provided in note 36 to the
financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures (continued)

(b)

Amendments to IAS 12 clarify that an entity, when
assessing whether taxable profits will be available
against which it can utilise a deductible temporary
difference, needs to consider whether tax law
restricts the sources of taxable profits against
which it may make deductions on the reversal of
that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance on how an
entity should determine future taxable profits and
explain the circumstances in which taxable profit
may include the recovery of some assets for more
than their carrying amount. The amendments
have had no impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group as the Group has no
deductible temporary differences or assets that
are in the scope of the amendments.

Amendments to IFRS 12 clarify that the disclosure
requirements in IFRS 12, other than those
disclosure requirements in paragraphs B10 to
B16 of IFRS 12, apply to an entity’s interest in
a subsidiary, a joint venture or an associate, or
a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an
associate that is classified as held for sale or
included in a disposal group classified as held for
sale. The amendments have had no impact on the
Group’s financial statements as the Group did not
have any interest that is classified as held for sale
as at 31 December 2017.
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting

Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to
IFRS 2

Amendments to
IFRS 4

IFRS 9
Amendments to
IFRS 9
Amendments to
IFRS 10 and IAS 28
IFRS 15
Amendments to
IFRS 15
IFRS 16
Amendments to IAS 40

IFRIC 22

IFRIC 23

Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions'
Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Financial Instruments’

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

Clarfications to IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers'

Leases?

Transfers of Investment Property"

Forejgn Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration’
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments®
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31 December 2017
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective 2.3 & 78 oK A AV B R B 7%
International Financial Reporting SRR (F
Standards (continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® B R B 7 R 5 2 B RIEEAT
VL
Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or GillS- il G EIEET AR 5 B
Settlement® ERILF:0IEHPN
Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Cils- il RBERAIRE S EH
Joint Ventures? %%%W@ﬂ$ RE
Annual Improvements ~ Amendments to IFRS 1 and IFRS 28' —E-IFEFE BRI BREENEIRR
2014-2016 Cycle = ; NEEER BREF ISR A5 AE R 28
FRA#E SREEET A
Annual Improvements ~ Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 ZE-RFZE B R B 7 R 5 2R B 2B 35
2015-2017 Cycle and IAS 232 ZE—+FHER BB B 7 1 o 2 Rl 11
FRA#E 5 B e s ERIE12
5 R Bl & 5t 4R 523
SREE T A2
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 ! RZZE—N\F—A—BRr&MABZFEH
January 2018 R
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 RZZ—NF—A— B &MABZFEH
January 2019 R
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 e RZZEZ—F—A— B &MABZFEH
January 2021 R
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available 4 18 R 788 7 o il A2 0 B AR ME B] A B AN

for adoption
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below:

The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 2 in June 2016
that address three main areas: the effects of vesting
conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction; the classification of
a share-based payment transaction with net settlement
features for withholding a certain amount in order to
meet an employee’s tax obligation associated with
the share-based payment; and accounting where a
modification to the terms and conditions of a share-
based payment transaction changes its classification
from cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments
clarify that the approach used to account for vesting
conditions when measuring equity-settled share-based
payments also applies to cash-settled share-based
payments. The amendments introduce an exception
so that a share-based payment transaction with net
share settlement features for withholding a certain
amount in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation
is classified in its entirety as an equity-settled share-
based payment transaction when certain conditions
are met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction are modified, with the
result that it becomes an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction, the transaction is accounted
for as an equity-settled transaction from the date of
the modification. On adoption, entities are required to
apply the amendments without restating prior periods,
but retrospective application is permitted if they elect
to adopt for all three amendments and other criteria
are met. The Group will adopt the amendments from
1 January 2018. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of
IFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace IAS 39 and all previous
versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group will
adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group will not
restate comparative information and will recognise any
transition adjustments against the opening balance of
equity at 1 January 2018. During 2017, the Group has
performed a detailed assessment of the impact of the
adoption of IFRS 9. The expected impacts relate to the
classification and measurement and the impairment
requirements and are summarised as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption
of IFRS 9 will have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial
assets. It expects to continue measuring at fair
value all financial assets currently held at fair value.
Equity investments currently held as available for
sale will be measured at fair values through other
comprehensive income as the investments are
intended to be held for the foreseeable future
and the Group expects to apply the option to
present fair value changes in other comprehensive
income. Gains and losses recorded in other
comprehensive income for the equity investments
cannot be recycled to profit or loss when the
investments are derecognised.
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective
International Financial Reporting

Standards (continued)

(b) Impairment

IFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt
instruments recorded at amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income,
lease receivables, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts that are not accounted for
at fair value through profit or loss under IFRS
9, to be recorded based on an expected credit
loss model either on a twelve-month basis or a
lifetime basis. The Group will apply the simplified
approach and record lifetime expected losses
that are estimated based on the present values of
all cash shortfalls over the remaining life of all of
its trade receivables. Furthermore, the Group will
apply the general approach and record twelve-
month expected credit losses that are estimated
based on the possible default events on its other
receivables within the next twelve months. The
Group has determined that the standard is not
expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements upon the initial
adoption of the standard.
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and in 1AS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or
loss resulting from the transaction is recognised
in the investor’'s profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or
joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date
of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed
by the IASB in December 2015 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion of
a broader review of accounting for associates and joint
ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

IFRS 15, issued in May 2014, establishes a new
five-step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer.
The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and
key judgements and estimates. The standard will
supersede all current revenue recognition requirements
under IFRSs. Either a full retrospective application or
a modified retrospective adoption is required on the
initial application of the standard. In April 2016, the
IASB issued amendments to IFRS 15 to address the
implementation issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus
agent and licences of intellectual property, and
transition. The amendments are also intended to help
ensure a more consistent application when entities
adopt IFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity
of applying the standard. The Group will adopt IFRS
15 from 1 January 2018 and plans to adopt the
transitional provisions in IFRS 15 to recognise the
cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained earnings at 1 January
2018. In addition, the Group plans to apply the new
requirements only to contracts that are not completed
before 1 January 2018. During 2017, the Group has
performed a detailed assessment on the impact of the
adoption of IFRS 15.
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

The Group’s principal activities consist of the
manufacture, development and sale of lead-acid
batteries and other related items. Upon the adoption
of IFRS 15, revenue from the sale of products will be
recognised at a point in time when control of the asset
is transferred to the customer. The standard is not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements upon the initial adoption of the
standard.

IFRS 16, issued in January 2016, replaces IAS 17
Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases -
Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities
for most leases. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases. At the commencement date
of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make
lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-
of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property in IAS 40, or relates to a class of
property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation
model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently
increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability
and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be
required to separately recognise the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on
the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required
to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence
of certain events, such as change in the lease term
and change in future lease payments resulting from a
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting
under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the
accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify all leases using the same classification principle
as in IAS 17 and distinguish between operating
leases and finance leases. IFRS 16 requires lessees
and lessors to make more extensive disclosures
than under IAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the
standard using either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach. The Group expects to adopt
IFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of IFRS 16 upon adoption and is
considering whether it will choose to take advantage of
the practical expedients available and which transition
approach and reliefs will be adopted. As disclosed in
note 38(b) to the financial statements, at 31 December
2017, the Group had future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate
of approximately RMB5,842,000. Upon adoption of
IFRS 16, certain amounts included therein may need
to be recognised as new right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities. Further analysis, however, will be needed to
determine the amount of new rights of use assets and
lease liabilities to be recognised, including, but not
limited to, any amounts relating to leases of low-value
assets and short term leases, other practical expedients
and reliefs chosen, and new leases entered into before
the date of adoption.
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Amendments to IAS 40, issued in December 2016,
clarify when an entity should transfer property, including
property under construction or development, into or
out of investment property. The amendments state that
a change in use occurs when the property meets, or
ceases to meet, the definition of investment property
and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere
change in management’s intentions for the use of a
property does not provide evidence of a change in use.
The amendments should be applied prospectively to
the changes in use that occur on or after the beginning
of the annual reporting period in which the entity first
applies the amendments. An entity should reassess
the classification of property held at the date that it first
applies the amendments and, if applicable, reclassify
property to reflect the conditions that exist at that
date. Retrospective application is only permitted if it
is possible without the use of hindsight. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2018. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

IFRIC 22, issued in December 2016, provides guidance
on how to determine the date of the transaction when
applying IAS 21 to the situation where an entity receives
or pays advance consideration in a foreign currency
and recognises a non-monetary asset or liability. The
interpretation clarifies that the date of the transaction
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to
use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense
or income (or part of it) is the date on which an entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset (such
as a prepayment) or non-monetary liability (such as
deferred income) arising from the payment or receipt
of the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance of recognising the
related item, the entity must determine the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration. Entities may apply the interpretation on a
full retrospective basis or on a prospective basis, either
from the beginning of the reporting period in which the
entity first applies the interpretation or the beginning
of the prior reporting period presented as comparative
information in the financial statements of the reporting
period in which the entity first applies the interpretation.
The Group expects to adopt the interpretation
prospectively from 1 January 2018. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

IFRIC 23, issued in June 2017, addresses the
accounting for income taxes (current and deferred)
when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of IAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain
tax positions”). The interpretation does not apply to
taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does
it specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (i)
the assumptions an entity makes about the examination
of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (i) how an
entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax
bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts
and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the
use of hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of application as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application, without the
restatement of comparative information. The Group
expects to adopt the interpretation from 1 January
2019. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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31 December 2017
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies

Investments in associates and joint
ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures (continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as
part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint
ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over
the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon
loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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31 December 2017
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.
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31 December 2017
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments,
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss
and certain available-for-sale investments at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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31 December 2017
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques

for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

When an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, financial assets and deferred tax
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated as the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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31 December 2017
—+tF+-A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant AXTESTTHEBE (&

Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
()  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or
@iy is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group;

or
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31 December 2017
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2.4 Summary of Significant AXTESTHEBE (&
Accounting Policies (continued)

Related parties (continued) BAE AT (&)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following b BEAATAEBREALTEENEE:
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the ) ZELERAEEBR--SBEHK
same group; IEUNE]

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of i)y —BEAZ-EE(IZ—EBEY
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or AT B ATSEEERBA
fellow subsidiary of the other entity); B A S D

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of iy ZELCRAEBAR-F=HHK
the same third party; S

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy —EBREF=-ZFHNAZLE M
and the other entity is an associate of the E—EEAR—F=FNEEN
third entity; al:

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan V) HERERAREENEAEEGH
for the benefit of employees of either the BEHEEEENSMENES
Group or an entity related to the Group; BB 2B METE

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by V) ZEEAEPTIA TR st
a person identified in (a); Joe i)

(vi) a person identified in (a)() has significant Vi) PEIOFTHRBIALTHEREES
influence over the entity or is a member of é%&-jg%*?ggf (REZEBL T)
the key management personnel of the entity BIEBAEN—FEKE &

(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of Vi) ZERRZTEMBER M
which it is a part, provides key management KEARAEAEBSNAEZE Y T
personnel services to the Group or to the NREHEEEERABRS-

parent of the Group.
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31 December 2017
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2.4 Summary of Significant AXTESTHEBE (&

Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 8 — 10 years
Office equipment 3 -5 years
Motor vehicles 4 -5 years
Tooling and equipment 3 -5 years
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and depreciation methods are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant
and machinery under construction or installation and
testing. It is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction or installation and testing and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction or installation and
testing. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.
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31 December 2017
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives ranging from 20 to 48 years.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance
with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” up to the date of change
in use.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises the land
costs, construction costs, capitalised borrowing costs
and other cost directly attributed to such properties
during the period of construction.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE i3

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Properties under development
(continued)

Properties under development are initially classified as
non-current assets and transferred to current assets
under the category of properties held for sale when
the construction of the relevant properties commences
and the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete within the
normal operating cycle.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined by an apportionment of the total land and
buildings costs attributable to unsold properties. Net
realisable value is estimated by the directors based on
the prevailing market prices, on an individual property
basis.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition as cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair
value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed to be finite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Computer software

Computer software of the Group is amortised on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 10
years.

Customer relationship

Customer relationship of the Group is amortised on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 10
years.

Trademark

Trademark of the Group is amortised on the straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life of 8 years.

Licence

Licence of the Group is amortised on the straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life of 10 years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Research and development costs (continued)

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-
line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying
products not exceeding five years, commencing from
the date when the products are put into commercial
production.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases, net of any
incentives received from the lessor, are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.
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31 December 2017
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Operating leases (continued)

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE i3

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by IAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the statement of financial position at
fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends or interest
earned on these financial assets, which are recognised
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39
are satisfied.
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in the statement
of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in
this category are those which are intended to be held
for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to
changes in market conditions.
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31 December 2017
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2.4 Summary of Significant AXESTHEBE (&
Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets REGEMESHERE (/&)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued) = (1)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued) AEEESTISE (&)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial VIETERIE AP ESRITEEHIZ UL
investments are subsequently measured at fair value, BEHtE ﬂ{ﬁgﬁfﬁqﬁ(}\j@ﬂgb‘/\—_ﬁ =1
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other BELBEEZAEMZENZ BEERIE
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale FERIRE (R stizi s Eiania 2’%5@*”)1?
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is BEWErERE (2t EE e ¢
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss HER BB EREENNERIERE) BlL-
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, or until BAIHEESMITEMBEINT 8 LT E
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the AR2HAT BUSRIEEWZS  BIETX
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available- [WaR ] FTE R NS R NER AEM
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement 5o

of profit or loss. Interest and dividends earned whilst
holding the available-for-sale financial investments
are reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments EFLTRABRENRAABERRQANE
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability BEEGSEENES LY ZISEMEBEX
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is (o) i S E AR TETE T RO R B DL A IR R
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities {3 B A BEA Lifffaﬁlﬁﬁﬂ/inga-l-iﬁq
of the various estimates within the range cannot ZEWE DA R BB 185 BR

be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to the statement of
profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment
using the effective interest rate. Any difference between
the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using
the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded
in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, and has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continued to recognise the transferred asset
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of the reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset or
a group of financial assets have an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the assets’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of
the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate
of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is
credited to the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Avallable-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss
— is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for
sale are not reversed through the statement of profit or
loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investrments (continued)

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration or
extent to which the fair value of an investment is less
than its cost.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or
loans and borrowings as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills
payables, other payables and accruals, derivative
financial instruments and interest-bearing bank
borrowings.
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurerment

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
statement of profit or loss does not include any interest
charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39
are satisfied.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such
as forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign
currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities
when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are recognised directly in the statement of
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis. The costs of raw materials comprise
the purchasing costs of the materials and other costs
incurred in bringing the materials to their present
locations and conditions. The costs of work in progress
and finished goods comprise direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of manufacturing
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices, less estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group
on certain products are recognised based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of repairs
and returns, discounted to their present values as
appropriate.
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

° where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
government grant account and is released to the
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life
of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received,
excluding other sales taxes or duties. The following
specific recognition criteria must also be met before
revenue is recognised:

@

©®)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred, the title has
been passed to the buyer and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably, provided
that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods
sold.

Sale of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the properties sold.
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31 December 2017
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
(c) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying
the rate that discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

(d)  Rental incorme

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion
basis over the lease terms.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial lattice model, further details of
which are given in note 33 to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of the reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

2.4 ER = n-I_JBZ *E)%R (/:E

DR BERNNIR (F)

DA R E X DI ARERE R, SRS
RIS EIETNERA $H$Efiﬁbﬂﬂﬁﬂx
REPNME BB NIBA X ARERR - BB B BAATEY
WEBR UEREER X%ﬁﬁﬁ%mﬂ’ﬂ%ﬁ
B RRTREHERNEE RS EH
REEAS B R T AME N &EMET-
HARNBEXRNELXECS R B
KR FrERE Rt B RO E S -

EERB ELEBAREELTERBRE R
FEMIZRIBIGNT - HEREZAIRIT 2 AT REMER
WAERBRREBRASE R TAHE
ZEAEME R — 8B o TR IR IR S AR
ERHBZRAREBER MR ERTEL
AR RARE RS Bk 2 AR E R A IE
B FRIETE RS &SR BIEM B
AIZEER B (AT O B2 R 2 A (B (A BRI
B R BN ST 8 o

HRBRARERIETIHRILR, LR G
T B AR I 5 5 B ) 3R 3 T e SR A P S o i
W B AT IS IR R A b
MR SRB G EBITOERT Tk
DRI GEE %%M#%Eﬁé BRARS
i’ﬂﬁf’ﬁﬁm

BErEBRMERARA | —F—LFFR

3

159




160

31 December 2017
—E—tFt+A=1+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised as expenses in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when
they are proposed and declared.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities
in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

31 December 2017
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31 December 2017
TtF+=A=1—A

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries and associates are currencies other than
the RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

31 December 2017
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31 December 2017
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Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independent of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties
comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If
the portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Judgements (continued)

Recognition of a deferred tax liability for withholding
taxes

The PRC New Corporate Income Tax Law, which
became effective on 1 January 2008, states that
the distribution of dividends by a foreign-invested
enterprise established in Mainland China to its foreign
investors, from its earnings of 2008 or thereafter, shall
be subject to withholding taxes at an applicable rate of
5% or 10%. The Directors had assessed whether it is
probable for the Group’s PRC subsidiaries to distribute
dividends out of their profits earned after 1 January
2008. For details, refer to note 31 to the financial
statements.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial years, are described
below.

Impairment of gooawill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2017
was RMB8,699,000 (2016: RMB8,660,000). Further
details are given in note 17 to the financial statements.
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31 December 2017
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Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment of trade receivables is made based
on an assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables. The identification of doubtful debts requires
management’s judgement and estimates. Provision is
made when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect the debts. Where the actual
outcome or future expectation is different from the
original estimate, the differences will impact the carrying
value of the receivables, doubtful debt expenses and
write-back of impairment of trade receivables in the
period in which the estimate has been changed.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end
of each reporting period. Other non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an
asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Usetul lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations, competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycles or unforeseeable change in legal
enforcement rights in future. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write off or write
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.

Usetul lives of intangible assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related amortisation charges for its intangible assets.
This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful life of intangible assets of similar
functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations. Management reassesses the
useful lives at each reporting date.

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

BERGHE R (&

st TREME (&)
W% R RRH T

AEBETEYF BB MREOMGEEAIER
FRNARBITE S - Z AT ENEE R
BERRE MR BE MR R ER A A F
HIR B RRMIEL - G RARMEH - 5
HBFRAERIRNTTEBHELARITEXA
BEENITRERTAFAERNEE A AR
HE EEEENAERAFHRRLC GRS
FG B3R AN BE S M - S I S OB S AT BR
EdCBEERIHENIERBEE-

I ER A FE

A AR A A T R
PR i < S AR AR SR
AEMERT (A WOBEERT (e
o & R A TR A E AN - EEEE
s REETERES.

BELEBRRMERAR | T tFFH

169




170

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#sRRMIEE

31 December 2017

3.

—tF+-A=+—8

Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of an inventory is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
selling products of a similar nature which could
change significantly as a result of competitor actions.
Management reassesses these estimates at each
reporting date. During the year ended 31 December
2017, the amount of inventories provision recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss was
RMB3,957,000 (2016: RMB14,491,000) (note 6).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The amount of unrecognised tax losses as
at 31 December 2017 was RMB75,857,000 (2016:
RMB67,143,000). Further details are included in note
31 to the financial statements.
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Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation of share options

As described in note 33 to the financial statements,
the fair value of options granted under the share option
scheme is determined using the binomial lattice model.
The significant inputs into the model were the weighted
average share price at the grant date, risk-free interest
rate, exercise price, expected volatility of the underlying
shares, expected dividend yield and expected life of
options.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with
the accounting policy for research and development
costs in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
Determining the amounts to be capitalised requires
management to make assumptions regarding the
expected future cash generation of the assets,
discount rates to be applied and the expected period
of benefits. At 31 December 2017, the best estimate
of the carrying amount of capitalised development
costs was RMB361,968,000 (2016: RMB257,121,000).
Further details are included in note 18 to the financial
statements.
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31 December 2017
—E—tFt+A=1+—H

4.

Operating Segment Information

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture,
development and sale of lead-acid batteries and other
related items.

International Financial Reporting Standard 8 Operating
Segments requires operating segments to be identified
on the basis of internal reports about components
of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM”) in order to
allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance. The information reported to the executive
directors of the Company, who is the Group’s CODM
for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment
of performance, does not contain profit or loss
information of each product line and the executive
directors reviewed the gross profit of the Group as a
whole reported under IFRSs. Therefore, the operation
of the Group constitutes one reportable segment.
Accordingly, no segment information is presented.

No segment assets and liabilities, and related other

segment information were presented as no such
discrete financial information is provided to the CODM.

Information about products

4.

/
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Em&EH

An analysis of revenue by products is as follows:

REmE DR aE DT -

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—REF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREBEFIT

Lead-acid batteries INEREE) 7,661,343 6,262,870
Recycled lead products [B] g 3 EE 1,754,834 -
Others i) 49,267 -
9,465,444 6,262,870
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31 December 2017
—E—+F+=-_A=+—H

4. Operating Segment Information 4. B& D IER (&
(continued)

Geographical information i EE R
(a)  Revenue from external customers @ KEIEEFEMKE
2017 2016
— E i = ﬂE 7‘ 7N $
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETF T
PRC s 6,389,915 3,773,107
European Union Eg:] 902,930 761,715
USA = 895,555 762,237
Other Asian countries/areas HEa s MNER, & 887,497 685,775
Other countries H A B 389,547 280,036
9,465,444 6,262,870
The revenue information above is based on the FiEEER DERE R E DT

locations of the customers.
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31 December 2017
—T—+F+=ZA=+—H

4. Operating Segment Information 4.

(continued)
Geographical information (continued)

(b)  Non-current assets

REDEER (&)

HEER (F)

b FEREBEE

2017 2016

—E—tF e ANS

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R AREFTT

PRC s 2,709,583 2,195,708
Other countries/areas HMBERE 158,604 187,533
2,868,187 2,383,241

The non-current asset information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes
financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue from each major customer, including sales
to a group of entities which are known to be under
common control with that customer, which accounted
for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, is set out below:

ERIERB AR AR AR AR
REHNT - BT RESRT AR

THEE
FHRETEEFNESR

EAEEBEE T —tFER-_T— X Ft+=
A=Z+— B LEFEREM10%AE - REE
FTERFNNEG (BREA—EEEXZER
HEES N EEETHHEE) HIWT

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-REF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®EF T

Customer A K H 1,269,150 -
Customer B 2EZ 1,099,791 1,589,080
2,368,941 1,589,080

Except for the aforesaid, no single external customer PR _ESCRrafiE o - I R B B — HNER R P AG

accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.
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Revenue, Other Income and 5.

Gains

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods
sold. An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

Wz~ AW K Wz

B

W RPrE MR RRE - AR Bl
WA KMz DI T -

as follows:
2017 2016
—E-+tF —E-RETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBFTT
Revenue Wz
Sale of goods HEED 9,465,444 6,262,870
Other income and gains HAa g A RS
Rental income HaE WA 4,765 3,563
Bank interest income RITH B UA 13,374 8,717
Government grants* I8 4 B 24,096 15,655
Sale of scrap materials SHERER 6,685 3,577
Foreign exchange gains, net HINEE P& H s - SRR 37,121 -
Reversal of impairment of B 5 WS IR R E R E
trade receivables 7,713 -
Gains on disposal of items of property, BEYE WEEFREEED
plant and equipment W - 956
Fair value gain from derivative PTESRT BEW=
financial instruments, net FER 1,166 3,551
Dividend income from available-for-sale REAHEERER
investments % B A 1,301 15,728
Gain on remeasurement of the previously B &t & % B — )
held interest in a joint venture ER-WNSIESRE: Eal: ol E - 10,502
Gain on bargain purchase (note 35) B U EE W (FY5ES5) 880
Others HAith 4,643 3,503
101,744 65,752

The government grants represent various cash payments

and subsidies provided by the local government
authorities to the Group as encouragement to its
investment and technological innovation. There are no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these

grants.

* AT BE T 83 75 BT BB P46 T AR B A &
TEIR & RIE ARG - LABRENIR & R BT BT
MEBEZEMUNOREER GG HHIAE
pigs
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31 December 2017
—E—tFt+A=1+—H

6. Profit Before Tax 6. BiATm Al
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after REBABRDEF LR, (FTA) LA TIA
charging/(crediting): BigfsH
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

P £ AR®TR ARETTT

Cost of inventories sold &R & KA 7,219,119 4,323,388
Employee benefit expense EERNMAX
(including directors’ remuneration (BREESHe
(note 8)): GEIDE
Wages and salaries IERF=® 731,043 598,075
Performance-related bonuses B EMRTEAT - 1,645
Equity-settled share option N RSB r AR E
expenses Sz 4,643 1,376
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIME K 63,283 45,144
798,969 646,240
Amortisation of other intangible H b\ & E
assets except for deferred GEE R ZRABRIN)
development costs 18 15,040 2,586
Research and development costs: 3 fi A~
Deferred development costs iR T R B K AN B
amortised* 18 73,809 57,041
Current year expenditure FARRX 143,084 101,865
216,893 158,906
Auditor’'s remuneration ZE AN BN & 2,600 2,500
Derivative financial instruments: PTESBMITA:
Unrealised loss REIREE 207 6,946
Realised gain BRI (1,373) (10,497)
Fair value gain from derivative T IAERNRER
financial instruments, net Wz - B8 (1,166) (3,551)
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Profit Before Tax (continued)

. BiAl

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

1a A (&)

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR®TR AR®F T
Equity investments at fair value NABEEHT ABREN
through profit or loss: = MRE
Unrealised loss/(gain) AERERE (W) 1,050 (648)
Realised loss 2R EE - 4,014
Fair value loss from equity NABEEZEFA
investments at fair value through BamEETREN
profit or loss, net* NABEEEE  F5E* 1,050 3,366
Depreciation of property, Y- REREEITE
plant and equipment 13 218,888 196,478
Depreciation of investment properties % E& ME & 14 1,321 1,188
Amortisation of prepaid land lease  FE + 1 FH & k1B 8
payments 16 3,656 2,844
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment ‘2 5 E WA CREEE] )
of trade receivables® JORAE 24 (7,713) 21,910
Impairment of inventories* EFERE" 3,957 14,491
Loss/(gain) on disposal of BREME - WEKEE
items of property, HEMEE (KE)
plant and equipment, net* FER 611 (956)
Loss on remeasurement of EFFTEEAN—E
the previously held interest in FENRIE AR
an associate* (note 35) E1a* (f13E35) 2,064 -
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss, net SNEE R, (Mz) B
SEag (37,121) 49,191
Minimum lease payments under KEMETHREAE
operating leases EQEE] 9,717 9,260
Loss on a fire incident** )\ KBk 28,153 -

BELEBRRMERAR | T tFFH

177




178

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#sRRMIEE

31 December 2017

6.

—tF+-A=+—8

Profit Before Tax (continued)

The amortisation of deferred development costs and
impairment of inventories are included in “Cost of sales” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The net fair value loss from equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss, impairment of trade receivables,
net loss on disposal of items of property, plant and
equipment, loss on remeasurement of the previously held
interest in an associate, net foreign exchange loss and
loss on a fire incident are included in “Other expenses” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

On 13 December 2017, one of the battery assembly
plants of the Group’s production factory in Malaysia,
caught fire, resulting in losses on inventories and
property, plant and equipment of RMB17,879,000
and RMB10,274,000, respectively. A net loss of
RMB28,153,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the current year.

Finance Costs

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

BA =N (&)

- EIEFR A R ERES AGERE
RIBERAK] F o

# ARBEEHAABRNBERERENAR

BEBEFE BZRKKRERE BEY

% MR R i IR B BB RFRE - BT

R—TEBEREHAERNE R SNER

?E@%E&)\“TE?E.#)\Z ARER b
)

" R-ZE—tF+—A+=8 AEEERA
DHEEREN —EEMARERMKAN D7
EREEURYE BERSHEBEIARE
17,879,0007T & A R #10,274,00070 ° A R
28,153,000t 2 E 1B FRENAFEHFAIE

1 AR

FATERRARDHTIAT -

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREF T

Interest on bank borrowings IRITEEFE 114,274 74,645
Interest arising from discounted bills BRIREIEELEAFE 37,514 34,286
151,788 108,931
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

8. Directors’ Remuneration 8.

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of

EEWE

B ETRA BB R EEHI5383(1)@) - ()
ORkOiER AR (HEEEFSER) RHIFE2

31 December 2017

—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the AR s FAEEMEMT:
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF AN S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETF T
Fees we 728 824
Other emoluments: Hibil < -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & 285 & & 918 7 1,862 2,153
Performance-related bonuses BRI AT - 1,645
Equity-settled share option expenses — LAME %5 45 & & BE AL 4 5 S 269 42
Pension scheme contributions BRIREET AR 86 85
2,217 3,925
2,945 4,749
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31 December 2017
—T-tF+-A=+-H

8. Directors’ Remuneration 8. EEM<E (&

(continued)

(@) Independent non-executive
directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive
directors were as follows:

Salaries,

allowances

and benefits

Fees in kind

¥e BER

ik ENEA
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  AREBTR

(@) BIUFHATES

FBYIFATESE N 2Bl T :

Performance-  Equity-settled
related  share option
bonuses expenses
NEREEN

BHENRL  BREEX
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  AREBTR

Pension
scheme
contributions Total
Bhe
B 5 L

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETR

2017 ZB-tF
Mr. Lau Chi Kit BGEE 201 - - 87 - 288
Dr. Gong Fangxiong* EREEL 125 - - - - 125
Mr. Liu Yangsheng EDES 201 - - 87 - 288
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan BMELE 201 - - 87 - 288
728 - - 261 - 989
2016 N3
Mr. Lau Chi Kit B e 206 - - 14 - 220
Dr. Gong Fangxiong* EhEEt 206 - - - - 206
Mr. Liu Yangsheng BGERE 206 - - 14 - 220
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan EERE 206 - - 14 - 220
824 - - 42 - 866

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2016: Nil).

* Dr. Gong Fangxiong resigned as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 16 June
2017.
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(continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

8. Directors’ Remuneration

(b) Executive directors and a non-
executive director

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

8. ESM<E (&

(b) MITESERFHATES

Salaries,
allowances  Performance-  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expenses  contributions Total
¥e BER DEREEN BRe
ik EVER  EREHTL BRERX B 5 ]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARBTT  ARETR  ARETr  ARETR  ARETR
2017 ZB-tF
Executive directors: HiTES:
Mr. Dong Li BXgh - 830 - - 78 908
Ms. Zhao Huan* HEL T - 836 - 8 8 852
- 1,666 - 8 86 1,760
Non-executive director: ERES:
Mr. Phiip Armstrong Noznesky  Philip Armstrong Noznesky
bk - 196 - - - 196
- 1,862 - 8 86 1,956
2016 “E-RE
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Dong Li Yt - 830 - - 77 907
Ms. Zhao Huan* BRI - 857 - - 8 865
- 1,687 - - 85 1,772
Non-executive director: FRiTES:
Mr. Philip Armstrong Noznesky  Philip Armstrong Noznesky
bt - 466 1,645 - - 2,111
- 2,153 1,645 - 85 3,883

*

* HEL LR RAR R ITHAEH -

Ms. Zhao Huan is also the chief executive of the
Company.

FARBTAEHEENELRENE
ERMERN LT (ZT—RF:E) -

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2016: Nil).
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31 December 2017
—T—+F+=ZA=+—H

9. Five Highest Paid Employees 9. A¥EZaHMES

The five highest paid employees during the year FARGEATMNEEHR BEMA(ZE
included two (2016: three) directors, details of whose —RNFZR)EF HEMFEHN LW
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of A8 AN HBp =R (ZF—R"F:MA)IF
the remuneration for the year of the remaining three Ex ey MEENFTMNEFBEINT
(2016: two) non-director, highest paid employees are as
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®ETTT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ ~ £ 86 & & ¥)1& 5 2,747 1,457
Equity-settled share option expenses LA %5 45 & &9 BE A HE B S 927 342
Pension scheme contributions BRIRSETEIH R 33 15
3,707 1,814
The number of non-director, highest paid employees FTMBE T HEZIFEENRETMEE A
whose remuneration fell within the following band is as SN

follows:

Number of employees

EEA"
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
Nil to RMB1,000,000 ARBZETE

AR #1,000,0007T 1 1

RMB1,000,000 to RMB2,000,000 AR #1,000,0007T &
A R#2 000,0007T 2 1
3 2
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10.Income Tax

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions
in which members of the Group are domiciled and
operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Company is not subject to any income tax
in this jurisdiction.

The subsidiaries, Honour Label, Peak Year, Shieldon,
and Catherine Holdings, which were incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, are not subject to income tax
as these subsidiaries do not have a place of business
(other than a registered office only) or carry on any
business in the British Virgin Islands.

LLeoch Battery Corp., incorporated in the United States,
is subject to corporate income tax in the United States.
The applicable federal corporate income tax rate is
in the range of 15% to 35% (2016: 15% to 35%) on
taxable income.

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is based
on the statutory rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) of the
assessable profits of the subsidiary incorporated in
Hong Kong, i.e., Leoch Power Supply. No provision for
Hong Kong profits tax has been made by Leoch Battery
Company and Big Help as they did not carry on any
business in Hong Kong or had no assessable profits
arising in or derived from Hong Kong during the year.

The Singapore authority approved Leoch Battery Pte.’s
application for the Global Trader Programme status on
24 May 2014. The provision for Leoch Battery Pte.’s
current income tax is based on the tax rate of 10%
(2016: 10%).

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

10. FT 8%

AEBARAEBRE RRNEEMREE
PR RDEE B R P £ SRR B IR E
BEEGNAEHR -

RIEFASEHSHHRAFEN RRB]HBAER
A AVEE BRI FTEH

FRAE R B B S A 2 a0 b B A =) (AP
Honour Label - Peak Year - Shieldon }2 Catherine
Holdings ) /A 28 BB B 2 ¥ S 30 Lk /5 &8 St B
(FEM IS RBRIN) S &M 2T - Bt RZ
ZHB A R BIBBMNETISHL

Leoch Battery Corp. JiAE Bk AL » 7B SE
Bl AN TS H - BLERBIM M 5 - E A
HBSE I TSR E N T15%E35%.2 8 (=
T—RE N F15%E35%) °

ERF GRS BRRREBTMA LD
MEAR NETERNERTER  1EFE
BE16.5% (ZF—7"F :165% )5t H - HR
Leoch Battery Company & Big Helpll £& 55 & 74
WEEMEL IR ANFEALEREBE
A SR BRE (] EFR B s A - iU EL I B EHIR R
NG

FIMEERBR T —NERA-+mA#E
Leoch Battery Pte. 5 B 2 Bk & 5 i 5T 217 AY
FARE ° Leoch Battery Pte. BNERFT1S 1 Jhi% 8 K
10% (=ZZF—75F 1 10% ) st iR s
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31 December 2017
—E—tFt+A=1+—H

10.Income Tax (continued)

The provision for PRC current income tax is based on
the statutory rate of 25% of the assessable profits of
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC as determined
in accordance with the PRC Corporate Income Tax
Law which was approved and became effective on 1
January 2008, except for certain subsidiaries of the
Group in the PRC which are taxed at preferential rates.

Jiangsu Leoch, Anhui Leoch Power and Anhui Uplus
were designated as high-tech enterprises by the
PRC tax authorities in 2015 and were entitled to a
preferential tax rate of 15% for the year 2017.

Taihe Dahua with respect to qualified recycling
businesses is entitled to claim 10% deduction of
revenue for manufacturing qualified products with main
qualified raw materials.

The major components of income tax charge for the
year are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#sRRMIEE

10. FT5%% (

V=1

=]

SRR ER R BN E THBAREREESR
S FREIBNERRR S B B IR IB R B PR 1S
BE (R -_ZETN\F—H—BEMERER)
1R S E R B B0 P B 2 BB FEER A4 A A

25%H) A TE TR

K-

IEIE L ZHIB LRI BN ENER
—T-REREPENBE RER SR
TR — T FHNEEMEHESIE%

MEEROWER TS AMBARE]EK
NGB EATEAEREMBAESBRER
Frig Uz t10% ©

FRMMEHA B EZEKHAIAT

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZT—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBFT
Current - PRC BN BRI — 18,036 39,031
Current — Hong Kong BIERRS IR — &5 5,248 3,819
Current — Singapore BIERF T8 — $7 N3 7,202 5,958
Current — USA B ERTTE — £ 3,884 891
Deferred tax R IR 982 (950)
Total tax charge for the year FAIEBESL HERE 35,352 48,749
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31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

. 7 v ==
10.Income Tax (continued) 10. RiEH (&
A recondiliation of the income tax expense applicable to BASE RO ARFMAAEBRR (BIFEH)
profit before tax at the statutory rate for the country in RETE MR E R EARB AR MR TSR
which the majority of the companies of the Group are X BZ BRI R ENHIA R AE RN
domiciled (i.e., the PRC) to the tax expense at effective T

tax rate is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF ZT-RF
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR®TR % ARETFT %
Profit before tax A& 306,832 280,536
Tax at the applicable REAREAED
tax rate 18 86,092 28.0 52,866 18.9
Tax concession for ETHEARN
certain subsidiaries MBEE (46,827) (15.3) (32,478) (11.6)
Additional deductible BE ST HIR A 2
research and 53
development expenses (8,059) (2.6) (7,832) (2.8)
Income not subject to tax ~ H7EEF Yz (9,459) (3.1) (2,520) 0.9)
Expenses not deductible A/ H1#FI %
for tax 4,649 1.5 23,513 8.4
Tax losses not recognised KR FIEE 12 11,509 3.8 15,200 5.4
Tax losses utilised from BRI
previous periods HIEE B (2,553) (0.8) - -
Tax charge at the Group’s  EASEEEH X
effective rate A EHBIA R X 35,352 11.5 48,749 17.4
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31 December 2017

11

12.

—tF+-A=+—8

of any final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2017.

Earnings Per Share Attributable
to Ordinary Equity Holders of
the Parent

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 1,355,932,999
(2016: 1,353,330,795) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share
amount is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2017

12.

.Dividends 1. KE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®F T

Final — Nil (2016: 5.50 HK cents) RE-FRRZHE
per share (ZZF—"F :550810) - 66,582
The Company does not intend to declare the payment Aol A gpEE—_S—+tF+=-A

=t+—RIFEEIREMRAKRE -

SYNGI=Eel s = 2PN
SREF

SREARNSEDRG DT EBESH

EABGFEEEMNREFRDETERARM
1 ¥ 19 801,355,932, 9991&( T—XNF:
1,353,330,7950% ) AL AR &
Hﬁiﬁ%@%@%ﬁ)ﬂﬁf&— ﬂtu%éﬁé%ﬁ
ANEFREFAEESE BT
REFHEIRFRNEBITY mﬂx%za(éﬁi

qu S FREARBNPTAERR) - ARBRRR
EERABEHSEBRAERITERRSE
AR SR B BT A E A Y hRE S A B
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31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

12.Earnings Per Share Attributable 12. 8 A B BERIEE AEMG
to Ordinary Equity Holders of FRER (&)

the Parent (continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share BRER RSB IRE ISR E
are based on:
2017 2016
—E—+tEF —ET—R%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AREF T
Earnings B
Profit attributable to ordinary equity %%ﬁ%iﬂﬂ$&%%%ﬂ2
holders of the parent, used in RAEBERFEA
the basic and diluted earnings FEAS =
per share calculations 242,885 241,898
Number of shares
R &R
2017 2016
—E—+tF e NS
Shares idvi)
Weighted average number of AR ESRERZT 2
ordinary shares in issue during FREBEITEERINE
the year used in the basic earnings Fi5 8k
per share calculation 1,355,932,999 1,353,330,795
Effect of dilution — weighted average ey g —LmRmeE
number of ordinary shares: F19E:
Share options i I 6,579,244 784,213

1,362,512,243 1,354,115,008
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31 December 2017

“EtEF Bt

13.Property, Plant and Equipment

13. 9% - BER=&E

Plant and Office Motor Toolingand  Construction
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
BF R R WAERE RE IARRE ERIR @it
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR AREBTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR
31 December 2017 Z2-t%+ZB=1-H
Cost: KA
At 31 December 2016 and RZZ-R"E+-A=+-R
1 January 2017 kZZ2-t5-A-B 753,217 1,573,863 29,965 32,827 198,640 253,292 2,841,804
Additions HE 41,387 156,244 2382 11,534 25437 77,259 314,243
Transfer to investment BRERENE (Frit14)
properties (note 14) - - - - - (14,380) (14,380)
Acquisition from a subsidary DRl
(note 35) (Bit335) - 106,015 - - - = 106,015
Transfers e 83,000 18,322 - - - (101,322) -
Disposals EE 2,337) (12:427) (599) (041) (920) S (17,224)
Exchange realignment X AR (3,114) (1,781) (45) (61) (278) - (5,279)
At 31 December 2017 R-E—t+E+-A=+-8 872,153 1,840,236 31,703 43,359 222,879 214,849 3225179
Accumulated depreciation and 25T E R
impairment:
At 31 December 2016 and BWZZ-R"E+ZA=+—-H
1 January 2017 k=T—+%-A-H (165,013) (593,710) (22,527) (24,073 (157,235) (1,569) (964,127)
Depreciation provided FRTERE
during the year (35,730) (152,982) (3,334) (4,227) (22,615) - (218,888)
Acquisition from a subsidiary DRl
(note 35) (Hist3s) = 4,085) o = - - 4,085)
Disposals RE % 4,899 161 756 671 - 6,581
Exchange realignment ERHE 989 444 8 12 4 - 1,497
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+E+-A=+-8 (199,660) (745,414) (25,692) (27,532) (179,135) (1,569) (1,179,002)
Net carrying amount: REFE:
At 31 December 2017 RoZ—+E+-F=+-8 672,493 1,094,822 6,011 15,827 43,744 213,280 2,046,177
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13.Property, Plant and Equipment

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

13. 9% - BB K&t (&)

(continued)
Plant and Office Motor Tooling and Construction
Buidings machinery equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
BF B R 2 WRER HE IARZHE ERIE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT
31 December 2016 “Z-NE+-A=+-H
Cost: KA
At 31 December 2015 and RZZ-RE+ZA=1+-H
1 January 2016 k=Z-7:%—-F-B 705,430 1,461,150 21517 31,366 178,851 187,536 2,591,850
Additions RE 1,970 99,058 2,112 1,771 16,108 86,771 207,790
Acquisttion from a subsidiary w—ARE L Rk 39,212 28,720 482 1,181 3910 231 73,736
Transfers ] 10,766 8040 - - 1426 (20239) -
Disposals RE (9,006) (03473 (189 (1,547) (1,660) (1,014) (36,889
Exchange realignment A8 4,845 368 37 56 5 - 5311
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~E+ZA=1-H 763,217 1,673,863 29,965 32,821 198,640 263,292 2,841,804
Accumulated depreciatonand R TE RHfE:
impairment:
At 31 December 2015 and RZZF-RF+-A=+—H
1 January 2016 R-%-~5-A-B (135,619 (468,184 (20264) 21,622 (125,608) (1,569) (772,366)
Depreciation provided during FRTERE
the year (09442) (131,227) 0273 (3.139) (30,397) - (196,478
Acquisition from a subsidiary Bl (942) (5,426) (121) (392) (2,046) - (8.927)
Disposals RE 1,666 11,210 162 1,123 817 - 14,968
Exchange realignment XA (666) 83) (31) 43) (1) - (824)
At 31 December 2016 RoE-AE+-A=t+-H (165,019 (593,710) (22,527) 24,073) (157,235 (1,569) (964,127)
Net carrying amount: REFE:
At 31 December 2016 WZE-R~E+ZA=1+-H 588,204 980,153 7,438 8,754 41,405 251,723 1,877,677

At 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s
buildings and machinery with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB747,778,000 (2016:
RMB643,415,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group. For details of
pledged assets, please refer to note 37 to the financial

statements.

R-ZE—+FE+_A=1+—08 KEEET
SEELHARBET47,7780007T ( —T—74F: A
[R#643,415,0007T ) 2 & THEF Kies 2 1R
EAREBER —MIBTRE ZER -BK
HEEFEHE2 MM BHRERMFEIT -
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31 December 2017
—E—tFt+A=1+—H

14.Investment Properties

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#sRRMIEE

14. IR E Y

2017 2016
—g—t% —TAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Cost: PR
At 1 January n—H—H 33,013 23,760
Transferred from property, HEBAYE BE MR
plant and equipment (note 13) (MI3E13) 14,380 -
Transferred from prepaid land lease EEaEM L AERE
payments (note 16) (MF3E16) 3,800 9,253
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 51,193 33,013
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHE:
At 1 January n—H—H (1,350) -
Depreciation provided during the year — 4F R #7 & (1,321) (1,188)
Transferred from prepaid land lease EEaEM LA ERE
payments (note 16) (MI5E16) (130) (162)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H (2,801) (1,350)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZHA=+—HBWERAEAE 48,392 31,663

The Group’s investment properties consist of five
industrial properties in Mainland China which were
subsequently measured using the cost model. The
directors of the Company have determined that
the investment properties consist of one class of
assets, i.e., industrial properties, based on the nature,
characteristics and risk of each property. The Group’s
investment properties were revalued on 31 December
2017 based on the valuation by management.
Management has reviewed the valuation assumptions
and valuation results once a year when the valuation is
performed for annual financial reporting.
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31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

- Mm e (g2
14.Investment Properties 14. REY= (&
(continued)
The investment properties are leased to third parties ZEREYMERBLEHELBAE=F
under operating leases, further summary details HE— P 5 EH NI BRI 5138 o
of which are included in note 38 to the financial
statements.
Fair value hierarchy AREERER
The following table illustrates the fair value TREFNAEEREMENLDABEAERE
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment i
properties:

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2017 using
R-ZB—tE+-A=+—-HAARBEFEMAER
Quoted

prices Significant  Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

ERME  EAUERR BEAFUER

HE BWARE BWAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(%1/E) (%2fE) (%£3[E) wat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®BTR AR®BTR AR®BTxR

Industrial properties IEME - - 71,550 71,550

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2016 using
RZE—ARFT_A=T—BAAEBEFEMAER

Quoted

prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs

ARBTE BEAURE EATAEER
HIE BWABE BABUE

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B1E) (B2[E) (%3E) fst

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TE ARETT AREBTR

Industrial properties TEME - - 49,780 49,780
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31 December 2017
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14.

15.

Investment Properties
(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2016: Nil).

The fair values of the investment properties are
determined using the comparison method by making
references to comparable sale evidence as available
in the relevant market. Comparable properties of
similar size, character and location are analysed and
selected for each investment property in order to arrive
at a fair comparison of their fair values. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the market unit
sale rate.

Properties Under Development

14. 1REV)ZE (4&)

AREERBR (&)

FR - F-—REF_F2BzAAEBEFE
WHEEE MERASBEHEE=A (ZF X
FoE) -

BREMEAABEIIZREBM S LA
B IHERE ERLEVAETE - RERAR
BEZATFLE SREVEHEERLUSR
B R R ENA BB EETON -2
REEFERMGEMEE2IEERE-

15. R Y%

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®EF T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HMEREE 40,869 45,050
Additions NE 24,379 25,537
Transfer to completed properties EHEERESFED
held for sale (24,379) (29,718)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—H/NEAEEA 40,869 40,869
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31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=A=+—H

16.Prepaid Land Lease Payments  16.78{4 L ith A E 7 1E

2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT

Cost: B
At 1 January n—H—H 139,867 100,424
Transfer to investment properties BRI EYE (HiE14)

(note 14) (3,800) (9,253)
Additions NS 32,993 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35) Wi BT /8 A 7] (B 5E35) 9,600 48,696
At 31 December W+-—A=+—8H 178,660 139,867

Accumulated amortisation: Sy R
At 1 January n—H—H (16,373) (13,691)
Transfer to investment properties HESIREYE (H5E14)

(note 14) 130 162
Recognised during the year RERNTER (3,656) (2,844)
At 31 December ®R+=—A=+—H (19,899) (16,373)

Impairment: RIE
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BE+ZA=+—H (54) (54)
Carrying amount: BREE:
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 158,707 123,440
Less: Current portion included in B ATBNRIE F]e2 &k
prepayments, deposits and H b U R IAH
other receivables (note 25) BNEREL > (MI5E25) (3,888) (2,840)
Non-current portion JEBNEREL 154,819 120,600
At 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s RZZE—+F+-_A=+—H AEEET
prepaid land lease payments with a net carrying BRI FEL A AR KES0,004,0000T (—Z—7<
amount of approximately RMB50,094,000 (2016: & AR ¥78,520,0007T) W FE S b & 5K
RMB78,520,000) were pledged to secure general HERBEAAEEER —RIBITHE 2 &
banking facilities granted to the Group. For details of R-BRDEREECHTE BF2HMBHRE
pledged assets, please refer to note 37 to the financial BI3E37 ©
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#&RRMIEE

17.Goodwill 17. 782

RMB’000
ARBETTT

Cost and net carrying amount: FXAS K BRTEI A
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RE—H—H -
Acquisition of a subsidiary U BB BB A A 8,660
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"F+ZA=+—H 8,660
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—tF—HF—H 8,660
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35) Uk BB BT B A 7 (BI5E35) 39
At 31 December 2017 R—E—+F+=-_HA=+—H 8,699

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations
is allocated to the respective cash-generating units

(“CGUs”) for impairment testing.

The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to

CGUs as follows:

7 2 AL (B R

BREGAHRENREC I EESERE
EEEN ([REBEEEN])ERERH -

PhRERTELBMZHEREENT:

2017 2016

—E—tF —T—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AR®F T

Accupower Accupower 8,660 8,660
Taihe Dahua ARG AE 39 -
Total FEE 8,699 8,660
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17.Goodwill (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill
(continued)

The recoverable amounts of the above CGUs have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior
management.

The key assumptions adopted on the growth rate and
discount rate used in the value-in-use calculations are
based on management’s best estimates. The growth
rate of 3% is determined by considering both internal
and external factors relating to the CGUs. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 15% for
Accupower and 18% for Taihe Dahua.

Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount of goodwill is based would not
cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed its
recoverable amount.

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=A=+—H

17 T—%;ﬁi (/115

BERENS (F)

ReELBUMAREeRIRERSRE
BRAREREES AR MZRERE
BRTASREEBIEN T F M ERE
REAE

HEFEABEMRANERERITREN
FERZNDENEE B SEMGT - 3%
REHEE R ¢ E A BAABHRE R
HNER R = 1% 8 TF © Accupower R K F 84 K &=
ReREFRAFTRANITIEED B B15% K%
18% °

EEERS BEUKROSEMKEZIR
BREREMSEZS T2EHHENER
EEE LA TR E SR

BELEBRRMERAR | T LFF§

195




196

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#&RRMIEE

31 December 2017
—T-tF+=-A=+-H

18.0ther Intangible Assets

18. HHE R EE

Deferred
Computer  development Customer
software costs relationship Licence Trademark Total
B
Bl BREA EFBf B8 i1 @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTr  ARETR ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
31 December 2017 “E-t&tZA=1-H
Cost at 1 January 2017, RZB—+5—A—BHKE:
net of accumulated amortisation B ETEH 3,776 257,121 4,364 - 19,769 285,030
Additions NE 1,250 178,656 - - 2 179,908
Acquisttion of a subsidiary (note 35)  YeBEM B2 &l (Hi535) - - - 108,126 - 108,126
Amortisation provided during the year 4 P& $5%{ (1,161) (73,809) (447) (10,813) (2,619) (88,849)
At 31 December 2017 WZE—tF+-A=1+-H 3,865 361,968 3,917 97,313 17,152 484,215
At 31 December 2017: WZZ—+&+ZA=1T—-H:
Cost B 10,954 556,866 4,588 108,126 21,490 702,024
Accumulated amortisation ESE (7,089) (194,898) (671) (10,813) (4,338) (217,809)
Net carrying amount FEFE 3,865 361,968 3917 97,313 17,152 484,215
31 December 2016 ZF-~EtZA=t-H
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~E—-f-H:
Cost KA 9,09 240,566 - - 1,036 250,698
Accumulated amortisation R EH (4,937) (64,048) - - (348) (69,333)
Net carrying amount FEEFE 4,159 176,518 - - 688 181,365
Cost at 1 January 2016, RZE—"E—A—BHNA
net of accumulated amortisation MBRETEH 4,159 176,518 - - 688 181,365
Additions RE 608 137,644 - - 328 138,580
Acquisttion of a subsidliary WEHBAR - - 4,588 - 20,124 24712
Amortisation provided during the year % & #5%{& (991) (57,041) (224) - (1371) (59,627)
At 31 December 2016 WZE-~E+-A=1+-H 3,776 257,121 4,364 - 19,769 285,030
At 31 December 2016 and RZB-"E+ZA=+-H
at 1 January 2017: kZE-+5-A-R:
Cost B 9,704 378,210 4,588 - 21,488 413,990
Accumulated amortisation RErEH (6,928) (121,089) (224) - (1,719 (128,960)
Net carrying amount EHFE 3,776 257,121 4,364 - 19,769 285,030
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31 December 2017
—F—t%t+=ZA=+—H

19. RN —REBE R 2RE

19.Investment in an Associate

Investment in an associate REEQNTZ2BE
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBETF T
Share of net assets IR EEFE - 4,127
On 23 January 2017, the Group obtained control over RZZE—tF—A=+=0 AEEHIFMSB

Manufactunng Sdn. Bhd.z i (AR R

—tF XA —HENXATele Power Sdn.
Bnd) - &£ E Bt AAREE 2B AR (B
735)

MSB Manufacturing Sdn. Bhd., the name of which
was changed to Tele Power Sdn. Bhd on 1 June 2017,
which then became a subsidiary of the Group (note 35).

TREULEE A RN BEMIEER

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the associate:

For the
period from
1 January
2017

to 23 January
2017
BH=-Z—tF
—H—HZ
—E-+tF
—A=+=8
B —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT

2016

i NI b
for the year - 551

Share of the associate’s profit

Share of the associate’s total JE(REEE R RIFA

comprehensive income for the year FHEIKZBE - 551
Aggregate carrying amount of the REEREERFIH

Group’s investment in the associate KREMREERRR - 4,127
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31 December 2017
—T—+F+=ZA=+—H

20.Available-for-Sale Investments

20. A HEERE

2017 2016

—B—tF —TAF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARET T

Unlisted equity investment, at cost JEETRAIEE - IRK 9,748 6,938
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value 3F F AR ANIEE - 12 A 122,828 117,029
132,576 123,967

As at 31 December 2017, an unlisted equity investment
of the Group with a carrying amount of RMB9,748,000
(2016: RMB6,938,000) was stated at cost less
impairment because the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates was so significant that
the directors were of the opinion that its fair value could
not be measured reliably.

During the year, the gross gain in respect of the Group’s
available-for-sale investments recognised in other
comprehensive income amounted to RMB3,703,000
(2016: RMB35,083,000).

The above equity investments which were designated
as available-for-sale financial assets have no fixed
maturity dates or coupon rates.
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BEAAREQ 7480007 (ZE—RF : AR
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BILLEXR BIESRAHEAABEEELR

FitE-

RERN  BEANEBEREME2EEAERK
Al H SR E WS 258 A AR #53,703,0000T
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22.

Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

Derivative Financial Instruments

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=A=+—H

21.PTEEMIA

2017 2016

—E—t& —E-RF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
gE =l BE afE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TR AR%Tn ARBTT ARBTI
Forward currency contracts = Bl E ¥4 49 4,418 - 4,625 13,636

Forward currency contracts ZHEEEN

The Group has entered into various forward currency REBCF L EZHRPEBENERHINE
contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures. [ ZEFRAERSNRAAEBEEEG

These forward currency contracts are measured at
fair value through profit or loss. The net gain, including
realised and unrealised, on changes in the fair value
of the forward currency contracts amounting to
RMB1,166,000 (2016: RMB3,551,000) was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss during
the year. The maturity dates of the derivative financial
instruments are within one year.

ANB&=FtE R BHEKEONAREER
SR Tl (BRIEEERIREE) BAR
#1,166,0007T ( ZZF—7<F : AR¥SB,551,000
TL) EREREIERRAER - ITESRmIA
MEEARE—F A

Inventories 22. 78
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREFIT
Raw materials R 445,494 155,153
Work in progress ERm 1,008,957 699,257
Finished goods BURK An 417,834 272,716
1,872,285 1,127,126
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31 December 2017
—E—tF+ZA=+—H

23.Completed Properties Held for

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RRMIEE

23. IS ECE R

Sale
2017 2016
—E—tF ZTE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Completed properties held for sale BIERFEE BN 44,205 61,702

In 2014, Jiangsu Siting, a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an arrangement (the “Arrangement”) with
a constructor (the “Constructor’), an independent
third party, to develop a residential property project
for, among others, staff quarters (the “Project”).
The Constructor is responsible for the management
and funding of the Project and sale of the properties
after they are completed. There are certain profit
sharing arrangements between Jiangsu Siting and
the Constructor in accordance with the Arrangement,
including that Jiangsu Siting will retain certain units of
the properties. The performance of the Constructor
under the Arrangement will be guaranteed by an
independent third party.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of
the properties under development and the completed
properties held for sale under the Project were
RMB40,869,000 (note 15) and RMB44,205,000,
respectively.
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24.Trade and Bills Receivables

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

24. B RWHRIER BWEE

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT T AREFTT

Trade receivables =) T E e 2,343,791 2,226,964
Bills receivable e =& 213,159 75,479
Impairment B (30,353) (38,066)
2,526,597 2,264,377

The Group grants different credit periods to its
customers. Credit periods for individual customers are
considered on a case-by-case basis. Certain customers
are required to make partial payments before or upon
delivery. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and closely monitors them
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. Trade receivables
of RMB261,715,000 (2016: RMB271,596,000) were
under short term credit insurance and RMB71,912,000
(2016: RMB48,688,000) were under letters of credit.
In addition, the Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group pledged certain
trade receivables amounting to RMB61,467,000
(2016: RMB86,651,000) to banks with recourse in
exchange for cash (note 37). The proceeds from
pledging the trade receivables of RMB37,279,000
(2016: RMB54,222,000) were accounted for as
collateralised bank advances until the trade receivables
were collected or the Group made good of any losses
incurred by the banks. The details of the transfer of
factored trade receivables are included in note 44 to the
financial statements.

AEEMEFETFTTITRANGEEH SEF
FHEENE BT - ATERFARRN
AT R AR EH B D T 3 e ANE B E SR H
REBENRUGIBEFESEL T
PERZEER UWRAEEERR SRE
BEeTHEMaBRNNES®R EFHEK
FIEH A R#261,715,0000T ( —Z — <4
AR #271,506,0007T) 7] B 52 Hi 15 ARk -
i AR#71,912,0007T (ZF—RF: AR
48,688,0007T ) RIET A5 A o bboh - N B
BRZEEHRFE TR RIEREAME
BiRAEE - BB EBGIEAET B -

RNZZE—+E+-A=1+—0 KEEAIR
TEPETEERENESEKFIE &5
BARB1,467,0007T (ZE—RF: AR
86,651,0007T) * $& AR EUGR & (FM15E37) o K
HE Z RGBS HIE AR ¥37,279,0007T
(ZZT—RF : AR¥EB4,222,0007) JH5\1EH
EIRRITEN EEZEE HRUGRIEEK
Bl AR E BB IRITEENTMBEAL-
BREERREE PRERIIBZ FBHIINE
SRR MITE44
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31 December 2017
—tFT-A=+-A

24.Trade and Bills Receivables

(continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#sRIRMIEE

.%’%FEH&%XIE&EEH&%F%

&)

R=B—tER=F—~E+-A=+—H

at 31 December 2017 and 2016 based on the invoice

ZEZRWFALEERERERA (Hk

date, net of provisions, is as follows: B ERE T T
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T ARBFIT
Within 3 months 31E AR 1,862,076 1,641,807
3 to 6 months 3Z61# A 405,764 386,401
6 to 12 months 6ZE121E A 202,361 176,558
1 to 2 years 1Z224F 53,181 49,930
Over 2 years 2F A 3,215 9,681
2,526,597 2,264,377

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

B PR FIRR ER RN EFESIIT

2017 2016

—E—tHF ZE—REF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARBFIT

At 1 January n—H—H 38,066 16,156
Impairment losses B (M) TREEEE

(reversed)/recognised (note 6) (MI5E6) (7,713) 21,910

At 31 December R+—A=+—H 30,353 38,066

Included in the above provision for impairment
of trade receivables is a provision for individually
impaired trade receivables of RMB30,353,000 (2016:
RMB38,066,000) with a carrying amount before
provision of RMB30,353,000 (2016: RMB38,066,000).
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24.Trade and Bills Receivables

(continued)

The above provision for impairment of trade receivables
relates to individual customers that were in financial
difficulties.

The bills receivable will be matured within one year from
31 December 2017.

The aging analysis of trade and bills receivables that
were not individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=A=+—H

4. B 5 REHREREREE

=
(#)

R B MR IR B R R B PR A B R Y
ERIEFHR-

EREBBR —T—tF+-_A=+—Hi

FE—FARIE -

1R B AL A Y Sk A RDRUE ) E 5 e M R
KRB BRI D0 T

2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREF T

Neither past due nor impaired KRB R E 2,470,201 2,204,766
Past due but not impaired 0 BR B ROFUE 56,396 59,611
2,526,597 2,264,377

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers that
have not had a history of default recently.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good payment track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, the directors believe that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality of the customers and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

R ER IR ARE B FE MR IR B % 4 ST B8
KRN EFBRE-

BRI EMERIRER EUGR IR S B2 & AR A
BERIFNREGRCHENBLEFEH-A

RAAIATERE - RIEBEER EFRS
W BN B L% T AE AR E LR E R -
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31 December 2017
—t+E+=-A=+—H

25.Prepayments, Deposits and 5. AN RIE R E R HMEW
Other Receivables I
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR®T T
Prepayments TR FRIR 130,365 94,525
Deposits and other receivables 5% K EAth e U 3k 32,926 30,561
Loans to employees MEBFEHHNER 7,130 6,765
Interest receivables JE W F B, 114 34
Current portion of prepaid land TEf L EFIE R R EIE 5
lease payments (note 16) (MIzE16) 3,888 2,840
174,423 134,725
None of the above assets is either past due or P EEW BB RE AR EE
impaired. The financial assets included in the above B & Bl & 2 B R AV R AR BN IE B
balances relate to receivables for which there was no 8o
recent history of default.
26.Equity Investments at Fair Value 26. A EE# BT A IBH 2
Through Profit or Loss mERE
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARETT
Listed equity investments, IR ERE RmE

at market value

12,545 13,595

The above equity investments at 31 December 2017
were classified as held for trading and were, upon
initial recognition, designated by the Group as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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27.Cash and Bank Balances and

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=A=+—H

27. Eﬁ&ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ&ﬁﬂﬁﬁ

Time Deposits GHN
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBFTT
Cash and bank balances B & MIRITHE#R 401,042 214,344
Time deposits 7E Bi7F 3% 540,116 490,885
941,158 705,229
Less: Pledged for interest-bearing B EBET B RITIE B IF
bank borrowings (179,899) (9,020)
Pledged for bills payable BB RIRER (260,099) (404,771)
Pledged for letters of credit Bt AEE T (100,118) (77,094)
(540,116) (490,885)
Cash and cash equivalents HekIReEEY 401,042 214,344
Denominated in RMB AAREEEE 755,673 606,720
Denominated in US$ AZETTEHE 155,742 67,282
Denominated in HK$ AV TTEHE 19,201 25,156
Denominated in Malaysian Dollar WERAESHE
(‘MYR’) ([BRAZESLE)FHE 4,146 2,354
Denominated in Indian Rupee LAENE E LA 3,207 335
Denominated in Australian Dollar PURTT (M8 ])EHE
(“AUD’) 2,417 179
Denominated in Singapore Dollar LASrans% ot ([$rx]) 5HE
(‘SG$") 618 2,709
Denominated in Sri Lankan Rupee DETE B RELETE 88 189
Denominated in Euro (‘EUR”) LABT (T®8T])EtE 66 305
941,158 705,229
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31 December 2017
—T—+F+=ZA=+—H

27.Cash and Bank Balances and

28.

Time Deposits (continued)

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposit
are made for varying periods of between one day
and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Trade and Bills Payables

27. WE RIBITESRUKREHF

™ (E

ARBAE B B BRIESNE - AT RIBT
SNEE IR e A5 TE ~ BT R ASTEE B IR AR E -
AR BB E SRR EIRITIHARE L AE
SNEELAHETTONE S 765

FRIRITHVIR ©12 8 B IRITERA R 62 8
EXRRBME -EHRERZEFRMA—HE
—EAATE BRI AEEZERIRE ZRM
i & BIREEIT SN R B - iRITHEER
FEMEFREFAORBEERCERAEER
EFEVERTT

28. BESETRIENRENZERE

2017 2016
—®-tF T AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

Trade payables B SR 803,985 641,357
Bills payable e EE 861,262 990,127
1,665,247 1,631,484
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31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=A=+—H

28.Trade and Bills Payables EHREMNRE

(continued)

.?é’%ﬁﬁﬁ,—*\i

&)

IR B RN AR RN RIRRE

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

BRERDHTAAT

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—REF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBFIT

Within 3 months 31E A A 702,362 754,551
3 to 6 months 3Z61# A 364,800 575,338
6 to 12 months 6= 121E A 582,439 291,347
1 to 2 years 1224 12,266 3,563
2 to 3 years 2E3F 898 662
Over 3 years B @E3F 2,482 6,023
1,665,247 1,631,484

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and S RNFRERTEE B —fZEMRH

are normally settled on 90-day terms. All the bills
payable have maturity dates within 365 days. As
at 31 December 2017, bills payable amounting to
RMB745,450,000 (2016: RMB860,452,000) were
issued on intercompany sales transactions within the
Group and these bills were discounted to banks for
short term financing.

As at 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s bills
payable were secured by the pledge of certain of the
Group’s time deposits amounting to RMB260,099,000
(2016: RMB404,771,000) (note 37).

mszﬁ Fr BN ZHE 3658 R EIH-

—E—+tF+ZA=+—H AEEHR
%IW AIMETHNHERIETEER
AR #745,450,0007TC (ZZE—RF: AR
860,452,0007T ) HYFEI 1% - B ZFZHRALIR
TIRITIERE AR E

RZE—+EFE+-_A=1+—H KEFET
F%iﬁ%—inylK%lé%ﬁﬁj\ﬁﬁgzeoowooo
TL(ZZ—RF : AR¥404,771,0007T ) B &
T EATF AV E REEIR (FI5E37) o
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31 December 2017
—T—+F+=ZA=+—H

29.0ther Payables and Accruals 20. HWENRIBER EFTE M

2017 2016
—F-tF T F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

P £ AR®TR ARETTT

Provision for social insurance and  #+ & 1R [ KR K42 Tl B 45

retirement benefits 141,570 130,577
Advances from customers BEAR 133,257 146,716
Accrued expenses JEETF X 90,041 73,450
Accrued payroll JEET T & 53,027 45,523
Payables for purchase of items of EEWE - MEKLEREER

property, plant and equipment Y FE T 5RIR 17,677 12,464
Provision for product warranties EmREBE 13,239 10,583
Tax payables other than current FER IR (BIEAPT ST B &

income tax liabilities B 161,632 103,554
Payables to non-controlling FE T IEFE AR IR R 2 BB

shareholders 40 76,238 -
Others HAth 19,856 20,000

706,537 542,867
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31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=A=+—H

. x> /= 4
30.Interest-Bearing Bank 30. 5T EIRITEE
Borrowings
31 December 2017 31 December 2016
“E-t#t-A=1-H “ET-~E+ZA=t-H
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BERRE%) EH ARBTR  BEREAZ%) Bk AREFT
Current Il
Interest-bearing bank SEREE FEA 1.50 to 7.53 2018 150106.77 2017
borrowings, secured 1.5027.53 —E-N\& 1,175,362 1.5026.77 “T—+F 1,108,711
Collateralised bank BEARTRN AR 2,00 to 2.40 2018 2.00103.50 2017
advances, secured 2.0022.40 ZE-N\§ 37,219 2.00%350 & 54,022
Interest-bearing bank FERTEE BER 287105.22 2018
borrowings, guaranteed 2.87%5.22 -0\ 405,401 - - -
Interest-bearing bank FERTEE BER on demand 2017
borrowings, guaranteed LIBOR+250  RERERE 1,286511 LBOR+300 —F—t% 117,081
2,904,553 1,275,014
Non-current FHE
Interest-bearing bank FERAEE HER 2019-2028 2018-2028
borrowings, secured 150t07.53 —E-h%ZE 15010753 Z—ET-\%Z%
1.50£7.53 ZE-)N\E 81,338 1.50%27.53 “ECN\E 78,680
Interest-bearing bank FERAEE HER 2019 2018
borrowings, guaranteed 489 —EB-AE 28,000  LIBOR +3.00 “E-N\F 409,783
109,338 483,463
3,013,891 1,763,477
Denominated in RMB DARSHH{E 1,038,680 634970
Denominated in US$ PETEHE 1,438,764 674,702
Denominated in HK$ DB TEHE 471,434 412,809
Denominated in SG$ DS I 14,135 18,214
Denominated in MYR NERARLEHE 30,815 22,782
Denominated in AUD DETTEHE 20,063 -
3,013,891 1,763,477
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31 December 2017
—T—+F+=ZA=+—H

. a /= jH 1 =
30.Interest-Bearing Bank 30. 5T RIRITEE (4
Borrowings (continued)
Analysed into: AT
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREEFIT
Bank loans and advances repayable: HEENRITERRERK:
On demand* B &k 1,286,511 -
Within one year —F RN 1,618,042 1,275,014
In the second year F_F 71,687 429,342
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE=FEFRF
BIEEEMF 28,371 49,225
Beyond five years & 9,280 9,896
3,013,891 1,763,477

The Group’s bank borrowings are secured by the

following pledge or guarantees:

()  pledge of the Group’s assets with a total value of
RMB1,039,238,000 (2016: RMB817,606,000) for
the bank borrowings as disclosed in note 37.

(i)  cross guarantees executed by companies within

the Group.
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30.Interest-Bearing Bank
Borrowings (continued)

The Group entered into a three-year term loan
facility agreement amounting to US$200,000,000
on 8 May 2017 (the “Facility Agreement”) with
certain financial institutions (the “Lenders”).

Under the Facility Agreement, there are specific
performance obligations on Mr. Dong Li, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, to
not cease to own, directly or indirectly, at least
51% of the beneficial interest in the Company,
carrying at least 51% of the voting right, free
from any security. Further, Mr. Dong Li shall not
cease to have management control over the
Company or cease to be the Chairman of the
board of directors of the Company. At the date of
approval of these audited consolidated financial
statements, such obligations have been complied
with.

Five of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries,
namely Catherine Holdings, Leoch Power Supply,
Leoch Battery Company, Leoch Battery Pte. and
Leoch International Sales were parties who act as
guarantors, to guarantee punctual performance
of the Group’s obligations under the Facility
Agreement.

31 December 2017
—F—+t%t+=ZA=+—H

30.5TEIRI1TEBE (&)

* AEBR-ZE—tFRANBEE
FEREE([BMRADILEEA
200,000,000 TH = FHIE BV E 17
& ([REWmZE]) -

REREHZ BEERORME NE
FEAE (RRREBRRR) TSR IEE
B (EEIEER) ARREDS1%NE
miEs (MEDS1%FRARE) (T
EAEA) < tesh BEFRETTRIE
BAEARNRANEEZEBIEETHER
RENBESEEF - NILERFER
REAMBHREREH FHEEER
EpC RS

AARABE2EWMBZRA &
Catherine Holdings * ¥ =% J& * Leoch
Battery Company * Leoch Battery Pte.
MEBETEBREHESERA BRAE
EERETRERAE THEE-
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31 December 2017
—+tF+-A=+—H

30.Interest-Bearing Bank
Borrowings (continued)

(continueq)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had fully
utilised the amount of US$200,000,000 under
the Facility Agreement. As at 31 December 2017,
the outstanding term loan balance amounted to
RMB1,286,511,000, of which RMB257,302,000
and RMB1,029,209,000 are repayable within one
year and in the second to third years inclusive,
respectively, under the terms of the Facility
Agreement. The term loan bears interest at
LIBOR + 2.5% per annum.

As at 31 December 2017, one of the financial
covenants under the Facility Agreement
was not satisfied. According to the relevant
accounting standard, the long term portion of
RMB1,029,209,000 of the term loan under the
Facility Agreement was classified as a current
liability as at 31 December 2017.

Prior to the date of approval of these financial
statements, the Group had applied for and the
Lenders of the Facility Agreement had granted to
the Group waivers from strict compliance with the
said financial covenant.
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31 December 2017
2 tH+-A=+—A
31.Deferred Tax 31. IRIERLIE

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities FREEHBEENBENEHIERMT
during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets EEBRIEEE
Depreciation
and Equipment
Provision for impairment invested in
impairment of property, subsidiaries Unpaid  Provision for Deferred
of trade plant and with revalued Unused payrolland  impairment of Unrealised government
receivables equipment Tax losses amounts tax credit accruals inventories profit grants Total
n¥ BER SEEERY
25 EURE REFE RERKE *8A AHIER BE
BERE RAE HEER RENRE HEER B8R HFEAERE FERER BR#R A
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBIL  ARMTR ARBTR  ARBTR  AREBTT  ARMTR ARBTL  ARBTR ARBFL  ARETR

Gross deferred tax assets at RZZ-~%
1 January 2016 —A-BEEEHE
EEEE 1,649 6,883 23,644 4,939 1,338 2517 - 14,631 - 55,601

Deferred tax credited/(charged) o~ £AFA/ (HBE)
the statement of profit or loss BRRNELHA

during the year SATT (1,300) (2,381) (712) - 129 1,773 (5,614) 1,742 (886)
Gross deferred tax assets at RZZ-7%
31 Deceroer 2016 and TZA=t+-8k
1 January 2017 —I-t§-A-H
WEEREEERE 7,126 5,683 21,263 4227 1,338 2,646 1,773 9,017 1,742 54,715

Deferred tax credited/(chargec) to ~ £AETA/ (1K E)
the statement of profit or loss BRENETHA

during the year (1.987) (1,286 4195) ) (13%9) 2,588 475 (529) 1,107 (5827)
Gross deferred tax assets at RZZ-t%
31 December 2017 +ZA=t-HH
ELHAEELE 5,189 4,297 17,068 3515 - 5,234 2248 8,488 2,849 48,888
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31.Deferred Tax (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#&RRMIEE

31 IEFERLIE (#&)

Deferred tax liabilities ELEBIEEE
Change
in fair Fair value
value of adjustments
Capitalised available- arising from
interest for-sale  acquisition of
expense investments subsidiaries Others Total
T E WIEHE
BER{LH RENAR AREER
FEBEX BESZD LHLEERE Htt @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREFT ARBTT AREFT ARETT
Gross deferred tax liablites ~ R=Z—~E—A—H
at 1 January 2016 MEEHERERE 10,508 4,501 - 920 15,929
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEEMB AT - - 5,584 - 5,584
Deferred tax credited tothe  FRF ABHERMN
statement of profit or loss ELERE
during the year (1,383) - (346) (107) (1,836)
Deferred tax charged to ERNNBREREMEE
other comprehensive Wigs IR IR
income during the year - 11,771 - - 11,771
Gross deferred tax liablites ~ R =Z—~E+=A
at 31 December 2016 =t-HEZE—t
and 1 January 2017 F—A—BHREEHR
HEERE 9,125 16,272 5238 813 31,448
Acauisition of a subsidiary WEEMB AT
(note 35) (Fif5E35) - - 27,025 - 27,025
Deferred tax credited to the ~ FRE ABHERH
statement of profit or loss EEHE
during the year (1,384) - (3,407) (54) (4,845)
Deferred tax charged to FANMBREAMZE
other comprehensive YRR IR
income during the year - 926 - - 926
Gross deferred tax liablites ~ R=Z—+F+=A
at 31 December 2017 —+-HEEHE
BEAE 7,74 17,198 28,856 759 54,554
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31.Deferred Tax (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China
of RMB75,857,000 (2016: RMB67,143,000) that will
expire in five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
generated from 1 January 2008. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%
or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2017, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
Directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future and therefore, no deferred tax liabilities have
been recognised as at 31 December 2017 and
2016. As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately RMB579,883,000 (2016:
RMB333,112,000).

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=A=+—H

1IRER TR (48)

AEEBRFRAMEERBBEEBAR
#75,857,000L (ZE—RF:ARK
67,143,0007T) * & IE ] A F A AREKIER
RIERB RN - AR ZEEIB I HEEE—
EXRF BRI B R RIFTE AL - M BBt UL TR
BERTBEE MR AT KA g B ERT
i M AT 4 &p B B TE S 1R R

REBHBEERAETOE P BRHA S EI
BIRELRAINIIREET IR R AIZI0%
BIENN LR EH - TTNF—A—H
EEMSERN —TZTN\F—A—BEEL
B 2 ) o e o B Y 3 BR OB 4R B B W RDERE
B 2R B 17 E - B REETAHIR X - A
SEME BB ERE%10% ° At - A&
=5 B IR B R AR LB B & R
—ZT)N\F-A-HEMFAENMA DR
BT -

R-ZE—+F+_A=1+—8 WEHLAE
B 7E R B A b AR ST O P 2 B A R BB S AR
(ZBHMTENT) A BN ERIELER
H-BEERE ZEWBRRER] LGRS
KAgenBREF EMR_E—tFER=F
—NFTZA=+— B ARG U ERELTR
BEBE-RZT—tF+A=+—80 #ER
R B R P A B IR A A B T N A L R
RELEFHAENEREEZBEEBES LR
AR #579,883,0007C (ZZE—RNF: ARK
333,112,0007T ) °
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31 December 2017
—T—+F+=ZA=+—H

32.Share Capital 32. IR AR
Shares % 4
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF
Authorised: JERE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,0004% & i E &
HK$0.1 each (HK$'000) 0B TR LM (FBT) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRET:
1,357,271,666 (2016: 1,353,349,666)  1,357,271,6660% ( = F— 4 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 1,353,349,6661% ) &I HE
(HK$'000) 0 1B T EBR (FET) 135,727 135,335
Equivalent to RMB’000 BERARKET T 116,192 115,846
A summary of movements in the Company’s share RAERAS BT :
capital is as follows:
Number of
shares in Share
issue capital
28T
BB €S
Notes RMB’000
B ARBFTT
At 1 January 2016 R—E—XF—H—H 1,353,319,666 115,843
Exercise of share options 1T I A i (i) 30,000 3
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+=—A=+—H 1,353,349,666 115,846
At 31 December 2016 and N E—NF
1 January 2017 +ZA=+—HK
—E—+F—H—H 1,353,349,666 115,846
Exercise of share options TR (i) 3,922,000 346
At 31 December 2017 R_T—+F
+-A=+—H 1,357,271,666 116,192
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32.Share Capital (continued)

Shares (continued)

U

(i)

The subscription rights attaching to 30,000 share
options were exercised at a subscription price
of HK$0.80 per share, resulting in the issue of
30,000 shares of HK$0.10 each for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of RMB22,000.
An amount of RMB25,000 was transferred from
the share option reserve to the share premium
account upon the exercise of the share options.

The subscription rights attaching to 3,922,000
share options were exercised at subscription
prices ranging from HK$0.20 to HK$1.40 per
share, resulting in the issue of 3,922,000 shares
of HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration,
before expenses, of RMB3,032,000. An amount
of RMB2,652,000 was transferred from the share
option reserve to the share premium account
upon the exercise of the share options.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option schemes and
the share options issued under the schemes are
included in note 33 to the financial statements.

31 December 2017
—F—t%t+=ZA=+—H

32. AN (#&F
BG (&)

) 30,0001 & B HE e BT A SR BB #E 2 %
§20.808 ST RIE BT - BHUEAT
30,0000% & f% E1E0.1078 TT I R 17 &
NEHAZMERSRERARKE22,000
7T - BERRIEIET T{E & - ARM25,0007TH)
BEREREERERMEERA-

)  3922,000fn EEARIEREMT M REERE D KT
BR0.2078 L =1 408 TTHRBE B T - &
B E%173,922,0000% & A E{EO. 1078 TTHY
Bin - AR EReRERAR
#£3,032,0007T - i IR I ET TR 18 - AR
#£2,652,0007C B B BB AR A R s i = Ak
RERA -

B

AR BIRERRE A B AR AT B BIT 2 B
T2 FHBEN B IS IR M FES3 o
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31 December 2017
—E—tF+A=+—H

33.Share Option Schemes

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a pre-IPO share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible persons who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Eligible persons of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme include the Company’s directors
and other employees of the Group. The Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme became effective on 1 June 2010 and
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is available to the
directors and employees (whether full time or part time)
of any member of the Group.

The maximum number of the shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall be 60,000,000 shares
representing approximately 4.5% of the total issued
share capital of the Company immediately after the
completion of the global offering, taking no account of
the exercise of the over-allotment option.
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33.Share Option Schemes

(continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

The subscription price in respect of each share under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is determined by the
board of directors at its discretion and set out in the
relevant offer letters provided that it should not be less
than the nominal value of the shares.

After 28 October 2010, no further options will be
offered or granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme but in other respects the provisions of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force
and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to
the exercise of any options granted prior thereto or
otherwise as may be required in accordance with the
provisions of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, and
options which are granted on or before 28 October
2010 may continue to be exercisable in accordance
with their terms of issue.

Any exercise of an option granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme is subject to conditions as may
be specified in the offer letter in respect of the grant of
options.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=A=+—H

3. AEntEl (/&)

BRAFRBERBEE SR T SRE
RBEHEFSRANIGRET  YHNA
FAEAKAA - BENME DRI AIEE-

RZZE—ZFF+AZ+N\BE T2HEE
BRARAEERBRES RS IR L EN
Hu@ikE e e BRkETs
BB SCAE H At 5 ER A B+ RN FER -
PABUEE It 2 AT HE B (] B AR A D AT 1T (50 3k
BRI &R AR E R BRI RT 8I MG SGRTE
mRITITE MRZFE—FF+HA=Z+/\H
g B R ERE AR BRI SR ET
ERFRIELE T LATTIE -

RIS E R A B B E AT R BB
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31 December 2017
—T—+F+=ZA=+—H

33.Share Option Schemes

33.fE xRt &l (&)

(continued)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme BARAAHBRERNBRETS
(continued) (#&)
The following share options were outstanding under the RENERAREESABIREZIE T ER
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year: IR T
2017 2016
—B-tF —E-RF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
REF K
TEE BEBREZA IRE  EREHEB
HK$ HK$
per share ’000 per share ’000
BRERT T4H BRAET T
At 1 January n—A—H 1.42 20,388 1.66 23,272
Exercised during the year FRITE 0.85 (2,953) 0.80 (30)
Forfeited during the year F AR 2.00 (70) 3.35 (2,854)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1.52 17,365 1.42 20,388

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s
shares at the dates on which the options were
exercised during the year was HK$1.83 per share
(2016: HK$1.13 per share).
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31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

33.Share Option Schemes 33. MM fERTE (&)

(continued)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme BARAAHBERNERESTE
(continued) (#)
Movements in the Company’s share options under the FR - ARRRBRARABEERBIRET S
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year are as HTHERESENT
follows:
Number of share options
BhRENE
Name or category of SEEZRY At 1January Exercised Forfeited At 31 December Date of grant  Exercise period Exercise price
participant # 25 ER 2017 duringtheyear  during the year 2017 of share options  of share options of share options
R=%-t% RIB-t§
-B-H ERiTk ERRN  tZA=t-B ERERLAY  BREGES BRETRE
HKS per share
Bk
Directors 4
Ms. Zhao Huen wEt 1,500,000 - 5 1,500,000 1ne 2010 1dne 201210 1400
—3-%f 1 June 2022
~A-B ZB-Z§5A-H
E-R25R-H
Mr. Phiip Armstrong Noznesky Philip Armstrong Noznesky 7t & 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 1June 2010 1June2012to 2000
—2-%f 1June 2022
~E-B Z5-ZfAR-BE
ZRZZERA-H
3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Other employees HES L 17,388,000 (2,953,000) (70,000 14,365,000 1Jne 2010 1June2012to 0.200- 2,000
in aggregate Z5-%F 1 June 2022
~E-B Z5-Zf¥AR-HE
“TCZERR-B
20,388,000 (2953,000) (70,000) 17,365,000
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31 December 2017
—t+E+=-A=+—H

. 2
33.Share Option Schemes .MM ESTE (&)

(continued)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme BXARBERBRESTE
(continued) (#&)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the Pre-IPO R-FE—tF+ A=+ BRHKRTED
Share Options outstanding at 31 December 2017 are BRARBERERENITEERITE
as follows: mr

Exercise price
Number of options per share Exercise period
BRESE BRITEE TEH
10,000 HK$0.200 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

0.200/% 7T TR CFANA—BEZT==_F5A
10,000 HK$0.200 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022

0.200/% 7T —E—=FAA—HEZZTZ--_F,A—H
40,000 HK$0.200 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022

0.200/8 7T —E-NFANA—BE-_ZE-__F,A—H
43,000 HK$0.200 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022

0.2007%& 7T —E-RAFRNA—BEZZE-__FH
20,000 HK$0.400 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

0.4007% 7T TE-—HEXA-HE-ZT-_FXA—
20,000 HK$0.400 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022

0.400/% 7T —E—=FA—HEZZT=-_F,A—H
20,000 HK$0.400 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022

0.400/8 7T —E-NFANA—BE-_ZE-__F,A—H
20,000 HK$0.400 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022

0.4007%& 7T —E-—RAFERNA—BEZZE-__FH
65,000 HK$0.600 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

0.6007% 7T —E——FXRA—HEZZE-_—_F,XA—H
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31 December 2017
—T—+F+=-_A=+—H

. 2
33.Share Option Schemes .WEMRESTE (&)

(continued)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme BXRAHERENERESS
(continued) (#&)

Exercise price
Number of options per share Exercise period
BREZE BRITEE TEH
80,000 HK$0.600 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022

0.6007& 7T 2= RNA—HEZZEZ-_—_FA—
80,000 HK$0.600 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022

0.60078 7T TE—NEANA—HE-ZE-__FA—
80,000 HK$0.600 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022

0.6007 7T —HRFEANA—HE_ZT-__FXA—H
165,750 HK$0.800 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

0.8007& 7T 2 RNA—HEZZE-Z_4FNA—H
173,750 HK$0.800 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022

0.8007& 7T 2= RNA—HEZZEZ-__FA—
240,750 HK$0.800 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022

0.8007& 7T —E—MNFERNA—HEZZEZ_FA—
240,750 HK$0.800 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022

0.8007& 7T —HRFEANA—HE_Z-__FXA—H
402,750 HK$1.000 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

1.0007% 7T 2 RNAHEZZEZ_FA—
634,750 HK$1.000 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022

1.0007% 7T TE—=FARNA—HEZZEZ-FA—
703,250 HK$1.000 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022

1.0007% 7T —E-—WNENA—HEZZEZ-_F/NA—H
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31 December 2017
—tFT-A=+-A

33.Share Option Schemes
(continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

Exercise price

3.IBIRERTE (&)

B
(4

NFERENERES

JS:’

Number of options per share Exercise period
BRERE BRITEE T
715,250 HK$1.000 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022

1.0007% 7T 2R RNA—HEZZE-__FA—
287,500 HK$1.200 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

1.2007% 7T TE—HEXA—BEE-__FA—
287,500 HK$1.200 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022

1.2007% 7T 2= RNA—HEZEZZE-—_4FNA—H
412,500 HK$1.200 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022

1.2007% 7T —mENA—HBHE - —_9F/NA—H
412,500 HK$1.200 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022

1.200/8 7T TE—RHFERNA—HE-ZE-__FA—
700,000 HK$1.400 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

1.4007% 7T —EZHFRA-BEZT_FXA—
800,000 HK$1.400 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022

1.4007% 7T 2= RNA—HEZEZZE-—_FNA—H
800,000 HK$1.400 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022

1.400/8 7T —E-EXA—BE-_ZE-__FA—
800,000 HK$1.400 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022

1.4007% 7T —E A RNA—HEZZE-__FA—
455,000 HK$1.600 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

1.6007% 7T 2 RNA—HEZZE-—_4FNA—H
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31 December 2017
—T—+F+=-_A=+—H

. 2
33.Share Option Schemes .WEMRESTE (&)

(continued)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme BRAHBERBERETE
(continued) (#&)

Exercise price
Number of options per share Exercise period
BREZE BRITEE TEH
455,000 HK$1.600 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022

1.6007% 7T 2= RNA—HEZZEZ-_—_FA—
455,000 HK$1.600 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022

1.60078 7T TE—NEANA—HE-ZE-__FA—
455,000 HK$1.600 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022

1.6007% 7T —HRFEANA—HE_ZT-__FXA—H
787,500 HK$1.800 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

1.8007% 7T 2 RNA—HEZZE-Z_4FNA—H
787,500 HK$1.800 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022

1.8007% 7T 2= RNA—HEZZEZ-__FA—
787,500 HK$1.800 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022

1.8007% 7T —E—MNFERNA—HEZZEZ_FA—
787,500 HK$1.800 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022

1.8007% 7T —HRFEANA—HE_Z-__FXA—H
1,032,500 HK$2.000 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

2.0007% 7T 2 RNAHEZZEZ_FA—
1,032,500 HK$2.000 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022

2.0007% 7T TE—=FARNA—HEZZEZ-FA—
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31 December 2017
—t+E+=-A=+—H

33.Share Option Schemes

(continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

Exercise price

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#sRIRMIEE

33. B IRt &l (&)

B
(4

DA ER R RES S

JS:’

Number of options per share Exercise period
BREZE BRITEE 1T
1,032,500 HK$2.000 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022

2.0007% 7T —ENA—HE-_ZE-__FXA—H
1,032,500 HK$2.000 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022

2.00078 7T —E-RFERNA—HBE-_ZE-_—_F,A—H
17,365,000

The 2,953,000 share options exercised during the year
resulted in the issue of 2,953,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$295,000
(equivalent to RMB261,000) and share premium of
HK$2,217,000 (equivalent to RMB1,961,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
outstanding Pre-IPO Share Options for the subscription
of 17,365,000 shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 1.3% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at that date.
The exercise in full of the outstanding Pre-IPO Share
Options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 17,365,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$1,737,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,452,000) and share premium of HK$24,592,000
(equivalent to RMB20,557,000), before related issuance
expenses.
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33.Share Option Schemes

(continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 17,365,000 share options
outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme,
which represented approximately 1.3% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) which was approved
and adopted by the written resolutions of all the
shareholders of the Company passed on 14 October
2010 for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to eligible persons for their contribution to, and
continuing efforts to promote the interests of, the Group
and for such other purposes as the board of directors
may approve from time to time. Eligible persons of the
Scheme include any director or employee (whether full
time or part time), consultant or advisor of the Group
who, in the sole discretion of the board of directors, has
contributed to or will contribute to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme is available to the directors
and employees (whether full time or part time) of any
member of the Group.

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=A=+—H

3. AEstEl (/&)

(Ezg)’z}ﬁ-ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂi%%‘f%]

RZEUHRTERE R AARREE R
NFIEEE AT g T 8% 17,365,00017 i A
TERMERE BERNE B ARAREETR
12 #91.3% °

fB IR T

ARBETIABRAE S ([BRER
Bl BARFRMARRR-_T—FF+A
T RSN ERRERILEMRR 5
FAREEELERS NS IR AEE
Metz BEMATIRFEENEES HAE
S THHENEME M FFEMNEERA
TEREFE2ERRCH KU REEIE
HERMNWASBETAEEHES (THER
SRE) B REEAA

BRRET B VIR T AKEIEAKE AR
EXLEE (TwmaBiaaRRi) -
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31 December 2017
TtF+=A=1—A

33.Share Option Schemes

(continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting and certain disclosure and reporting
requirements.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes, must not, in
aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting and certain
disclosure and reporting requirements.

The subscription price of share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than the highest of
() the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii)
the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (i) the nominal value
of the shares of the Company. A consideration of
RMB1.00 is payable on acceptance of the offer of an
option or options.
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33.Share Option Schemes

(continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

The Share Option Scheme became effective on
16 November 2010, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the
date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme by
shareholders by resolution at a general meeting.

Any exercise of an option granted under the Share
Option Scheme is subject to conditions as may be
specified in the offer letter in respect of the grant of
options.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme during the year:

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=A=+—H

3. AEstEl (/&)

BRERTE (&

BRETSN T —TF A AL
FRAITREHEIERTIN BEBRRNBERAE
BERBERABIER S AR+ F R
BAEM-

TTREAR BB A AT 813 K B A AT T (2 BB
P Y AT K 1 P51 BA 2 R I /S 2

PR B T A A RN LZEA K
BHNBRAE LIRE-

AT A% PORRR T BITE T RO AT BB
i

2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RF

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options

mEFY METH
T8 BREZE 116 BRkEHE

HK$ HKS
per share ’000 per share '000
ShiEn T4 BRET T
At 1 January w—HA—H 1.04 17,910 1.71 21,720
Granted during the year FRED 1.60 12,850 1.02 7,860
Lapsed during the year FRKH - - 2.39 (9,520)
Exercised during the year FRNTE 0.95 (969) - -
Forfeited during the year FRRIK 1.02 617) 1.76 (2,150)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 1.29 29,174 1.04 17,910
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31 December 2017
—T-tF+=-A=+—H

33.Share Option Schemes 33. MM FERTE (&)

(continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued) BBRRESTE (&)
Movements in the Company’s share options under the FRANN B EARREST2ITE N EEASRE 2 EEhan
Share Option Scheme during the year are as follows: g
Number of share options
EREHE
At 1 January Granted Exercised Forfeited At 31December  Date of grant Exercise period of Exercise price
2017 during the year  during the year  during the year 2017 of share options share options of share options
Name or category ~ SREHEY  W-F-tF WoB-t§
of participant A -A-B ERR R ERRY TZASt-B  BRERLAE BRETREHN BRETEE
HKS per share
BlEr
Directors £
Mr. Cao Yidong Alan B RIE% 4 300,000 - - - 300,000 22 November 2016 1 December 2017 to 1.020

21 November 2026
ZF-7Et-AZtZB ZF-tH1-A-RZ
“E2ET-At-R
MrLuYangsheng  HB4xs 300,000 - - - 300,000 22 November 2016 1 December 2017 to 1020
21 November 2026
ZF-"Et-AZtZB ZF-tH1-A-RZ
“EET-A-t-R
M, Lau Chi Kt BEpks 300,000 = g - 300000 22 November 2016 1 December 2017 to 1020
21 November 2026
ZF-7Et-AZtZB ZF-tH1-fA-RE
“EIAET-Az-A

Ms. Zhao Huan HERt - 300,000 - - 300,000 4 December 2017 16 Decermber 201810 1442
3 December 2027
SELEPTARE SR NEoAtEE
“ECtETZA=H
900,000 300,000 . - 1,200,000
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(continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

Number of share options
BhEnE

Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

31 December 2017

33. BB It &l (&)

B ETE (&

—F—+t%t+=ZA=+—H

At 1 January Granted Exercised Forfeited ~ At 31 December  Date of grant Exercise period of Exercise price
2017 duringtheyear  during the year  during the year 2017 of share options share options of share options
Name or category ~ SREHEH  HR-F-tF . RoB-t§ ) .
of participant £l -5-8 ERR QTR ERRR TZAZt-B BRERNLAS BREGES BREGRE
HKS per share
BRET
Other employeesin ~ HftEE 4% 4,200,000 - (540,000) - 3,660,000 20 November 2013 1 December 2014 to 0900
aggregate 19 November 2018
“§-Z8+-A-tB -E-EE-R-RE
“F-\Et-AThB
1,300,000 - - - 1,300,000 21 Juy 2014 20 August 2015 to 1.860
20 July 2019
“E-mELAZT-A “T-RENfZTRE
“E-hELAZTH
3,050,000 - (429,000) 467,000) 2,154000 1 Api 2015 1 May 2016 to 1.018
31 March 2020
“Z-REMA-B “T-RERR-HBE
“TCFE=A=1-H
1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 26 November 2015 1 December 2016 to 0810
25 November 2020
“F-REt-A-tRB ZE-AEtR-RZ
ZTIEET-AZTER
6,960,000 - - (150,000) 6810000 22 November 2016 1 December 2017 to 1.020
21 November 2026
ZERET-AZTZR ZE-CETZA-RE
“RRET-ACT-R
- 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 16 May 2017 1 June 2018t 1.82
15 May 2027
“E-tERATAR “E-N\ERA-BE
ZICtERATRA
- 4,500,000 - - 4500000 25 May 2017 1 June 2018 o 1.760
24 May 2027
ZE-tFRAZTER ZE-\FRA-HE
ZECEFRACTEA
- 6,550,000 - - 6,550,000 4 December 2017 16 December 2018 to 1.442
3 December 2027
“Z-+E+-AmA “F-\Et-B1iBZ
S
17,010,000 12,550,000 (969,000) (617,000) 27,974,000
17,910,000 12,850,000 (969,000) (617,000) 29,174,000
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31 December 2017
—T—+F+=ZA=+—H

33.Share Option Schemes

(continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share
options outstanding at 31 December 2017 are as

follows:

Exercise price

33. B It &l (&)

BRERTE (&)

Number of options per share Exercise period
BREZE BRITEE TR
1,500,000 HK$0.810 1 December 2016 to 25 November 2020

0.810/& 7T —E-RFE+-_A—BE_ZEZ-_TF+—HF=-+HH
3,660,000 HK$0.900 1 December 2014 to 19 November 2018

0.9007% 7T —ET--MFE+-_A—HE-ZT—)/\F+—A+hH
2,154,000 HK$1.018 1 May 2016 to 31 March 2020

1.018% 7T CE-RERA-RAE-ZE-_EF=A=+—H
7,710,000 HK$1.020 1 December 2017 to 21 November 2026

1.0207 7T —E—+F+_A—BE_E-_Ft+—HA=-+—H
1,300,000 HK$1.860 20 August 2015 to 20 July 2019

1.86075 7T —E—RAFNAZt+HE_ZE—hFEtA=-+H
1,500,000 HK$1.822 1 June 2018 to 15 May 2027

1.822/8 7T —E-NFARAR—HBEZZT-tFRHATAHA
4,500,000 HK$1.760 1 June 2018 to 24 May 2027

1.7607 7T —E-NFRA-BE-Z-_tFHA-+WMH
6,850,000 HK$1.442 16 December 2018 to 3 December 2027

1.44258 7T 2 \FE+-_A+AABE-_ZT-t+F+-HA=H
29,174,000
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33.Share Option Schemes

(continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

On 16 May 2017, 1,500,000 share options under the
Share Option Scheme were granted to 1 employee
of the Group. The fair value of these options was
HK$1,591,000 (equivalent to RMB1,405,000), of which
the Group recognised a share option expense of
HK$589,000 (equivalent to RMB520,000) in the current
year.

On 25 May 2017, 4,500,000 share options under the
Share Option Scheme were granted to 22 employees
of the Group. The fair value of these options was
HK$4,645,000 (equivalent to RMB4,097,000), of
which the Group recognised a share option expense
of HK$1,682,000 (equivalent to RMB1,483,000) in the
current year.

On 4 December 2017, 6,850,000 share options
under the Share Option Scheme were granted to 47
employees of the Group. The fair value of these options
was HK$4,965,000 (equivalent to RMB4,201,000), of
which the Group recognised a share option expense of
HK$182,000 (equivalent to RMB215,000) in the current
year.

31 December 2017
—F—+t%t+=ZA=+—H

3. AEntEl (/&)

BRERTE (&

R=Z—+tFRH A+ REERETE
1,500,00017 B M A S E1 AR E B
ZEBREN A AEE 1,591,000 7T (48
ERARYA,40500000) - B AEEER
NG S R BB AR A 7 2 589,000/8 7T (FHE 1
AR #520,0007T) °

R_ZE—+FRA-+HB RIEBRET
2+ 4,500,00010 FE R BEE M A S E22% B B
B o iz SRR E R A S E (B £4,645,00008
7T (FBE R AR B4,007,00000) &4 A&
B B A AN F E MR R AR A 7 21,682,000/ 7T
(FBE R AR ¥A,483,0007T) °

R-ZT—+F+-—ANH  RIEERETE
6,850,00017 B A% 1 B M AN 5 [E47% (& 8 #
o Z SR A R (E(E 54,965,000 7T
(HEERARE4,201,0007T) » EF @ NEBD
A [E 15 i I i ) 182,000 7T (1EE
AR #E215,0007T )
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31 December 2017
—T—+F+=ZA=+—H

33.Share Option Schemes 33. MM FERTE (&)
(continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued) BRESTE (F)
The fair value of the share options granted under the RIEEREAEFRENBERES A LEBER
Share Option Scheme was estimated as at the date of FHAEESIEEEA BB EER I
grant by management, using the binomial lattice model, = B L R IR PRI IS S R T T T
taking into account the terms and conditions upon {5t TREFHAZEL G ARNER:

which the options were granted. The following table
lists the inputs to the model used:

4 December 25 May 16 May
2017 2017 2017
—g-tF  —FtF  —EtF
Grant date Rt A +=-HAMmA FAZ+HH TA+RA
Exercise price (HK$ per share)  717# & (BB ) 1.442 1.760 1.822
Expected dividend vield (%) & HARR B2 (%) - - -
Expected volatility (%) T8 iR 1 (%) 51.46 50.30 50.30
Risk-free interest rate (%) 42 2L F2 1 2 (%) 1.87 1.29 1.29
Expected life of share options ~ TEHREAXAER) F 5 (4F)
(years) 10 10 10
Weighted average share R B HIH
price at grant date T ERE
(HK$ per share) (ERET) 1.442 1.760 1.822
The expected life of the share options is not necessarily FEAS R TR R AR B ] e B A R 1T (PR
indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The NHIEIE - FEHIR IR AV — E R T AL R o
expected volatility may not necessarily reflect the actual
outcome.
No other feature of the options granted was O HERENEMMESEHIT \EGAA DT E
incorporated into the measurement of fair value. BHEtER -
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33.Share Option Schemes

(continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

The 969,000 share options exercised during the year
resulted in the issue of 969,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$97,000
(equivalent to RMB85,000) and share premium of
HK$826,000 (equivalent to RMB725,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
outstanding share options for the subscription of
29,174,000 shares under the Share Option Scheme,
which represented approximately 2.1% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at that date. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 29,174,000 additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share capital
of HK$2,917,000 (equivalent to RMB2,438,000) and
share premium of HK$34,605,000 (equivalent to
RMB28,927,000), before related issuance expenses.

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 28,974,000 share options
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, which
represented approximately 2.1% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at that date.

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

3. AEntEl (/&)

BRETE (&)

FR 5171%969 00017 B AR A 2 {5 357 7969,000
IR R R Rty - R ERINIRZAN97,000/8 7T
(& H\M\Eﬁ%saooo%) K 47 4 (E826,000
BT (FHE R ARK7250007T) °

FAIRE BAR - AR RIEA AR TEBAE - AIR
BRI AE ST 2118 T520,174,0000% f% {7 48 E 1
RATRE BREBEITRAL2.1% < 1BIEFEAR
NEIRIRAIRANGERE - 2ETEARITEERE

SEHE1729,174,0000 AR A1RBYNE iR AR AR
19 AR BBINIEAN2,917,0007T (RSN A REE
2,438,0007T ) & % 17 4 834,605,000/ 7T (48
L ARK28927,0007T) (FEHERIZE1TH
XAl °

RL S SRR ES B ARIRERETE)
N BHEA28,974,00010 AITEERE  HE
RARRNFIAE BB BITIRALI21A% o
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31 December 2017
—E—tF+A=+—H

34.Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the financial statements.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the capital
contributions by Mr. Dong Li, a director and controlling
shareholder of the Company, to the subsidiaries directly
held by Mr. Dong Li before the group reorganisation on
8 June 2010.

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the PRC Company Law, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are required to allocate 10%
of their profit after tax to the reserve fund until this
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
PRC subsidiaries. Subject to certain restrictions set out
in the Company Law of the PRC, part of the reserve
fund may be converted to increase paid-up capital/
issued capital of the PRC subsidiaries, provided that
the remaining balance after the capitalisation is not less
than 25% of the registered capital. The reserve fund of
the PRC subsidiaries amounted to RMB133,805,000
and RMB119,485,000 as at 31 December 2017 and
2016, respectively.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of companies outside the
PRC. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2.4.
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34.

35.

Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE

Reserves (continued)
Share option reserve

Details of the Company’s share option schemes and
the share options issued under the schemes are
included in note 33 to the financial statements.

Available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve

The available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve
comprises the fair value differences arising from the
revaluation for the available-for-sale investments.

Acquisition of Subsidiaries
Taihe Dahua

On 18 November 2016, Anhui Uplus New Energy, a
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement
with independent third parties (the “Vendors”) in
relation to the proposed acquisition of 60% of the
registered capital of Taihe Dahua, a company in
the PRC principally engaged in the recycle and
remanufacture of lead from disposed batteries, at a
cash consideration of RMB115,200,000. On 9 January
2017, Anhui Uplus New Energy obtained control
over Taihe Dahua, which then became a subsidiary
of the Company. On 12 January 2017 and 12 July
2017, Anhui Uplus New Energy paid an amount
of RMB23,040,000 and RMB57,600,000 of the
consideration, respectively. The remaining amount of
RMB34,560,000 of the consideration was paid on 30
January 2018.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling
interests in Taihe Dahua at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of Taihe Dahua’s identifiable net
assets.

34.

35.

31 December 2017
—F—+t%t+=ZA=+—H

it (&
B AR 1

BRAAR R BERER 8 MIRET 81 1THE
PRAERFIE - BN TS AR 5233 -

AHHEREEMGRE

AN EREELFHBRREEGRIHREE
BRENAEEEZRHEK

L B B /BB 2 )
AR A Z

RZE—R"F+—A+N\B AREHBAF
TROENTFEREBEIE=H ([BEA])
RN ek WA A LA A R #115,200,000
TTHREREBURBAFGZAE (FE—MHE
EREEREET RN BEERNAT)
B0O%HFMER - R _T—+F— AN B

LR R TR BE IR ERAS AR N G2 R ZE A 4% )
BB EARRIZHBAR -RZF—+
F—A+-AR_ZE—+FtA+=-H &
R ERHTETRER S B3 AR #623,040,000
TR AREES7,600,0007 T 2 RIB < #7 T AR
34,560,000t BB ER = —/\F—H
=+B8xfte
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31 December 2017
—T—+F+=ZA=+—H

(continued)

Taihe Dahua (continued)

35.Acquisition of Subsidiaries 35.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Taihe Dahua as at the date of acquisition were as

follows:

WEEMI B A al (4&)

AMBEKRE (&)

ARG AR TS B AT BIE R
EAREEMT

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition
RUBRRER
ZAREE

Notes RMB$’000
P 5E ARBTT

Property, plant and equipment E R &R 13 101,234
Prepaid land lease payments A - R E FoE 16 9,600
Other intangible assets HEtEmrEE 18 108,126
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 31 (27,025)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRARBETER
Al BRIEEFERE 191,935
Non-controlling interests JEFE IS A S (76,774)
115,161
Goodwill on acquisition B E AR 17 39
115,200
Satisfied by: ATE A A -
Cash Re 80,640
Cash considerations payable to R-_E—+F+_HA=+—H
the Vendors as at 31 December 2017 ENEFNESRE 34,560
Contingent consideration HARE 0) -
Total consideration REERE 115,200
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35.Acquisition of Subsidiaries

(continued)

Taihe Dahua (continued)

Note:

(i) Pursuant to the agreement, the Vendors have guaranteed
that the audited aggregate net profit (the “Net Profit”)
attributable to shareholders of Taihe Dahua shall not be
less than RMB40,000,000 (the “Guaranteed Profit”) for
each of the financial years ended 31 December 2017,
2018 and 2019 (the “Relevant Financial Year”). In the
event that the Net Profit of Taihe Dahua for any Relevant
Financial Year is less than the Guaranteed Profit, the
Group shall be entitled to a cash compensation from the
Vendors equivalent to the difference between the Net
Profit and the Guaranteed Profit for the Relevant Financial
Year (the “Profit Guarantee”).

As at the date of acquisition and as at 31 December
2017, the fair values of the Profit Guarantee were
both nil. The fair value of the Profit Guarantee was the
probability-weighted average of the present values of
the shortfalls between the Profit Guarantee and the
Net Profit under three scenarios, i.e. whether the actual
profit for 2018 and 2019 is the same as the Profit
Guarantee, more than the Profit Guarantee by 15% or
less than the Profit Guarantee by 15%. A discount rate
of 18% has been used to calculate the present value of
cash flows of the Profit Guarantee.

Anhui Uplus New Energy incurred transaction costs
of RMB150,000 for this acquisition. These transaction
costs have been expensed and are included in
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

35.WEEM B AT (&)

AMBEKRE (&)

BaE:

Righ#E BEHEREBE_ZE—tF =
E-NEFRZT-NF+ZA=1t—HBLLH
BEE ((FRMBRFEE]) &4 AFMHEAE
PR E G Ewm AT (THRD AR

AR #40,000,0007T ([RFBRF]) o W E
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Z R ABE R = B HAE A % AR 78 B 4% A
ZHEERBAEBNORENELSE I-F
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31 December 2017
—T—+F+=ZA=+—H

35.Acquisition of Subsidiaries
(continued)

Taihe Dahua (continued)

An analysis of the cash flows for the year ended 31

December 2017 in respect of the acquisition of a

subsidiary is as follows:

35. WEEMTB A =] (4&)

AMBEKRE (&)

HE-T-LE+-A=T-BILFE A
MUBHBARNRSREH T

RMB’000

AR®F T

Cash consideration ReNRE (80,640)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents FFAREREAMGRESREN

included in cash flows from investing activites ~ R& RIR &S E YR FE (80,640)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included AFALE RSB HEESREN

in cash flows from operating activities W B B2 Ak A (150)

(80,790)

Since the acquisition, Taihe Dahua contributed
RMB1,754,834,000 to the Group’s turnover and
RMBG66,937,000 to the consolidated profit for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of
the year, the revenue and the profit of the Group for
the year would have been RMB9,465,444,000 and
RMB271,480,000, respectively.
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35.Acquisition of Subsidiaries

(continued)
Tele Power

As at 31 December 2016, Leoch International Holding,
a subsidiary of the Company, held a 40% equity interest
in MSB Manufacturing Sdn. Bhd., the name of which
was changed to Tele Power Sdn. Bhd. on 1 June
2017, which was accounted for as an investment in an
associate.

On 1 September 2016, Leoch International Holding
entered into a share purchase agreement with the then
existing shareholders of Tele Power to acquire 11%
equity interests in Tele Power at a cash consideration
of MYR366,000 (equivalent to RMB567,000). Upon
completion of the share purchase, Leoch International
Holding held 51% of the equity interest in Tele Power.
On 23 January 2017, the Group obtained control over
Tele Power, which then became a subsidiary of the
Company. The total consideration for the investments
in Tele Power consists of (i) cash of RMB567,000;
and (i) the fair value of the equity interest in Tele
Power previously held by Leoch International Holding
immediately before the acquisition of RMB2,063,000.
As a result of the remeasurement of the equity interest
in Tele Power from its carrying amount immediately
before the acquisition of RMB4,127,000 to its fair value
of RMB2,063,000, a loss of RMB2,064,000 (note 6)
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss during the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling
interests in Tele Power at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of Tele Power’s identifiable net
assets.

31 December 2017
—F—+t%t+=ZA=+—H

35. WHEMTEB A 7] (4&)

Tele Power

RZZE—RNE+ZA=1+—8 £27H
J& A AlLeoch International Holding# 5 MSB
Manufacturing Sdn. Bhd. (R =& —+%F XA
— HE % ATele Power Sdn. Bhd. )40%%#E -

ABRFIVER —[HHE A RIAIIRE -

M =—Z—7"F A —H " Leoch International
Holding&a Tele Power & 5 IR (AR SR AT 2 A% 10 8
Bk LIRS R {E366,0005 K< (17
M AR 567,0007T) Y Tele Powert)11%
i #E - AR08 B FEAK 12 - Leoch International
Holding# & Tele PowerfI51% % « A —
—tF— A=+ =8 NEEHSTele Power
MIEHIRE . 18 Z A RIR AKX R BB
AN Ao ATele Powerf) 1% & B (E B &)1
© AR ®567,0007T ; K (i)Z # W AlLeoch
International Holding2 #1458 By Tele Powerflk
AR EEAREE20630007T AR E#E
W BE AT - A Tele PowerZ B A RS HEBREIE A
R¥E4127T 000 EHAERRAABEAR
#2,063,0007T AR EE T —tF+=A
—+—HALFEZHFEBERTERBEA
R #2,064,0007T (FizE6) °

ZRES B B 3B 42 DA JEIZE R B 25 FE (1 Tele PowerA]
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31 December 2017
—+tE+=-A=+—H

35.Acquisition of Subsidiaries

(continued)

Tele Power (continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of

Tele Power (&)

35.WEE B AT (&)

Tele Powerr Ui BB 2 Al BRI EE R BB R

Tele Power as at the date of acquisition were as follows: AEEEAT:
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
R RRER
AREE
Notes RMB’000
Bt 5T AR®T T
Property, plant and equipment LIERN & 13 716
Inventories 7(? = 8,165
Trade and bills receivables B 5 WK R RN R 7,498
Prepayments, deposits and iﬁ\ﬁ RIH - 5] & K E A FE UK
other receivables 4,763
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHEEH 2,447
Trade and bills payables B S EMNFIBRENEE (4,599)
Other payables and accruals Ht AR EREA (35)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITEE 36 (12,073)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BEARBEITEN
AR E E R EARE 6,882
Non-controlling interests FEVERR A (8,372
3,510
Gain on bargain purchase H BB 5 (880)
2,630
Satisfied by: AT AT
Cash B 567
Previously held equity interest remeasured ZWIEHB AR EBEEFTEN
at acquisition-date fair value SRR A MR 2,063
Total consideration REESE 2,630
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31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

35.Acquisition of Subsidiaries 5. BB AT (&)

(continued)
Tele Power (continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows:

Tele Power (#&)

BERVEBMBARNESRESNNT

RMB’000

AR®T T

Cash consideration "eRE (567)

Cash and bank balances acquired FTEIR & MIRIT4 84 2,447
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents FAREESEeRENRESR

included in cash flows from investing activites IR & S EWRAFEE 1,880

Since the acquisition, Tele Power contributed
RMB26,760,000 to the Group’s turnover and
RMB961,000 to the consolidated profit for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of
the year, the revenue and the profit of the Group for
the year would have been RMB9,465,473,000 and
RMB271,480,000, respectively.

BexkEg 52— —+F+-_A=1+—
HIEFE  Tele PowerBANEELEFEEEA
R #26,760,0007T & AR & am Al E A R
961,0007T °

RRZAE FHRENELE BIAKE SR

Ko M 9 Bl 4 A R #9,4665,473,0007T K2 A
FR#5271,480,0007T °
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31 December 2017
—T—tF+=-A=+—8

36.Notes to the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows

36. R ERERMETE

Changes in liabilities arising from METHELEZAEEH
financing activities
Bank and
other loans
RITRHEMER
RMB’000
AR®F T
At 1 January 2017 R-Z—+tF—HF—H 1,763,477
Changes from financing cash flows BEREREE 1,286,584
Foreign exchange movement SN 2 &) (48,243)
Increase arising from acquisition LAt B B /B8 2 B T A3 35 1
of subsidiaries (note 35) (FF3E35) 12,073
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tF+=-A=+—H 3,013,891
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31 December 2017
—F—+t%t+=ZA=+—H

37.Pledge of Assets 37. EEE A
Prepaid Property,
land lease plant and Pledged Trade
payments equipment deposits receivables Total
AL n¥ BE E5EK
HENE k¥t BEAER A st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
(note 16) (note 13) (note 27) (note 24)

(H&E16) (HEE13) (H5Ear) (Hit24)

31 December 2017 “E-tF
+ZA=1+-H
Interest-bearing bank FERITEE
borrowings (note 30) (P3£30) 50,094 747,778 179,899 61,467 1,039,238
Bills payable (note 28) EREE (K8 - - 260,099 - 260,099
Issue of letters of credit ~ ZL{ERE - - 100,118 - 100,118
50,094 747,778 540,116 61,467 1,399,455
31 December 2016 “E-RE
+-A=1+—H
Interest-bearing bank STBRITEE
borrowings (note 30) GEZ) 78,520 643,415 9,020 86,651 817,606
Bills payable (note 28) ERZE (FiEes) - - 404,771 - 404,771
Issue of letters of credit ~ #H{EAE - - 77,094 - 77,094
78,520 643,415 490,885 86,651 1,299,471
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31 December 2017
—+tE+=-A=+—H

38.0perating Lease Arrangements  38. KR&HEZ

(a) As lessor

The Group leases its staff quarters and office
premises under operating lease arrangements,
with leases negotiated for terms ranging from
one to eighteen years. The terms of the leases

(@) FEREHEA

RATHRREE T

generally also require the tenants to pay security R o
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market

conditions.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total P
future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling

REBRBELEHERHHEETIES
K REYE  EHEREBN1FE
185F - A — RN BRI P X RE S
SUE S

—tF+=A=+—RB AEE
RIERHEBFFI AN REEE 2 HE
P T FI EIE 2R AR SR A= (R AR B PR UG

due as follows: TEMBTRIN T -
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREEFT
Within one year —F A 979 2,786

In the second to fifth years, FEFRF BREEMSE

inclusive 1,491 11,277
After five years hF% 1,493 8,757
3,963 22,820
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31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

38.0perating Lease Arrangements  38. K& E L HE (&)

(continued)

(b) fEREBEA

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties
from its related companies (note 40(c)) and
independent third parties under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to four
years.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

REBBBKEEHELHRHBENT]
(B#¥400) ) BB E= AR THA
EYE - MERENCEFHANT12
4%

W=B—tE+=A=t+—0 ~%E
RIS AT AT R B0 TSI HIRA 1
R SRR E AR T ¢

2017 2016

—E—+tF —ET—RHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F T AREFIT

Within one year —FR 4,847 5,341
In the second to fifth years, F_EERLF BIEEEMF

inclusive 995 4,968

5,842 10,309
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31 December 2017
—T—+F+=ZA=+—H

39.Commitments 39. & Gh

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 38(b) above, the Group had the following capital
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

B SR RESS()RF Al AL 2 TH E AR - 1
EHRERE NEEFIATEAREGE:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE-REF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR TR AREF T
Contracted, but not provided for: BRT4BREME:

Land and buildings tibRiEF 17,727 13,191
Construction of a property BEYE 0} 442,174 -
Plant and machinery BB M 2s 2,827 18,145

Capital contribution payable to ERAHEERE
available-for-sale investments HEE 39,034 36,937
Acquisition of a subsidiary W B BT B8 A A (i) 18,524 115,200
520,286 183,473
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39.Commitments (continued)

Notes:

0

(i)

On 26 July 2017, Shenzhen Leoch Battery, Leoch
Battery Shenzhen Corp., and Shenzhen Lihang Battery
Technology Co., Ltd., subsidiaries of the Company,
collectively entered into a construction contract with
Shenzhen Shekou Costal Realty Company Limited, a
company in the PRC principally engaged in property
development, in relation to the construction of a property
at a consideration capped at RMB516,000,000. The
property is located at the development site situated
at Tower E, Taizhi Bay Commercial Plaza, Shekou
Gangwan Road, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC,
with an estimated floor area of approximately 6,141.30
square meters. The property will be for commercial use
and upon acquisition by the Group, is expected to be
used as the principal office of the Group. Based on the
currently estimated floor area of the property upon its
completion, the consideration is RMB491,304,000. As
at 31 December 2017, Shenzhen Leoch Battery had
paid an amount of RMB49,130,400 of the consideration.
On 2 January 2018, Shenzhen Leoch Battery had paid
an amount of RMB49,130,400 of the consideration. An
amount of RMB147,391,200 will be payable by 15 June
2018 and the remaining amount of RMB245,652,000 will
be payable by 30 August 2018.

On 22 December 2017, Leoch International Holding,
entered into an agreement with an independent
third party in relation to the proposed acquisition of
60% of the enlarged registered capital of BS 003
Limited, an investment holding company in the United
Kingdom (“U.K.”) and wholly holding DBS Energy
Limited, a company in the U.K. principally engaged
in importing and selling batteries in the U.K., at a
cash consideration of US$2,835,000 (equivalent
to RMB18,524,000). As at 31 December 2017,
Leoch International Holding has not yet paid the
consideration. As at the date of approval of these
financial statements, Leoch International Holding has
paid up all the consideration.

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

39. 7% (#&)

(i)

R-ZT—tFELA-+ A FIELRE
TR FRYIE BRI A R A B RFEYIS A
BREREMABRAR (KA ZHEBRR) K
EERITmIEAEEEERR AR (—HR
PREEENREMEME 2 QR LEES
B AREHERE-EVE RELRAAR
#516,000,0007T ° 5% ¥ 3 62 5 1 B R Y1 77 R
S by O A8 KB K FIE 75 IS ERE 2 3
B - (AETIEE EEA) /6,141.30F 5K e
ZMEBRBIERERR  MEBEHRAEBK
BEBAEAAEBEZEEMNEE - RER
B2 mERB IR 2 IBAmELE
KRB A ARM491,304,0007T - R —F—+
F+ZA=+—B RYBTRERS M
£ %A ARMA9130400T 2 RB- R -F
—N\F—AZH FETREREZME
B ARB49130400T 2 RE -2 AR
#147,391,200L R =E— \FEXA+HA
ST meR T & AR K245,652,0007T # 7
—E-NFNA=Z+HXft-

R-—_T—+F+-_A=-+=H"Leoch
International HoldingE2 38 37 55 = 75 7] 37 1
% NA B FER 2,835,000k T (HBER
AR #18,524,0007T ) 2 IR & X B Wi 5 B
(T3%E ) —fEHRE =R AFBS 003 Limited
BONMEBAAMER BERRR2EHRE
—FREEFERETEDEORBEEER
KA FIDBS Energy Limited e A =& —+4
+=A=+—H Leoch International Holding
MARXNZREB - RIEAEZSHBRRZ

432 2 37

B ' Leoch International Holding 2 &%)& & 2%

o
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31 December 2017
—T—+F+=ZA=+—H

40.Related Party Transactions

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group had the

40.FAE AN TR 5F

(a) BRZSUBREEMLTFHRNZS

S REBHEBEEALTEFABATE

following material transactions with related parties BER5:
during the year:
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR®T T ARBFTT
Purchases of raw materials [FE R FBEFE##
from related companies (i)
Related companies wholly ETRAREHBEN
owned by Mr. Dong Li EEpE/NG]! 30,591 26,818
Purchases of facilities from B BFE D 7B ERHE
related companies (i)
Related companies wholly BEFEEZEHBEN
owned by Mr. Dong Li pENE] 27,541 74,200
Sales of products to HEEATHEEER
related companies (i)
Joint venture - WNC] - 30,070
Associate /N - 9,155
Related companies wholly BEFAEEEHEN
owned by Mr. Dong Li EpENE] 84,261 56,603
84,261 95,828
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31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

40.Related Party Transactions A0.FBEANETR S (&
(continued)
(@) (continued) @ @&
2017 2016
—E-+tF —E-RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

i ARBT T ARETT

Lease of office premises EMERERT

from two related companies HERAEE [0}
Related companies wholly EXnAEREHEN

owned by Mr. Dong Li EEENE] 657 703
Related company wholly ET LB

owned by Mr. Dong Li’s 2EMBNRENT

spouse 2,542 2,661

3,199 3,364

Lease of office premises to [RRAEATHEE

related companies WAEYE ()
Related companies wholly EXNAREHEN

owned by Mr. Dong Li RN 1,029 -
Interest expense to HEEALTZGRNE

related parties 40(b)(ii)
Non-controlling shareholders PN A2 FEIERR AR R

of a subsidiary 1,678 -
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31 December 2017
—T—+F+=ZA=+—H

40.Related Party Transactions
(continued)

(@) (continued)

Note:

M

The purchases of raw materials, purchases of
facilities, sales of products and lease of office
premises with the related companies were made
according to prices mutually agreed between
the two parties after arm’s length negotiations
on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or
from (as appropriate) independent third parties.

The related party transactions in respect of the
purchases of raw materials, purchases of facilities,
sales of products and lease of office above also
constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

(b) Outstanding balances with related

40.FBANERE (&)

@@ &
P 5E -

() HREERARETREMHAEER RiEHE
B EmiHERRAEMEEERE
EHRAVEARAFRENERILIZ
EREEGRAKIRE A LB S TE
RABLE=TTRHKEBIE=T

(EE ) R EMIRFETT -

EERBERERME  BERE HE
ERREERREDENBEEALR
IV ETRAE AR E RN

(b) EHEBEALHREBGER:

parties:
Due from related parties Due to related parties
EUEEALTRE ENBEALTRE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tf —IT—RF ZE—tE —IT—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
. AR¥®TrR AR%®TT AR¥®Tr AR®T:x
Current: B
The associate NS 0 - 4,504 - -
Non-controlling MEAF (i)
shareholders FEERR IR R
of a subsidiary - - 76,238 -
Related companies ~ EZFE4A2EHER ()
wholly owned by EZF NG
Mr. Dong Li 29,210 21,262 15,708 14,329
29,210 25,766 91,946 14,329

Leoch International Technology Limited
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40.Related Party Transactions
(continued)

(b) Outstanding balances with related

(c)

companies: (continued)
Notes:

(i) As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2016, all balances with the associate and related
companies wholly owned by Mr. Dong Li were trade
in nature, unsecured, interest-free and have no
fixed terms of repayment.

(ii) As at 31 December 2017, a loan amounting
to RMB40,000,000 from the non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary was unsecured,
bore interest rate at 4.35% per annum and
had no fixed terms of repayment. The balance
amounting to RMB34,560,000 due to non-
controlling shareholders of a subsidiary was unpaid
consideration related to the acquisition of Taihe
Dahua (note 35). The balance was unsecured,
interest-free and was paid on 30 January 2018.

Commitments with related
companies

In September 2010, the Group entered into an
agreement with a lease term ended on 31 August
2012 with Shenzhen Marshell Power Supply
Co., Ltd., a company which is wholly owned by
Mr. Dong Li, in relation to the lease of two office
premises. The Group extended the lease term of
this agreement to 23 December 2018. The lease
expenses to be paid to Shenzhen Marshell Power
Supply Co., Ltd. will be RMB690,000 during the
year of 2018.

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

0.BEANERS (&)

(b) E‘EEEEIL\\E'E@;EE\ n\l:lﬁi%
(#&)
B
0] R-T—+F+-_A=+—R8AKR-Z

—RETZA=T—RB FAHEEZER
AREFRE2ERENBEATN
BBRERESME EER RERE
& & R o

iy HZE—tEF+—A=+—8" ;KQ
—ERB AT ZEERBRRZER
R #40,000,0007T A EIHKIF - &ifrl
4.35% 18 X B E R iR 5K A o R — A
MEARZIEEBRBRRZHBBARE
34,560,0007T & BB K MG K EE
B2 AR HRE (KHI5E35)  HAEE
MEes BER-_ZE—N\F—A=+
A fte

(c) EHEEAR

|

HY 7

B

RZE—ZF A AEBERYITIE
IR R AR AR (HESLLESR
é%&ﬁa’mT)aﬁﬁf—iﬁﬁ?%“*%%
VR E—E-——FN\A=+—HBA
IR - AEEE Bzt sz
E-NF+-_A-+=H-—_F—N\F
ST RV AR RN AR A A
B & F 2 16 A A R #690,0007T ©
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31 December 2017
—+tE+=-A=+—H

40.Related Party Transactions
(continued)

(¢) Commitments with related
companies (continued)

In August 2008, the Group entered into an
agreement with a lease term ended on 31
December 2012 with Eastern International LLC,
a company which is wholly owned by Mr. Dong
Li’'s spouse, in relation to the lease of office
premises. The Group extended the lease term of
this agreement to 31 December 2018. The lease
expenses to be paid to Eastern International LLC
will be RMB2,542,000 during the year of 2018.

(d) Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group:

A0.BBEANETRG (&

(c) HEEBBELQTMER (&)

RZZTZE)N\F/\H A& B HEastern
International LLC (B 2= 5t & M B 18
EEREMNARREEREME
AV E T ——F+_A=+—
HAEIENBZ NSBEE#znEE
Mz —N\F+_A=1+—
B ZF— \F - KX TEastern
International LLCHIM &R iS BT F A
R ¥&2 542 0007T °

d AEEXTEEEASNME :

2017 2016
—g—t% —TAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Basic salaries and other benefits EAXFGe REMET 6,416 5170
Performance-related bonuses (BN TEAT - 1,645
Equity-settled share option expenses J«/{ EREENERERY 1,194 447
Pension scheme contributions RS FH IR 119 126

7,729 7,388

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 8 to the financial statements.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRRHIEE i3

41.Financial Instruments by

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

N IBERI N ERT A

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

SRS BT AR SR EAEDT

Financial assets TREE
Financial
assets at Available-
fair value for-sale
through Loans and financial
profit or loss receivables assets Total
AREEEE
FAEEN Bk AHEHE
CREE EWRE CREE @gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AREFTT ARETTT ARBEFT
2017 —B-tF
Available-for-sale investments ~ AIt I E R E - - 132,576 132,576
Trade and bills receivables ZFREMIER
e - 2,526,597 - 2,526,597
Deposits and other receivables &1 % & £ b & e 708 = 40,170 - 40,170
Derivative financial instruments ~ $7T4 & @I A 4,418 - - 4,418
Equity investments at fair value 2 7 BEZE T A
through profit or loss BamERERE 12,545 - - 12,545
Pledged deposits BEEAER - 540,116 - 540,116
Cash and cash equivalents BekBeEEY - 401,042 - 401,042
16,963 3,507,925 132,576 3,657,464
2016 —ERE
Available-for-sale investments ~ A] i HE R E - - 123,967 123,967
Trade and bills receivables B FRMFIER
eSS - 2,264,377 - 2,264,377
Deposits and other receivables &1 & N E b & U 3 0E - 37,360 - 37,360
Derivative financial instruments  #T4 4R T A 4,625 - - 4,625
Equity investments at fair value A BEZ A
through profit or loss BRMERERE 13,595 - - 13,595
Pledged deposits [REREYEEA - 490,885 - 490,885
Cash and cash equivalents RekAeEED - 214,344 - 214,344
18,220 3,006,966 123,967 3,149,153
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31 December 2017
—+tE+=-A=+—H

41.Financial Instruments by M. ZERSTHNERIA
Category (continued) (&
Financial liabilities cTHaRE
Financial
liabilities at Financial
fair value liabilities at
through profit amortised
or loss cost Total
DRBEEZE BRBERE
AN FTEM
ctRAas ERas mE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETTT ARETT ARBTT

2017 —E—tF
Trade and bills payables B 5 ENFIERENRE - 1,665,247 1,665,247
Other payables H B F00E - 113,771 113,771
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t BIR{TEE - 3,013,891 3,013,891
- 4,792,909 4,792,909

2016 —E—RF
Trade and bills payables B S5 RNFTIERENRE - 1,631,484 1,631,484
Other payables H e 508 - 32,464 32,464
Derivative financial instruments T4 48 T A 13,636 - 13,636
Interest-bearing bank borrowings st 8 R1THE & - 1,763,477 1,763,477
13,636 3,427,425 3,441,061
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42 .Fair Value and Fair Value

Hierarchy of Financial
Instruments

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments approximate to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, the pledged deposits, trade
and bills receivables, trade and bills payables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables and financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the
chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the finance department analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.
The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer. The valuation process and results are
discussed with the audit committee twice a year for
interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values.

42. T AR

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

N EBERRRE
EEH

AEEE
SEEMELI

?&IEE’JHEE{E& AEEEAEA

EEECDHEREAREFEY: E%fETW_
K B S RUGRIA B IWERIR - B S K
KENRE StATRNFIR 7le REME HSZ
SRR B E & - DA MET A LA B 5RE K&
,m\a+§ﬁﬁMiF§E§{fmZ\\ﬁF1ﬁ EE AR
BEfRE TEHRZETABEHEES-

AEEHMBEERENRENRPFIBEHE
ERTAAABEFENRREER -8

REERNEFVMBEREZZEERR-
REREEH FHHFITERTAEE
HMEBEN UETEREMANERRA %
HEREEMEEERE L E-BZEES
iﬁ?’ﬂ?ﬁﬁf‘ﬁﬂiﬂHﬁ&iﬁ%ﬁﬁ%i&%ﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁ
BN ERETH R

TRHEENRBBENAABENZIAARER
57 G gEREERINZERRS TAIR
SEBAR - AT EARBEREARGBER
ABE-
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42 .Fair Value and Fair Value

Hierarchy of Financial
Instruments (continued)

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-
bearing bank borrowings approximate to their
amortised costs which have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s
own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2017 was assessed to
be insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices. The Group enters into derivative
financial instruments with various counterparties,
principally financial institutions with good credit ratings.
Derivative financial instruments, including forward
currency contracts, are measured using valuation
techniques similar to forward pricing models, using
present value calculations. The models incorporate
various market observable inputs including the credit
quality of counterparties, and foreign exchange spot
and forward rates. The carrying amounts of forward
currency contracts are the same as their fair values.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2017
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LN REENRQRE
EEH (&)
SHERITERINMENS 2 AN EEELE
SAAIATE  EH PR TV AL T
B2 WHIE (SHERBRHGBFBARA
R AR S oo
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WP AN RE

Lmﬁé’\’li&oé“E’J’A/‘Mﬁ{é)}%ﬁ’\ai&ﬁ%
EBRETE AEEEZEH T (EB2RAR
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42 .Fair Value and Fair Value

Hierarchy of Financial
Instruments (continued)

The fair value of certain available-for-sale equity
investments in an unlisted company is measured using
the asset-based approach. The assets of the unlisted
company include cash and cash equivalents, short-
term principal-protected investment and investments
in portfolio companies. Management has assessed
that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
the short-term principal-protected investment and
the liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts
with consideration of the nature and the short-term
maturities of these instruments. The fair value of the
investments in portfolio companies is estimated using
different valuation methodologies according to the
nature of individual investments, such as the trading
price of listed shares, price of recent investments
market multiples and the discounted cash flow method.

2. M TAR
=]

31 December 2017
—T—+F+=A=+—H

LN REBERARE
EE#H (&)
RIELETARME TR HEERRERER
REERAEEEREAE -FLHARE
?@%ﬁé&iﬁAE{E% . %EHM%K&%&
HEARRE - BEECHEES LIRS
{E% EHRAKRE M AENRREE %'Ui
ZETAMEREMEHAZIHNREE-
REARRINKRENAABERBEMNKE
MMEERBIENGEETAEE BE LD
RIVRZ HER IR ENER TS ER
MR REFNR L

BELEBRRMERAR | T tFFH

259




31 December 2017
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42.Fair Value and Fair Value
Hierarchy of Financial
Instruments (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#sRRMIEE

42. & RL T E 5
7=}

= A JU
BEER (&)

TEEN

Fair value hierarchy ARAEBEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value TR AEBEeRTANAABETERE
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial [
instruments:
Assets measured at fair value ERABlEHENEE
Fair value measurement using
AREEFEFMABR
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BEATEHE EXFTUHR
ERTERE BARE BARE
(%1/8) (%2/8) (%3[E) oy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT AR®TT  AR%®TR
2017 —B-tF
Available-for-sale investments A H &% & - - 122,828 122,828
Derivative financial instruments ﬁiiﬁ?lﬂ - 4,418 - 4,418
Equity investments at fair value A EBEZ S A
through profit or loss BRNERERE 12,545 - - 12,545
12,545 4,418 122,828 139,791
2016 —T-RF
Available-for-sale investments A i H S & - - 117,029 117,029
Derivative financial instruments ?ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁlﬂ - 4,625 - 4,625
Equity investments at fair value ~ A7t [BEZE T A
through profit or loss BRmERERE 13,595 - - 13,595
13,595 4,625 117,029 135,249
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31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

42.Fair Value and Fair Value 42. & E TEAREBEERAAE
Hierarchy of Financial EE®R (&)
Instruments (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AREEER (&)
Assets measured at fair value (continueq) BRI EEAEREE (&)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level
3 during the year are as follows:

FAFRBANEEBTEZSWT

2017 2016
—E—tF —ET-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBFTT
Available-for-sale investments — unlisted: ~ AJfft H&ERE —FF L7 :

At 1 January R—H—H 117,029 54,257

Total gains recognised in EREMEEKEERZ
other comprehensive income Wk 4 %Ea 3,703 35,083
Additions NE 2,096 27,689
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 122,828 117,029
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31 December 2017
—T—+F+=ZA=+—H

42 .Fair Value and Fair Value Q2.THMIBERNREBEEBERAAE
Hierarchy of Financial BEER (&
Instruments (continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value RAOABEFENERS

Fair value measurement using

MREBEFERAER

Quoted

prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EXATBE EATUEE

ERETISEE BARE BARE
($E18) (%$2[8) (3[E) Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETRT ARBTR

2017 =B of : 3

Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 &g T & - - - -

2016 “E—REF

Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 4@ T & - 13,636 - 13,636
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value TR ANEEAEREES -EBRNE_E
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no R EEEBE LeMEERERAGBHR
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets BEASBHE-BR(ZFT—RF £)-

and financial liabilities (2016: Nil).
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43.Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank borrowings,
and cash and pledged deposits. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions,
including principally forward currency contracts. The
purpose is to manage the currency risks arising from
the Group’s operations and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below. The Group’s
accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out
in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term
debt obligation with floating rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in interest rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax and the
Group’s equity.

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

A3. ciEMEREE N RBE

AEENEESRTE (TTETARIN) B&T
BRITEENRREREEMRFR - ZEEH
TANEZERZNARENSERE A&
EEEREEMEMEELAE HINE
FEWF AN B 5 RN FUR TR ALK EHER
B

AEBMAUNTER S TEEREHER
BH BNEREEEAKREZEELNER
[\ e EL BB AR

AEE TR T RAESNERERSHREL -
SNERRR  FERBRERBECER EFE
EEMYRESERRNERBR  AHKR
RN It - AEREEEITETANES
BRE NI IF A 5E2.4

RSN
2N 52 [ (] T 35 61 2R B B v D T Y R\ Be = B 6
REBELUFBFERA BN RAGEHER-

TRITEREEERFIEZBRT  ME
B A B A SEBATG | M A S EE
N E R BURE
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31 December 2017
—T—+F+=ZA=+—H

43.Financial Risk Management

43. =R EREE RN REE

Obijectives and Policies (&
(continued)
Interest rate risk (continued) FMEmbs (&)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit  (decrease) in
basis points before tax equity*
BEoEm/ Bt A g A B AEs i,
CR4)  #®m/ CR) (R~
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT

2017 —E—+tF
RMB AEHE 50 (380) -
RMB AR (50) 380 -
SG$ T 50 (71) -
SG$ g T (50) 71 =
us$ ETT 50 - -
us$ = (50) - -
MYR BRALSH 50 (96) -
MYR BRALRSH (50) 96 -
2016 —E-RF
RVMB AR 50 (201) -
RMB AR (50) 201 -
SG$ N T 50 (82) -
SG$ g T (50) 82 -
US$ ETT 50 (2,049) -
us$ ETT (50) 2,049 -
MYR BRALRSH 50 (111) -
MYR BRAELH (50) 111 -

Excluding retained profits
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43.Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies
(continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. The Group operates in Hong Kong, the
United States, Singapore, Malaysia and Mainland
China. For companies in Mainland China, their principal
activities are transacted in RMB. For other companies
outside of Mainland China, their principal activities are
transacted in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. Approximately 33% (2016: 40%) of the
Group’s sales were denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the operating units
making the sales, whilst approximately 69% (2016:
71%) of costs were denominated in the units’ functional
currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the exchange rate, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities) and the Group’s equity.

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

43. =R EREE RN REE

(45

S L B

REEFRIRZFEERR ZERRRELE
BAIABM I G AN B HEITES
REENES B FNE - BRAmERF
B AE &2 o PR AR S © &
ENFEEBUARBENTR S -HHBER
HEIEMRABME  HEHEZEBKN
BRI EB AN BRETR G - ANEE
#933% (T —7NF 1 40% ) M EHE AL B8
I B AN EHEEHE - B4969% (=T
— N 71% ) IR T AR & BB Th B B
5B -

BEAEESHARER RN (HRES
BERBBENAEERS)) RAKEEL)
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43.Financial Risk Management

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#sRRMIEE

43. &R EREE B K RER

Obijectives and Policies (#&
(continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued) ShEE LB ()
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit (decrease)
exchange rate before tax in equity”
ExLiR Bt A E R IR AL 0,
(T¥) #®m/ CE2) (R~
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% AR¥T R ARBT R
2017 —E—tf
If RMB weakens AR ETRE
against US$ 5 (79,850) -
If RMB strengthens WARE N ETHE
against US$ (5) 79,850 -
If RMB weakens MAREEBTRE
against HK$ 5 (22,391) -
If RMB strengthens MARBEBITAE
against HK$ (5) 22,391 -
2016 —E—RF
If RMB weakens MARBHETRE
against US$ 5 (10,697) -
If RMB strengthens AR R ETTHAE
against US$ (5) 10,697 -
If RMB weakens MAREEBTRE
against HK$ 5 (19,206) -
It RMB strengthens HWARELBTHE
against HK$ 5) 19,206 -

Excluding retained profits
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43.Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies
(continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy customers. It is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis,
and therefore, the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and bank balances and pledged
deposits, deposits and other receivables, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Significant concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in
economic, industry or geographic factors similarly
affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit
exposure is significant in relation to the Group’s total
credit exposure. The Group had certain concentrations
of credit risk as 15% (2016: 20%) and 20% (2016:
33%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due
from the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers, respectively. Sales to the five largest
customers accounted for 32% (2016: 35%) of the
Group’s total sales for the year ended 31 December
2017.

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

A3. ciEMEREE N RBE

(&

EEER

AEBEREARREEAENTLETR
5 RBAEBOBE - R RIREERTE
IRZNEP WA BBEEZERRF It
S REBFHEE R EWESR A BN - B
SERERERIL NEK-

AEBEEMEREE (BERE RIRTTES
AR B HRIRTF R 7] & S EAd AR IE)EI’M*
SERBIRAEXSETHELY RARBREE
FRELETAKRAEE-

FERBSEST

— AR SEF RIS  (TESE
HEFE MzARNEERREAREEE
BREERBTESEA  DBKEFEERR -
EAREE15% ( ZZF—71F 1 20% ) &20% (=
T—NF :33% ) ME 5 EIFIED BB A
Elﬁﬁ?ﬁ%@ﬁ &ﬁk%?ﬁ B BAEE

AETEFEERR -BEZ=T—+F+=A
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43.Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected
cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank borrowings. In addition, banking facilities have
been put in place for contingency purposes.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities,
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as
follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#sRRMIEE

43. &R EREE B K RER

(45

FBESER
AEBRBRBEREERFTEI TAEEE
SRERERR - TEZEESHT AES
mEE (WESEWEIE) MEIHE A RKRE
EBENEIRERE

AEENBENRARTEE #RHAEEE
SHEEMEMEE R T - thoh NEE TR
BAERITRENENHEE -

AEEN SRR ENREAORIES ORI
MR -

Less than 1to5
On demand 1 year years Total
RERE DPME 1255 oy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT  AR%®TR ARYBT T ARBTF R
2017 —B-tF
Interest-bearing bank FERITEE
borrowings 1,286,511 1,639,818 136,464 3,062,793
Trade and bills payables BARNFIER
AN 1,665,247 - 1,665,247
Other payables and accruals ~ H B ZIE R
[EETER 113,771 - 113,771
1,286,511 3,418,836 136,464 4,841,811
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43.Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

(45

31 December 2017
—2—+F+=-A=+—H

43. =R EREE RN REE

REEEREE (&)

Less than 1t05
On demand 1 year years Total
R E SR B ik 1555 et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTTT
2016 —E-RF
Interest-bearing bank FRBITEE
borrowings - 1,299,253 527,156 1,826,409
Trade and bills payables B HENFTIER
R EE - 1,631,484 - 1,631,484
Other payables and accruals ~ H b JE 208 |
st ER - 32,464 - 32,464
Derivative financial instruments  $T4£ €@ T A - 13,636 - 13,636
- 2,976,837 527,156 3,503,993
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43.Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies
(continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and a healthy capital ratio in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2016.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is interest-bearing bank borrowings divided by total
assets. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

43. =R EREE RN REE

(45

EXEE

AEBENEENTRARSERASE G
FRYDEEFEARERRENER LTS
RFEXD UEKBEROEERAZERS -

AEERBEEMRAEBEREERNEER
YEL T2 - REE ALRAS N TARERARE. -
MARR B B AN I THIRE )% - 5
BEARE - BE-_T—+F+-_A=1+—
AN—ZE—ARE+_A=Z+—HULEFERX
EBERNEE BERSEFLEES)-

FEEUAERBLERRER ZLEA
HERGTEERABEE BEMANEE
BELEMT:

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBF T

Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITEE 3,013,891 1,763,477
Total assets BEE 8,625,282 6,873,302
Gearing ratio BEAGBLE 35% 26%
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44 . Transfers of Financial Assets

Transferred financial assets that are not
derecognised in their entirety

As part of its normal business, the Group entered
into a trade receivable factoring arrangement (the
“Factoring Arrangement”) and transferred certain
trade receivables to banks. The Group is exposed to
default risks of the trade debtors after the transfer.
Subsequent to the transfer, the Group did not retain
any rights on the use of the trade receivables, including
the sale, transfer or pledge of the trade receivables to
any other third parties. The original carrying value of
the trade receivables transferred under the Factoring
Arrangement that have not been settled as at 31
December 2017 amounted to RMB61,467,000
(2016: RMB86,561,000). The carrying amount of
the assets that the Group continued to recognise as
at 31 December 2017 was RMB61,467,000 (2016:
RMB86,561,000) and that of the associated liabilities
as at 31 December 2017 was RMB37,279,000
(2016: RMB54,222,000) which were recognised as
collateralised bank advances, secured (note 30).

Financial assets that are derecognised
in their entirety

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016, the Group factored trade receivables to
a bank on a non-recourse basis for cash. In the
opinion of the Directors, the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards associated with the
factored trade receivables. Accordingly, the Group
derecognised the full carrying amount of the trade
receivables factored. The carrying amount of the trade
receivables derecognised as at 31 December 2017 was
RMB21,091,000 (2016: RMB438,625,000).

31 December 2017
—F—t+t%t+=ZA=+—H

44. EE S REE

AWMEBRUEBEINCEZESH
BE

ERIERERH—EH  ANEBEEFI LB HME
WHTBRELZH ([SREBERH]) BETE
SEBGRIEEE T IRTT - AEBAZ N E
% B SHEHARELRR - T TERE -
SEWERBERE S EKGIE (BERT
IEME=HIHE EEIETRE HRUK
H)MEREN R T —+F+=—A=+—
H REZREZHEEMARSENES
JE YR IA B R BR 1B A A R #61,467,0007T
(ZZ—RF: AR¥S86,561,0007T) - A =F
—tF+-A=1+—8 AEEEEERL
BEMEESEAAREG,467,000T (=ZF
—NEF T ARKES6,561,0000T) * MR T —+
Ft+-A=T—HWNEBAEAENEESE
BAREES7,279,0007T (ZE—RF: AR
54,222,0007T) * W HERR A H IR K L A
HRITEFR (FFFE30) o

EEHRLBEINEMEE

REZE-_ZET—ttFR_FT—XRF+_-A
=+—BIFE AEEZRIFBRELER—H
BITRIEZE SEWFBUERES EER
B AEEDBIRIZE 5 RIKGIERNE RIS
[E VB K2 B R A o Rt - ANER AR ERERRIR IR
B o RN 2 ERE SR - ORI ER
ZoREWFEBRN - E—+EFE+_A=1+—8
ZEEES A ARE21,001,0007T (ZZT—X
& AR #48,625,0007T) °
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45.Statement of Financial Position

of the Company

Information about the statement of financial position of

45. 7N 8] 2 B & AR R 3k

ABALARBEHR MBRREZER

the Company at the end of the reporting period is as m
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZIKE 2,802,633 2,192,238
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Cash and cash equivalents HeNASEED 242 183
Equity investments at fair value through A7 BEZ ST ABZEHD
profit or loss EEERE 12,545 13,595
Total current assets mENVEERE 12,787 13,778
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals H b e 5RIB R BT & A 2,055 329
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHRERITEE 1,315,768 133,182
Total current liabilities mEBRERE 1,317,823 133,511
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEREE (1,305,036) (119,733)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EERERRBAER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,497,597 2,072,505

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITIEE - 409,783
Net assets BEFE 1,497,597 1,662,722
EQUITY =
Share capital E&N 116,192 115,846
Reserves (note) M (MsE) 1,381,405 1,546,876
Total equity AR 1,497,597 1,662,722
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45.Statement of Financial Position 45. 7K A F® Z B #EiRRAEz (&)
of the Company (continued)

Note: B 5T
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KRR ZEEREZNT
Share Share
premium  Shareholders’ option Accumulated
account contribution reserve losses Total
RABER RREE BRERE 2 ER @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETFL ARETFT AREFT

At 1 January 2016 RZZ—~"E—A—H 1,237,298 337,830 33,207 (60,691) 1,547,644
Profit and total comprehensive 4 A% | & 2 3% F 2 %8

income for the year - - - 33,972 33,972
Exercise of share options IR mRE 44 - (25) - 19
Lapse of share options BRERK - - (6,657) - (6,657)
Final 2015 dividend paid BN =E-hEREEE (29,478) - - - (29,478)
Equity-settled share option LA E M BRI EZ B

arrangements - - 1,376 - 1,376

At 31 December 2016 and R ZE—RF

1 January 2017 +ZA=+—-Bk
—Z—+t%—-A—H 1,207,364 337,830 27,901 (26,719) 1,546,876
Profit and total comprehensive 4 A1 F1| & 2 % | 2%
income for the year - - - (108,197) (108,197)
Exercise of share options id{y 5,338 - (2,652) - 2,686
Final 2016 dividend paid BENZE—AERERE (64,603) - - - (64,603)
Equity-settled share option ~ WUEZE & H MBI E R 5
arrangements - - 4,643 - 4,643
At 31 December 2017 RZT—t4F
+-A=1+—8© 1,148,599 337,830 29,892 (134,916) 1,381,405
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31 December 2017
—T—+F+=ZA=+—H

45 Statement of Financial Position
of the Company (continued)

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy for
share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to the
share premium account when the related options are
exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should
the related options expire.

46.Approval of the Financial
Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2018.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2017
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Five Year Financial Summary 5

EEMERE

B a B HIEEXTBERENAEENBER
B EENEENREE  BENMIFEREST
ZHYWT

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the published audited financial

statements is set out below:

Year ended 31 December

BEt-RA=t-HLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E-tF ZE-RE “E-TF —E-mF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFT ARETT AREFL AREFL
RESULTS ES |
REVENUE Wz 9,465,444 6,262,870 4,330,893 4,248 351 3,646,874
Cost of sales HEMA (8,302,904) (5,237,286) (3,561,184 (3,531,691) (3,063,671)
Gross profit e ] 1,162,540 1,025,584 769,709 716,660 583,203
Other income and gains H A RS 101,744 65,752 70,567 75,644 102,139
Seling and distribution expenses  $H&E R D X (367,199) (296,682) (216,466) (202,255) (168,595)
Administrative expenses TBRS (260,742) (224,567) (216,802) (220,072) (240,521)
Research and development costs &AL & (143,084) (101,865) (84,859) (154,430) (125,006)
Reversal/[recognition) of HREEELTER

impairment losses due to RiTBERAT

suspension of Zhaoging Leoch ([ZEBL))EE

Battery Technology Co., Ltd. f&E,/ (FR) &

(‘Zhaoqing Leoch”) HEEE - - - 58,809 (168,049)
Other expenses Etfx (34,639) (75,824) (75,568) (50,093) (5,646)
Finance costs B A (151,788) (108,931) (104,673) (108,505) (98,813)
Share of profit and loss of ajoint ~~ JEIE—FALRER

venture and an associate BN RRRF R

B - (2,931) (7,352) (3,894) 394
PROFIT/LOSS) BEFORE TAX BAER/ (FiB) 306,832 280,536 134,556 111,864 (120,894)
Income tax expense MERAY (35,352) (48,749) (28,251) (30,073) (8,395)
PROFITALOSS) FORTHE YEAR ~ AEERF/ (H8) 271,480 231,787 106,305 81,791 (129,289)
Profit/(loss) for the year UTFATRIEAEE

attributable to: wH,/ (EB)

Owners of the parent BREHEEA 242,885 241,898 106,579 81,791 (129,289)
Non-controlling interests IR E 28,595 (10,111) (274) - -
271,480 231,787 106,305 81,791 (129,289)
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N

Assets, Liabilities and EE -BENRFERER
Non-Controlling Interests

As at 31 December

Rt=ZA=t-H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E—tf —T-RF —T-1F —E-mF “2-ZF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT ARET T ARBTT ARETT

TOTAL ASSETS BEE4E 8,625,282 6,873,302 5,733,508 5,260,686 5,006,006
TOTAL LIABILITIES BE4E (5,578,594) (4,115,373 (3,287,926 (2,930,010) (2,795,705)
NON-CONTROLLING R

INTERESTS (170,078) (60,041) (5,994) - -

2,876,610 2,697,888 2,439,588 2,330,676 2,210,301
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